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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To:
The Members of
BAHUBALI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion.

We have audited the accompan-ying financial statements of BAHUBALI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so reguired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, and its
profit, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit,of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide miseéparate opinion on these matters.




Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company
asitis an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not includethe financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the othér information and we do not express
any formof assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work-we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility of the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance, Cash Flowsand the
statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standardsspecified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing th'e"'gom_pa_ny’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’sResponsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

_ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatementé'jn the financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit. .

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
rélevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Erom the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2019, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule-11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules, 2014: _ -_ \} \
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i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The
question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

o

CA. VINEET KHETAN ZRERN
(Proprietor) </ X/ N __7.';\_

Membership No. 060270 (7] wdkata i)
Place: Kolkata N 74
Date: 20.05.2019




“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of BAHUBALI TIE-UP PRIVATE
LIMITED, as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

3.)

a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the
management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items
which considering the size and nature of operations of the company appears to be
reasonable. Pursuant to such program, no material discrepancies between book
records and physical inventory have been noticed on physical verification.

c) The company does not have any immovable property under the fixed assets, hence
the clause is not applicable.

a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them.

b) In our opinion and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its
business.

c) On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-
progress. As in earlier years, work-in-progress has been determined by the
management on the basis of physical verification. The discrepancies ascertained on
physical verification between the physical stock and the book records of inventory
were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

The company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.
Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has neither given any guarantees
or security nor has made any investments nor given a loan covered under the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76.er-any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed thet d ‘é'__r‘éinot applicable.




6.)

7.)

9.

10.)

11.)

12.)

13.)

14.)

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of
outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to
information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has duly repaid loan taken from banks. Further it
does not have any outstanding from any financial institutions or government nor has it any
outstanding debenture. '

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was
no money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments;j and the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for
which they were obtained. '

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud
by the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel
during the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
neither made any preferential alloement or private placement of shares nor fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under revievws. Hence clause is not applicable.




15.)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Hence clause is not applicable.

16.)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants i
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 20.05.2019
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Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited

1st Fleor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2019

Particulars Note As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 73,577 88,308
(b) Intangible 2 & =
(c) Deferred Tax Assets 3 6,038 -
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 1,81,256 1,81,256
Total Non - Current Assets 2,60,871 2,69,564
Current assets
{a) Inventories 5 3,98,19,361 3,78,47,862
(b) Financial Assets
{i) Trade receivables 6 d 1,022 1,012
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 9,01,983 4,67,072
(ili) Other financial assets 8 55,59,523 34,47,212
(c) Current Tax Assets 9 3,04,104 3,04,104
(d) Other current assets 10 - -
Total Current Assets 4,65,85,993 4,20,67,262
Total Assets 4,68,46,864 4,23,36,826
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 1,00,000 1,00,000
(b) Other Equity 12 1,76,55,707 1,50,91,581
Total equity 1,77,55,707 1,51,91,581
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 36,24,627 62,75,775
(i) Other financial liabilities 14 7,65,177 7,47,086
Total non-current liabilities 43,89,804 70,22,861
Current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 71,92,817 1,66,59,793
(if} Trade and other payables 16
outstanding to micro enterprises & small - =
enterprises;
outstanding to other than micro - 1,61,351
enterprises & small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 1,67,93,536 26,70,240
(b) Other current liabilities 18 - -
(c) Provisions 19 7,15,000 6,31,000
Total Current Liabilities 2,47,01,353 2,01,22,384
Total liabilities 2,90,91,157 2,71,45,245
Total Equity & Liabilities 4,68,46,864 4,23,36,826

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

yw

Vineet Khetan
“|Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 20th day of May 2019

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

for and on behalf of the Board
BAHUBAL! TIE L‘P PVL'IT[,

Prodeep

BAHUBALI TIE yp pyT. L

,'“

—r

Dir
Di rec?g rto

Director




Bahu!_:ali Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2019

Particulars Note Year ended 31.03.19 | Year ended 31.03.18
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 43,97,016 43,97,016
Other income 21 10,800 -
Total Revenue 44,07,816 43,97,016
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 19,71,499 15,40,534
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 23 (19,71,499) (15,40,534)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 34,262 13,692
Finance costs 24 7,93,827 10,29,625
Other expenses 25 3,01,355 2,85,165
Total expenses 11,29,444 13,28,482
Profit before tax 32,78,372 30,68,534
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 7,15,000 6,31,000
ax Adjustment For Earlier Year 5,284 18,442
- Deferred Tax (6,038) -
Total tax expense 7,14,246 6,49,442
Profit after tax 25,64,126 24,19,092
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income E -
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -
Total comprehensive income for the year 25,64,126 24,19,092
Earri~gs per equity share
Pi_ _¢available for Equity Shareholders 25,64,126 24,19,092
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 10,000 10,000
Basic earnings per share 256.41 241.91
Diluted earnings per share 256.41 241,91

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

7 .
V4
Vineet Khetan
Proprietor )
Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street

Kolkata - 700 001.
The 20th day of May 2019

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board
BAHU ALITIE yp PVT.ATD

Kc_d‘gb}—ﬁ‘f LA

Director
Director

BAHUBALI TIE UP PVT. 17D

R
Kector]

Director

-d



Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: USllOQWBZOOSPTClOSOBZ
Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 3 Deferred tax assets (net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets
TOTAL

Note 4 Financial Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposits
TOTAL

Note 5 Inventories

(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Work in Progress
Finished Goods

Total Inventories

Note 6 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade receivables

Receivables from related parties

Less: Allowance for doubtfyl debts

As at 31.03.19

As at 31.03.18

6,038 .

6,038 -
1,81,256 1,81,256
1,81,256 1,81,256
1,13,44,086 93,72,587
2,84,75,275 2,84,75,275
3,98,19,361 3,78,47,862
1,022 1,012
1,022 1,012

All the trade receivables are Unsecured, considered good and does not require any provision or allowance

for doubtful debts

Note 7 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)
(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account)

(b)) Cash in hand

(c) Cheques, drafts on hand

(d ) Others

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet

Note 8 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Other Advances {'Unsecured, considered good)
TOTAL

Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets

Advance Income Tax and TDS

TOTAL

Note 10 Other current assets
Other Advances
TOTAL

Note 11 Equity Share Capital
(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares
Total Amount

8,65,943 4,30,154
36,040 36,918
9,01,983 4,67,072
55,59,523 34,47,212
55,59,523 34,47,212
3,04,104 3,04,104
3,04,104 3,04,104
20,000 20,000
2,00,000 2,00,000




Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032

Notes to the financial statements as on Asat31.03.19 Asat 31.03.18

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 10,000 10,000

Total Amount 1,00,000 1,00,000

¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 10,000 10,000
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd 3
Number of Shares 9,800 9,800
Percentage of total shares held 98.00% 98.00%
e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repayment of capital

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

g) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 9,800 9,800

Percentage of total shares held 98.00% 98.00%
Ravi Prakash Pincha *

Number of Shares 100 100

Percentage of total shares held 1.00% 1.00%
Pradeep Kumar Pugalia *

Number of Shares 100 100

Percentage of total shares held 1.00% 1.00%

Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts,
Number of Shares - -
Total Amount -
h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back

Note 12 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus

Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss

As at the beginning of the year 1,50,91,581 1,26,72,489
Add: Profit for the year 25,64,126 24,19,092
Add: Ind AS Adjustments - -

As at the end of the year 1,76,55,707 1,50,91,581

Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income - -

~ Otheritems of Other Comprehensive Income
Total oo &

1,76,55,707 1,50,91,581




Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building,
CIN: U51109WB2005pTC1

05032

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borro

Secured - at amortised cost

Term Loan from Bank
The loan is secured against first charge over property classified under

8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

wings (Non Current)

inventories and lease rental receivable from the property. Loan is
repayable in 96 equal monthly installment of Rs. 2,65,349/- (incl.
interest) starting from 05.11.13 and last installment falling due on
05.10.21. The rate of interest is Base Rate Plus 2,60 %

Total non-current borrowings

Note 14 Financial Liability (Other Financial

Security Deposits

Total

Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings
(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, includin

From Related Partjes

From other than Related Parties
From NBFC
From Others

Total

Liability)

g interest accrued)

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises

Other than above

Total

Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities

Current maturity of long term debt

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Advances from other

Other payable

Statutory Liabilities

Total

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities

Advances from Customer and Others

Total

Note 19 Provisions
Provision for Income Tax

Total

As at 31.03.19

As at 31.03.18

36,24,627 62,75,775
36,24,627 62,75,775
7,65,177 7,47,086
7,65,177 7,47,086
67,99,036 1,54,03,279
3,93,781 12,56,514
71,92,817 1,66,59,793
; 1,61,351
: 1,61,351
26,60,964 24,15,270
61,934 64,932
1,37,00,000 $
1,92,874 1,90,038
1,77,764 -
1,67,93,536 26,70,240
7,15,000 6,31,000
7,15,000 6,31,000
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Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032

Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations
Rental & Other Charges
TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income
Interest Income

Miscellanoues Income
Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses

Interest Paid

Consumption

Year ended 31.03.19

Year ended 31.03.18

Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & Finished Goods

spening Inventory of Work in Progress
Opening Inventory of Finished Goods

Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
Less : Closing Inventory of Finished Goods

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)

Note 24 Finance Cost

Interest on Borrowed fund

Other Borrowing Cost
Notional Interest on Security Deposits
Finance Charges

Total

Note 25 Others Expenses
Rates & Taxes
Filing Fees
Repairs & Maintenance
Conveyance Expenses
Insurance Charges
Printing & Stationary
Miscellaneous Expenses
Professional Charges
Interest Penalty charges
Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees
Total

Sub Total (A)

Sub Total (B)

43,97,016 43,97,016
43,97,016 43,97,016
10,800 :
10,800 -
6,71,014 2,16,338
13,00,485 13,24,196
19,71,499 15,40,534
93,72,587 78,32,053
2,84,75,275 2,84,75,275
3,78,47,862 3,63,07,328
1,13,44,086 93,72,587
2,84,75,275 2,84,75,275
3,98,19,361 3,78,47,862
(19,71,499) (15,40,534)
7,75,736 9,51,741
18,091 76,042
: 1,842
7,93,827 10,29,625
4,650 4,710
2,566 2,572
2,53,405 2,41,893
1,173 =
21,240
10,178 24,160
1,993 5,860
1,150 600
5 370
5,000 5,000
3,01,355 2,85,165




Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US51109WB2005PTC105032

Notes to the financial statements

A. Share Capital

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Equity Share Capital as on 01.04.2017 1,00,000
Add: Addition/{Deletion ) during the year g
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2018 1,00,000
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year -
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2019 1,00,000

B. Other Equity
Other Equity

Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company

Amount (Rs.)

Balance at 1 April 2017 1,26,72,489
Transfers -
Profit for the year 24,19,092
Add:IND AS adjustmnents A
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,50,91,581
Balance at 31 March 2018 1,50,91,581
Transfers -
Profit for the Year 25,64,126
Add:IND AS adjustmnents =
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,76,55,707

Balance at 31 March 2019

1,76,55,707




Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US51109WB2005PTC105032

Notes to the financial statements

A. Share Capital

Amount (Rs.)

Particulars

Equity Share Capital as on 01.04.2017 1,00,000
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year -
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2018 1,00,000
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year -
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2019 1,00,000

B. Other Equity
Other Equity

Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company

Amount (Rs.)

Balance at 1 April 2017 1,26,72,489
Transfers -
Profit for the year 24,19,092
Add:IND AS adjustmnents -
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,50,91,581
Balance at 31 March 2018 1,50,91,581
Transfers -
Profit for the Year 25,64,126
Add:IND AS adjustmnents -
Other comprehensive income .
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,76,55,707

Balance at 31 March 2019

1,76,55,707
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Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 1 & 2 - Property, Plant and Equipment

(1) Tangible

Particulars o ff:zl LZ:?;:LZM Data Processing Total (2) Intangible
Iltems
Gross carrying amount
Deemed cost as at 01.04.17 - -
Additions = 1,02,000 1,02,000
Disposals e
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.18 - 1,02,000 1,02,000
Additions 19,531 =S 19,531
Disposals = -
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19 19,531 1,02,000 1,21;531
Accumulated depreciation as at 01.04.17 - - -
Depreciation charge during the year - 13,692 13,692
Nisposals . s
_iosing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.18 - 13,692 13,692
Depreciation charge during the year 1,962 32,300 34,262
Disposals = = E
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19 1,962 45,992 47,954
Net carrying amount as at 01.04.17 = " .
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.18 - 88,308 88,308
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19 17,569 56,008 73,577
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended
31st March,2019
{Amount in °)

For the year ended
31st March,2018
(Amountin °)

A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit hefore tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 32,78,372 30,68,534
Adjustments for
Depreciation & Amortisation 34,262 13,692
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 18,091 76,042
Interest Paid 7,75,736 8,28,089 9,51,741 10,41,475
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 41,06,461 41,10,009
(Increase) / Decrease in Inveniories (6,71,014) (2,16,338)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (10) 12,158
(Increase) / Decrease of Advances (21,12,311) (16,69,439)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (1,61,351) (24,739)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities 1,38,80,600 64,995
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities - 1,09,35,914 - (18,33,363)
Cash generated from operations 1,50,42,375 22,76,646
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 6,356,285 5,47,936
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items 1,44,06,090 17,28,710
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 1,44,06,090 17,28,710
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets (19,531) (1,02,000)
Net cash from investing activities {(19,531) {1,02,000)
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (94,66,976) 28,53,070
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (24,05,454) (21,98,591)
Interest Paid (20,79,219)| (1,39,51,649) (23,09,793) (16,55,314)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities {1,39,51,649) (16,55,314)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 4,34,910 (28,604)
Cash and cash eguivalents -Opening balance 4,67,072 4,95,676
9,01,983 4,67,072
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 8,65,943 4,30,154
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 36,040 36,918
9,01,983 4,67,072

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

S

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 20th day of May 2019

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board

(%G—EJ‘-LP h;‘a’r wf_
Director

Director

BAHUBALI TIE UP PVT. LTD. BAHUBALI TIE UP §

Director

'VT. LTD.

Director
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26. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A.

b)

Corporate Information ‘

Bahubali Tie-up Private Limited (The Company) is a deemed Public limited company, private company
being a subsidiary of Listed Public Company domiciled and incorporated in India. It is a part of a group
leading in real estate activities in Eastern India. The registered office of the Company is situated at 8/1,
Lalbazar Street, Bikaner Building, 1 Floor, Room No.10, Kolkata-700001. The principle business activity of
the company is Real Estate Development.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred
to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant
provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as
applicable

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013.The normal
operating cycle of the company has been considered as 12 months.

Use of estimates and management judgments :
The preparation of financial statement in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles
of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.
i) Key estimates and assumptions :
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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c)

i) Revenue recognition, contract costs and valuation of unbilled revenue

The Company uses the percentage of-completion method for recognition of revenue, accounting for
unbilled revenue and contract cost thereon for its real estate and contractual projects. The
percentage of completion is measured by reference to the stage of the projects and contracts
détermined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the estimated total contract costs. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the
Company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or
costs to be expended. Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion,
the extent of the contract cost incurred, the estimated total contract revenue and contract cost and
the recoverability of the contracts. These estimates are based on events existing at the end of each
reporting date. _

For revenue recognition for projects executed through joint development arrangements, refer
clause (ii) below as regards estimates and assumptions involved.

iii) Estimation of net realisable value for inventory property (including land advance)
Inventory property is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).
NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices
existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions
identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical market serving the same real
estate segment.
NRYV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices
at the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction
and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion.
With respect to Land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of
future cash flows, which depends on the estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a
project will be completed, the expected date of completion, the discount rate used and the
estimation of sale prices and construction costs.

Property, Plant and Equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price, any costs directly
attributable to its acquisition and an initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which the company incurs when the item
is acquired. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item is depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the Property,
plant and equipment is derecognised. 2 '
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d)

e)

g)

h)

Revenue Recognition-
Revenue is recognized as follows:

i Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on Percentage Completion Method.

~ Revenue recognition starts when 25 % of estimated project cost excluding land and marketing
cost is incurred, atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements
with buyers and Atleast 10 % of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any other
legally enforceable documents are realised at the reporting date in respect of each of the
contracts and it is reasonable to expect that the parties to such contracts will comply with the
payment terms as defined in the contracts.

ii.  Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on "Percentage of Completion Method"
measured by reference to the survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the
client before finalisation of projects accounts.

iii. Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax, if any, net of sales return,

iv.  Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise
stated

v.  Rental income from assets is recognised for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate
collection is considered doubtful. Rental income is exclusive of service tax

vi.  Income from interest is accounted for on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable rate of interest.

Borrowing Costs.

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are carried as part of
the cost of such asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they are incurred.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an
indication that both tangible and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized
wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized.

Inventories

Constructed properties, shown as work in progress, includes the cost of land (including development
rights and land under agreements to purchase), internal development costs, external development
costs, construction costs, overheads, borrowing costs, construction materials including material lying at
respective sites, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their
present location and condition and is valued at lower of cost/ estimated cost and net realizable value.
On completion of projects, unsold stocks are transferred to project finished stock under the head
“Inventory” and the same is carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.

Finished Goods — Flats: Valued at cost and net realizable value.

Land Inventory: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Retirement Benefits
No such benefits are payable to any employee.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of

estimation if the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and the amount of
obligation can be reliably estimated. 7
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i

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Possible future or present obligations that may but will probably not require outflow of resources or
where the same cannot be reliably estimated is disclosed as contingent liability in the financial
statement.

Taxes on Income

Tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax is determined in respect of
taxable income for the year based on applicable tax rates and laws.

Deferred tax Asset/liability is recognized, subject to' consideration of prudence, on timing
differences being the differences between taxable incomes and accounting income that originates in
one year and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent year and measured using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date to reassess their reliability.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the
book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular corporate tax payable in
subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act. MAT paid in a year is charged to the
statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset
only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In
the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-
tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and
shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at
each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

k) Segment Reporting

The company has identified that its operating activity is a single primary business segment viz. Real
Estate Development and Services carried out in India. Accordingly, whole of India has been
considered as one geographical segment

I) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

m) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash & cash on deposit with banks and corporations. The
Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.
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n) Financial Instruments
» Financial instruments - Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the company’s statement of financial
position when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
company determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the

financial asset.

» Financial assets =Subsequent measurement
The Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification which is as follows:
e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for sale in the
near term and those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.
e Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are
stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable
amounts based on the ageing of the receivables balance and historical experience. Additionally,
a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems
them not to be collectible.
Debt instruments at amortised cost:
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
i. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.
Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
i. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and
ii. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. Debt instruments included within the
FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (ocl).
Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC, is classified as at
FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as




BAHUBALI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata — 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032

o)

e Financial assets at fair value through OC|

All equity investments, except investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, falling
within the scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income (OCl). The company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument by instrument basis
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the company decides to
designate an equity instrument at fair value through OCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL

Financial assets —Derecognition i

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assets expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset. Upon derecognition of equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCl, the associated fair value changes of that equity instrument is transferred from OCl to Retained
Earnings.

Financial liabilities -
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate.
The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts.
Subseqguent measurement
The Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification which is as
follows:
e Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading,
if any, and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

¢ Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Interest bearing loans and borrowings including debentures issued by the company are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR).
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fee or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortized is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

¢ Financial liabilities —Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
expires.

Fair Value measurement

The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
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p)

based on presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

o In the principal market for the assets or liability or

o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The company
uses valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable, or
P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance.
The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars For the year For the year
‘ ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2019 March, 2018
Profit before tax 3278372 3068534
Income tax expense calculated @ 26.00% 852377 790148
(2018: 25.75%)
Effect of tax relating to items not allowable 79497
Effect of tax relating to items allowable -347110 ---

Difference in tax rates of subsidiary companies -—-
Effect of income not taxable - -
Other differences 130236 (159148)
Benefit of previously unrecognised tax loss to -
reduce current tax expense
Benefit of previously unrecognised tax loss to - -
reduce deferred tax expense

Total 715000 631000
Adjustments recognised in the current year in 5284 18442
relation to the current tax of prior years

Income tax recognised in profit or loss 720284 649442

The tax rate used for the year 2017-18 and 2018-19 reconciliations above is the corporate
tax payable on taxable profits under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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Related Party Disclosure

Related Party Relationship
Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd — Holding

Transactions & Balanaces :

No related party transactions nor any balances have been reported by the management.

29

In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the
stated value if realised in ordinary course of business. The provision for all known liabilities
is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingent
liability except stated and informed by the Management.

30

Contingent Liabilities:- Nil (P. Y. Nil)

31.

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures As on 31.03.2019

Particulars Earrylng Argsey Fair Value
Value Cost

(a) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 1,022 1,022 1,022

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 9,01,983 9,01,983 9,01,983

(iii)Other financial assets 57,40,779 57,40,779 57,40,779
Total Financial Assets 66,43,784 66,43,784 66,43,784
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 1,08,17,444 1,08,17,444 1,08,17,444
(ii)Trade and other payables - --- -
(iii) Other financial liabilities 1,75,58,713 1,75,58,713 1,89,48,034
Total Financial Liabilities 2,83,76,157 2,83,76,157 2,97,65,478

As on 31.03.2019
Particulars Careying Amortiscd Fair Value
Value Cost

(a) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 1,012 1,012 1,012

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 4,67,072 4,67,072 4,67,072

(iii)Other financial assets 36,28,468 36,28,468 36,28,468
Total Financial Assets 40,96,552 40,96,552 40,96,552
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 2,29,35,568 2,29,35,568 2,29,35,568
(ii)Trade and other payables 1,61,351 1,61,351 1,61,351
(iii) Other financial liabilities 34,17,326 34,17,326 34,17,326
Total Financial Liabilities 2,65,14,245 2,65,14,245 2,65,14,245

Capital Requirements

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity
capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of
the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise
the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
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gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes
within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash
and cash equivalents

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Borrowings  (long-term
and short-terrfa,. including 1,08,17,444 2,53,50,838
current maturities of long
term borrowings)
Trade payables T 1,61,351
Other payables (current
and non-current,
excluding current 1,75,58,713 10,02,056
maturities of long term
borrowings)
Less': Cash and cash -9,01,983 -4,67,072
equivalents
Net debt 2,74,74,174 2,60,47,173
Equity share capital 1,00,000 1,00,000
Other equity 1,76,55,707 1,50,91,581
Total Capital 1,77,55,707 1,51,91,581
Gearing ratio 0.65 0.58

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst
other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing
loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.
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Disclosure of Financial Instruments

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support Company's
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive
directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior
management oversees the management of these risks, The Company’s senior management
is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee provides

assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities




BAHUBALI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata — 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105032

are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees pD|ICIes for managing each of these risks, which are
summarised below:

(a)

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuatebecause of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of
risk: interest rate riskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/
real estate risk. The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange or
commodity derivative contracts. Accordingly, there is no significant exposure to the
market risk other than interest risk.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
The Company has borrowed fund from bank at fixed rate borrowings. The
Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps.

(ii) Price risk
The Company has not made any investments for trading purposes. The surpluses
have been deployed in bank deposits as explained above.

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial

instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed

to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including refundable joint development deposits, security
deposits, loans to employees and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

® Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk is managed by
requiring customers to pay advances before transfer of ownership, therefore,
substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

* Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by
each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored. The impairment analysis is performed at
each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large
number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed
for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not
hold collateral as security. The Company’s credit period generally ranges from 30-
60 days.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars As on 31.03.2018 | As on 31.03.2018
More than 6 months 1022 -
Others - 1012

Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the

Company’s treasury department in__aceordance with the Company’s policy.
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Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within
credit limits assigned to each counterparty,

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an
annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the
Board. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate
financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

(c)

Liquidity Risk
The Company’s investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are
guided by the tenets of safety, liquidity and return. The Company manages its
liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due. In case of short term requirements, it obtains short-term loans
from its Bankers.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To.
The Members of
BARON SUPPLIERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BARON SUPPLIERS PRIVATE LIMITED,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flowsfor the year then ended and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, and its
profit, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. Thase matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and |n formlng our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not includethe financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any formof assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility of the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance, Cash Flowsand the
statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standardsspecified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

e

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing/the company's financial reporting process.

A



Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion., Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. - n




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with gover}xance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2019, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies._._(Au-_d:It\_and Auditors)

Rules, 2014: )2/ N\



i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The
question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

/
[

)&I
\

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 20.05.2019




“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of BARON SUPPLIERS PRIVATE
LIMITED, as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

L., a)

b)

2) a)

The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the
management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items
which considering the size and nature of operations of the company appears to be
reasonable. Pursuant to such program, no material discrepancies between book
records and physical inventory have been noticed on physical verification.

The company does not have any immovable property under the fixed assets, hence
the clause is not applicable.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them.

In our opinion and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its
business.

On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-
progress. As in earlier years, work-in-progress has been determined by the
management on the basis of physical verification. The discrepancies ascertained on
physical verification between the physical stock and the book records of inventory
were not material in relation to the operations of the Company. '

3.) The company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.
Hence clause is not applicable.

4.) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has neither given any guarantees
or security nor has made any investments nor given a loan covered under the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5.) The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or amy-other relevant provisions of the

Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there u ?’

3

“arfy not applicable.




6.)

8.)

Sh

10.)

11

12.)

13.)

14)

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of
outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to
information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has duly repaid loan taken from banks. Further it
does not have any outstanding from any financial institutions or government nor has it any
outstanding debenture.

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was
no money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (incIUding debt
instruments) and the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for
which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud

by the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel
during the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
neither made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly

convertible debentures during the year under review-Hepte clause is not applicable.




15.)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Hence clause is not applicable.

16.) Acclording to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

W

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 20.05.2019




Baron Suppliers Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105030

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2019

Particulars Note As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 56,008 88,308
(b) Intangible 2 = 5
{c) Deferred Tax Assets 3 6,289 -
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 180,125 180,125
Total Non - Current Assets 242,422 268,433
Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 41,713,011 39,753,443
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 21,788 21,779
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 747,732 517,494
(ilf) Other financial assets 8 - -
(c) Current Tax Assets 8 304,104 304,104
(d) Other current assets 10 - 27,671
Total Current Assets 42,786,635 40,624,491
Total Assets 43,029,057 40,892,924
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity _
(a) Equity Share capital 11 100,000 100,000
(b) Other Equity 12 16,486,173 13,942,504
Total equity 16,586,173 14,042,504
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 3,624,627 6,275,775
(ii) Other financial liabilities 14 2,083,543 1,850,353
Total non-current liabilities 5,708,170 8,126,168
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 15,225,704 14,538,186
{ii) Trade and other payables 16 - 67,145
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 4,959,010 3,479,921
(b) Other current liabilities 18 - -
{c) Provisions 19 550,000 639,000
Total Current Liabilities 20,734,714 18,724,252
Total liabilities 26,442,884 26,850,420
Total Equity & Liabilities 43,029,057 40,892,923

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

o

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 20th day of May 2019

For and on behlaf of the Board

BARON SUPPLIERS P |

Director

Difector




- Baron Suppliers Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105030

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2019

Particulars Note| Yearended 31.03.19 | Year ended 31.03.18
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 4,397,016 4,397,016
Other income 21 10,800 -
Total Revenue 4,407,816 4,397,016
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 1,959,568 1,435,541
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 23 (1,959,568) (1,435,541)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 32,300 13,692
Finance costs 24 1,008,886 1,159,984
Other expenses 25 274,616 251,720
Total expenses 1,315,802 1,425,396
Profit before tax 3,092,014 2,971,620
I ass: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 550,000 639,000
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 4,634 7,497
- Deferred Tax (6,289) -
Total tax expense 548,345 646,497
Profit after tax 2,543,669 2,325,123
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - -
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,543,669 2,325,123
arnings per equity share
* Profit available for Equity Shareholders 2,543,669 2,325,123
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 10,000 10,000
Basic earnings per share 254.37 232.51
Diluted earnings per share 254.37 232.51

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

i

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No.060270 |
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street '\ A
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 20th day of May 2019

For and on behlaf of the Board
BARON SUPPLIERS PVT.LTD.

b Jiwe B

Director

BARON suPPLIEREBYT. 11p

irecBirector




Baron Suppliers Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U5110SWB2005PTC105030

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18

Note 3 Deferred tax assets (net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets 6,289 -

TOTAL 6,289 .

Note 4 Financial Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits 180,125 180,125

TOTAL . 180,125 180,125

Note 5 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)

Work in Progress 14,364,456 12,404,928
Finished Goods 27,348,515 27,348,515
Total Inventories 41,713,011 39,753,443

Note 6 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)

Trade receivables 21,788 21,779
Receivables from related parties - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -

21,788 21,779

Note: All the trade receivables are Unsecured, considered good and does not require any provision or allowance for
doubtful debts

Note 7 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)

(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 689,199 457,811
{b) Cash in hand 58,533 59,683
(c) Cheques, drafts on hand - -
(d ) Others

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 747,732 517,494

Note 8 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Other Advances (Unsecured, considered good) ! g -

TOTAL 2 :

Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets
Advance Income Tax and TDS 304,104 304,104

TOTAL 304,104 304,104

Note 10 Other current assets
Other Advances - 27,671

TOTAL - 27,671




Baron Suppliers Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105030

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18

Note 11 Equity Share Capital
(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

a) Authorised Share Capital
' Number of Shares 20,000 20,000

Total Amount 200,000 200,000

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares - 10,000 10,000

Total Amount 100,000 100,000

¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Qutstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 10,000 10,000
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
_RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 9,800 9,800
Percentage of total shares held 98.00% 98.00%
e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liguidation of the
company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

g) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 9,800 9,800
Percentage of total shares held 98.00% 98.00%
Ravi Prakash Pincha *
Number of Shares 100 100
Percentage of total shares held 1.00% 1.00%
Pradeep Kumar Pugalia *
Number of Shares 100 100
Percentage of total shares held 1.00% 1.00%
* Both the shareholders holding 100 Shares each are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty &
Infrastructure Ltd
g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares - -
Total Amount - -
h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back
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Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 12 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end of the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income
Total

Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)

Secured - at amortised cost
Term Loan from Bank
The loan is secured against first charge over property classified under
inventories and lease rental receivable from the property. Loan is repayable in
96 equal monthly installment of Rs. 2,65,349/- (incl. interest) starting from
05.11.13 and last installment falling due on 05.10.21. The rate of interest is
Base Rate Plus 2.60 %

Total non-current borrowings

Note 14 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)
Security Deposits
Total

Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings
(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)
From other than Related Parties
From NBFC
From Others
Total

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises

Other than above

Total

Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Current maturity of long term debt

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Advances from other

Other payable

Statutory Liabilities

Total

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customer and Others
Total

Note 19 Provisions
Provision for Income Tax
Total

As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18
13,942,504 11,617,381
2,543,669 2,325,123
16,486,173 13,942,504
16,486,173 13,942,504
3,624,627 6,275,775
3,624,627 6,275,775
2,083,543 1,850,393
2,083,543 1,850,393
12,479,863 10,512,064
2,745,841 4,026,122
15,225,704 14,538,186
5 67,145
- 67,145
2,660,964 2,415,270
61,934 64,932
1,986,368 821,354
73,953 178,364
175,791 -
4,959,010 3,479,921
550,000 639,000
550,000 639,000
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Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations
Rental & Other Charges

Year ended 31.03.19

Year ended 31.03.18

TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income
Interest Income
Miscellanoues Income

Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses
Interest Paid

Consumption

Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & Finished Goods
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress
Opening Inventory of Finished Goods

Sub Total (A)

Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
Less : Closing Inventory of Finished Goods

Sub Total (B)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)

Note 24 Finance Cost

Interest on Borrowed fund

Other Borrowing Cost
Notional Interest on Security Deposits
Finance Charges

Total

Note 25 Others Expenses

Rates & Taxes

Filing Fees

Miscellaneous Expenses

Repairs & Maintenance

Professional Charges

Interest Penalty charges

Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees

Total

4,397,016 4,397,016
4,397,016 4,397,016
10,800 .
10,800 2
671,014 216,338
1,288,554 1,219,203
1,959,568 1,435,541
12,404,928 10,969,387
27,348,515 27,348,515
39,753,443 38,317,902
14,364,496 12,404,928
27,348,515 27,348,515
41,713,011 39,753,443
(1,959,568) (1,435,541)
775,736 951,741
233,150 207,060
- 1,183
1,008,886 1,159,984
4,650 4,710
2,500 2,579
2,560
237,770 237,768
22,100 600
36 1,063
5,000 5,000
274,616 251,720
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Notes to the financial statements

A. Share Capital

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Equity Share Capital as on 01.04.2017 1,00,000
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year =
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2018 1,00,000
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year -
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2019 1,00,000

B. Other Equity
Other Equity

Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company

Amount (Rs.)

Balance at 1 April 2017 1,16,17,381
Transfers -
Profit for the year 23,25,123
Add:IND AS adjustments -
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,39,42,504
Balance at 31 March 2018 1,39,42,504
Transfers E
Profit for the Year 25,43,669
Add:IND AS adjustments -
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,64,86,173
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Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 1 & 2 - Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars

(1) Tangible
Office Equipment

(2) Intangible

Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at 01.04.17

Additions 102,000 B
Disposals - -
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.18 102,000 -
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19 102,000 -
Accumulated depreciation as at 01.04.17 - -
Depreciation charge during the year 13,692 -
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.18 13,692 -
Depreciation charge during the year 32,300 -
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19 45,992 -
Net carrying amount as at 01.04.17 - -
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.18 88,308 -
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19 56,008 -




Baron Suppliers Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

For the year ended For the year ended
eI T 31st March,2019 31st March,2018
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 3,092,014 2,971,620
Adjustments for
Depreciation & Amortisation 32,300 13,692
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 233,150 207,060
Interest Paid 775,736 1,041,186 951,741 1,172,493
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 4,133,200 4,144,113
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (671,014) (216,338)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (9) 15,725
(Increase) / Decrease of Advances 2 i
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets 27,671 =
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (67,145) (24)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities 1,236,394 277,357
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities - 525,897 - 76,720
Cash generated from operations 4,659,097 4,220,832
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 643,635 549,091
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items 4,015,462 3,671,741
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 4,015,462 3,671,741
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets - (102,000)
Net cash from investing activities - (102,000)
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 687,518 860,811
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (2,405,454) (2,198,591)
Interest Paid (2,067,288)| (3,785,224)| (2,204,800)| (3,542,580)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (3,785,224) (3,542,580)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B 230,238 27,161
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 517,494 490,332
747,731 517,493
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 689,199 457,811
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 58,533 59,683
747,732 517,494

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Vine)t/l(hetan

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 20th day of May 2019

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board

AR
Directqg

Director

BARON SUPPLIERS PVT. LTD. BARON SUPPLIERS PVT|

Director

LTD.

ector
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26. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A.

a)

b)

Corporate Information

Baron Suppliers Private Limited (The Company) is a deemed Public limited company, private company
being a subsidiary of Listed Public Company domiciled and incorporated in India. It is a part of a group
leading in real estate activities in Eastern India. The registered office of the Company is situated at 8/1,
Lalbazar Street, Bikaner Building, 1 Floor, Room No.10, Kolkata-700001. The principle business activity of
the company is Real Estate Development.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred
to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant
provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as
applicable

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013.The normal
operating cycle of the company has been considered as 12 months.

Use of estimates and management judgments :

The preparation of financial statement in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles

of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the

disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the ca rrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in

future periods.

i) Key estimates and assumptions :
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared,
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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c)

i) Revenue recognition, contract costs and valuation of unbilled revenue

The Company uses the percentage of-completion method for recognition of revenue, accounting for
unbilled revenue and contract cost thereon for its real estate and contractual projects. The

" percentage of completion is measured by reference to the stage of the projects and contracts
determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the estimated total contract costs. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the
Company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or
costs to be expended. Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion,
the extent of the contract cost incurred, the estimated total contract revenue and contract cost and
the recoverability of the contracts. These estimates are based on events existing at the end of each
reporting date.
For revenue recognition for projects executed through joint development arrangements, refer
clause (ii) below as regards estimates and assumptions involved.

iii) Estimation of net realisable value for inventory property (including land advance)
Inventory property is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).
NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices
existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions
identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical market serving the same real
estate segment.
NRV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices
at the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction
and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion.
With respect to Land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of
future cash flows, which depends on the estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a
project will be completed, the expected date of completion, the discount rate used and the
estimation of sale prices and construction costs.

Property, Plant and Equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price, any costs directly
attributable to its acquisition and an initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which the company incurs when the item
is acquired. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item is depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the Property,
plant and equipment is derecognised. -
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d)

e)

f)

h)

Revenue Recognition-
Revenue is recognized as follows:

i. Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on Percentage Completion Method.
Revenue recognition starts when 25'% of estimated project cost excluding land and marketing
cost is incurred, atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements
with buyers and Atleast 10 % of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any other
legally enforceable documents are realised at the reporting date in respect of each of the
contracts and it is reasonable to expect that the parties to such contracts will comply with the
payment terms as defined in the contracts.

ii.  Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on "Percentage of Completion Method"
measured by reference to the survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the
client before finalisation of projects accounts.

ii.  Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax, if any, net of sales return.

iv.  Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise
stated

v.  Rental income from assets is recognised for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate
collection is considered doubtful. Rental income is exclusive of service tax

vi.  Income from interest is accounted for on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable rate of interest,

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are carried as part of
the cost of such asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they are incurred.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an
indication that both tangible and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized
wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized.

Inventories

Constructed properties, shown as work in progress, includes the cost of land (including development
rights and land under agreements to purchase), internal development costs, external development
costs, construction costs, overheads, borrowing costs, construction materials including material lying at
respective sites, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their
present location and condition and is valued at lower of cost/ estimated cost and net realizable value.
On completion of projects, unsold stocks are transferred to project finished stock under the head
“Inventory” and the same is carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less,

Finished Goods - Flats: Valued at cost and net realizable value.

Land Inventory: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Retirement Benefits
No such benefits are payable to any employee.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of
estimation if the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and the amount of
obligation can be reliably estimated: SN
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Possible future or present obligations that may but will probably not require outflow of resources or
where the same can not be reliably estimated is disclosed as contingent liability in the financial
statement.

Taxes on Income

Tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax is determined in respect of
taxable income for the year based on applicable tax rates and laws.

Deferred tax Asset/liability is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing
differences being the differences between taxable incomes and accounting income that originates in
one year and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent year and measured using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date to reassess their reliability.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the
book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular corporate tax payable in
subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act. MAT paid in a year is charged to the
statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset
only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In
the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-
tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and
shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at
each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

k) Segment Reporting

The company has identified that its operating activity is a single primary business segment viz. Real
Estate Development and Services carried out in India. Accordingly, whole of India has been
considered as one geographical segment

[) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

m) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash & cash on deposit with banks and corporations. The
Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.
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n) Financial Instruments
» Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the company’s statement of financial
position when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
company determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Financial assets —Subsequent measurement
The Subsequent measurement of financial assets deperds on their classification which is as follows:

L

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for sale in the
near term and those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in an active market. Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are

stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable

amounts based on the ageing of the receivables balance and historical experience. Additionally,

a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for

impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems

them not to be collectible.

Debt instruments at amortised cost:

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met;

i. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

ii. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. Debt instruments included within the
FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCl).

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTQCI, is classified as at
FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL., However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has,nat_d‘esignated_ any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

v
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0)

¢ Financial assets at fair value through OCI

All equity investments, except investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, falling
within the scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). The company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument by instrument basis
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the company decides to
designate an equity instrument at fair value through OCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI,

Financial assets —Derecognition 3

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assets expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset. Upon derecognition of equity instruments designated at fair value through
O, the associated fair value changes of that equity instrument is transferred from OCl to Retained
Earnings.

Financial liabilities —
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate.
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts.
Subsequent measurement
The Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification which is as
follows:
* Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading,
if any, and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

* Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Interest bearing loans and borrowings including debentures issued by the company are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR).
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fee or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortized is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

 Financial liabilities —~Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
expires.

Fair Value measurement

The company measures certain financial instru ments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
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based on presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either;

o Inthe principal market for the assets or liability or

© In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The company
uses valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unchservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable, or
P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

p) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance.
The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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27 Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars Year ended 31.03.19 | Year ended 31.03.18
Profit before tax 3,092,014 2,971,620
Income tax expense calculated @ 26.00% (P.Y: 25.75%) 803,924 765,192
Effect of iterns not allowable for Tax purpose 130,837 -

Effect of Allowances for Tax purpose (346,349) -

Other differences - (38,412) {126,192)
Total 550,000 639,000
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years 4,634 7,497
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 554,634 646,457

The tax rate used for the year 2017-18 and 2018-19 reconciliations above is the corporate tax payable on taxable profits under the

Income Tax Act, 1961.

28 Related Party Disclosure
Related Party Relationship
Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd - Holding
Transactions & Balanaces :
No related party transactions nor any balances have been reported by the management.

29 In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course of
business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingent

liability except stated and informed by the Management.

30 Contingent Liabilities:- Nil (P. Y. Nil)
31 Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures As on 31.03.2019
Particulars at Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
(a) Financial Assets
(i)  Trade receivables 21,788 21,788 21,788
(ii)  Cash and cash equivalents 747,732 747,732 747,732
(i) Other financial assets 180,125 180,125 180,125
Total Financial Assets 949,645 949,645 949,645
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18,850,331 18,850,331 18,850,331
(i} Trade and other payables - - -
(iii)  Other financial liabilities 7,113,508 7,042,553 7,113,508
Total Financial Liabilities 25,963,839 25,892,884 25,963,839
As on 31.03.2018
Particulars Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
(a) Financial Assets
(i)  Trade receivables 21,779 21,779 21,779
(i)  Cash and cash equivalents 517,494 517,494 517,494
(ili) Other financial assets 180,125 180,125 180,125
Total Financial Assets 719,398 719,398 719,398
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 22,663,313 22,663,313 22,663,313
{ii) Trade and other payables 67,169 67,169 67,169
(iti)  Other financial liabilities 4,368,181 5,634,419 4,368,181
Total Financial Liabilities 27,098,663 28,364,901 27,098,663
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A. Capital Requirements
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise
the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and-borrowings, trade and other payables less cash
and cash equivalents

Particulars 31-03-2019 (Rs.) 31-03-2018 (Rs.)
Borrowings (long-term and short-term, including current
maturities of long term borrowings)

Trade payables - 67,169
Other payables (current and non-current, excluding current

18,850,331 22,663,313

o . 7,113,508 4,368,181
maturities of long term borrowings)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (747,732) (517,494)
Net debt 25,216,107 26,581,169
Equity share capital 100,000 100,000
Other equity 16,486,173 13,942,504
Total Capital 16,586,173 14,042,504
Gearing ratio : 0.66 0.53

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any Interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and March
31,2018

31 Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance and support Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of
these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company’s
senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuatebecause of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate riskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/ real estate risk.
The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange or commodity derivative contracts. Accordingly, there is no significant exposure
to the market risk other than interest risk.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company has borrowed fund from bank at fixed rate borrowings. The Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps.
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(i) Price risk
The Company has not made any investments for trading purposes. The surpluses have been deployed in bank deposits as
explained above.

- Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is expased to credit risk from Its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including refundable joint development deposits, security deposits, loans to employees and other financial Instruments.

Trade receivables
Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances before transfer

of ownership, therefore, substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored. The impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition,
a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral
as security. The Company’s credit period generally ranges from 30-60 days.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars As on 31,03.2019 As on 31.03.2018
More than 6 months 21,779
Others 9 21,779

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
counterparty.

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the
year subject to approval of the Board. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss
through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of
the statement of financial position at 31 March 2019 and 2018 is the carrying amounts.

Liguidity Risk

The Company’s investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the tenets of safety, liquidity and return.
The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. In case of
short term requirements, it obtains short-term loans from its Bankers.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
HEADMAN MERCANTILE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HEADMAN MERCANTILE PRIVATE
LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flowsfor the year then ended
andasummary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, and its
profit, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matte_r.s-:_.'."i'_ 120 &
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not includethe financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any formof assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility of the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance, Cash Flowsand the
statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standardsspecified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.




Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitat‘ﬂ'e materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in eval ating the results of our work; and (ii) to

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatementsir
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would.reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2019, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the

Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule ;.:17_1@;¢-h§/£ompanies (Audit and Auditors)
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i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The
question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

A

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 20.05.2019




“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of HEADMAN MERCANTILE
PRIVATE LIMITED, as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

1)

2.)

3.)

7.}

The company does not have any fixed assets hence the clause is not applicable.

a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.

In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them.

h) In our opinion and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are

reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its
business.

c) On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-
progress. As in earlier years, work-in-progress has been determined by the
management on the basis of physical verification. The discrepancies ascertained on
physical verification between the physical stock and the book records of inventory
were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

The company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.
Hence clause is not applicable,

According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has neither given any guarantees
or security nor has made any investments nor given a loan covered under the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable.

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other

ities and there is no arrears of




8.)

9:)

10.)

11.)

12.)

13:)

14.)

15.)

outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to
information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has duly repaid loan taken from banks. Further it
does not have any outstanding from any financial institutions or government nor has it any
outstanding debenture.

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was
no money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for
which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud
by the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel
during the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
neither made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Hence clause is not applicable.




16.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

4

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 20.05.2019




Headman Mercantile Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US1109WB2005PTC104940

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2019

Particulars Note As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 - -
(b) Intangible 3 . -
{c) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 172,796 172,796
Total Non - Current Assets 172,796 172,796
Current assets
(a) Inventaries 5 36,843,996 35,205,568
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 669 676
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 864,481 722,731
(iii) Other financial assets 8 - -
(c} Current Tax Assets 9 249,156 249,156
(d) Other current assets 10 - =
Total Current Assets 37,958,302 36,178,131
Total Assets 38,131,098 36,350,927
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 100,100 100,100
(b) Other Equity 12 14,222,337 11,980,106
Total equity 14,322,437 12,080,206
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 3,624,627 6,275,775
(ii) Other financial liabilities 14 1,707,000 2,396,956
Total non-current liabilities 5,331,627 8,672,731
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 11,324,109 11,318,002
(ii) Trade and other payables 16 - 6,000
{iii) Other financial liabilities 17 3,676,461 3,480,988
(b) Other current liabilities 18 2,956,464 300,000
(c) Provisions 19 520,000 493,000
Total Current Liabilities 18,477,034 15,597,990
Total liabilities 23,808,661 24,270,721
Total Equity & Liabilities 38,131,098 36,350,927
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants HEADMAN MERCANTILEPVT. LTP.
(kw Yo de G”? [EES S
Vineet Kheten Director .
Proprietor g HEADMAN MERCANTR??’%&?ETU
Membership No.060270 ’
Place; 3B, Lal Bazar Street 1
Kalkata - 700 001.
The 20th day of May 2019 Birector Dirpctor




Headman Mercantile Private Limited

1:t Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104940

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31.03.2019

Particulars Note | Year ended 31.03.19 | Year ended 31.03.18
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 3,602,376 3,602,376
Other income 21 s =
Total Revenue 3,602,376 3,602,376
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 1,638,428 1,153,543
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 23 (1,638,428) (1,153,543)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 & -
Finance costs 24 816,093 1,122,766
Other expenses 25 28,766 185,180
Total expenses 844,859 1,307,946
Profit before tax 2,757,517 2,294,430
Less: Income tax expenses
_urrent tax 520,000 493,000
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year (4,714) 22,496
Total tax expense 515,286 515,496
Profit after tax 2,242,231 1,778,934
Other comprehensive income
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss # -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - =
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans = =
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,242,231 1,778,934
Earnings per equity share
5fit available for Equity Shareholders 2,242,231 1,778,934
weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 10,010 10,010
Basic earnings per share 224.00 17772
Diluted earnings per share 224.00 177.72

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

i

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 20th day of May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board

HEADN@AN ERC&NTH:EFU'T. LTD,
vadefp RI¥E

DirectoPirector

HEADMAN MERCANTILE PVT. LTD.

%%ﬁ Director

D#rector




Headman Mercantile Private Limited

st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104940

Notes to the financial statements as on | As at 31.03.19 | As at 31.03.18—|

Note 4 Financial Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposits 172,796 172,796
TOTAL 172,796 172,796

Note 5 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)

Work in Progress 9,834,556 8,196,168
Finished Goods 27,009,400 27,009,400
Total Inventories 36,843,996 35,205,568

Note 6 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)

Trade receivables 669 676

Receivables from related parties E E

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -
669 676

All the trade receivables are Unsecured, considered good and does not require any provision or allowance
for doubtful debts

Note 7 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)

(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 807,461 664,560
(b)) Cash in hand 57,020 58,171
(c) Cheques, drafts on hand - -
(d ) Others

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 864,481 722,731

Note 8 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Other Advances (Unsecured, considered good) - -
TOTAL 3 =

Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax assets

Advance Income Tax and TDS 249,156 249,156
TOTAL 249,156 249,156

Note 10 Other current assets
Other Advances
TOTAL
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|Notes to the financial statements as on | As at 31.03.19 | As at 31.03.18 I

Note 11 Equity Share Capital

(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares 20,000 20,000
Total Amount 200,000 200,000

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 10,010 10,010
Total Amount 100,100 100,100

c) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 10,100 10,100
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 9,810 9,810
Percentage of total shares held 97.13% 97.13%
e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution
of dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in propertion
to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

f) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 9,810 9,810

Percentage of total shares held 97.13% 97.13%
Ravi Prakash Pincha *

Number of Shares 100 100

Percentage of total shares held 0.99% 0.99%
Pradeep Kumar Pugalia *

Number of Shares 100 100

Percentage of total shares held 0.99% 0.99%

* Both the shareholders holding 100 Shares each are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty &
Infrastructure Ltd
g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares . L
Total Amount = 5
h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been is;yea’jﬁ_g_r‘:fﬁn?gg__ has been any buy-back
£ 7\
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[Notes to the financial statements as on l As at 31.03.19] As at 31.03.18 |

Note 12 Other equity

Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss

Ag at the beginning of the yaar 11,980,106 10,201,172
Add: Profit for the year 2,242,231 1,778,934
Add: Ind AS Adjustments = =

As at the end of the year 14,222,337 11,980,106

Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income - -
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income - =
Total 14,222,337 11,980,106

Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)
Secured - at amortised cost
Term Loan from Bank 3,624,627 6,275,775
The loan is secured against first charge over property classified under
inventories and lease rental receivable from the property. Loan is
repayable in 96 equal monthly installment of Rs. 2,65,348/- (incl. interest)
starting from 05.11.13 and last installment falling due on 05.10.21. The
rate of interest is Base Rate Plus 2.60 %

Total non-current borrowings 3,624,627 6,275,775

Note 14 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)

Security Deposits 1,707,000 1,666,643
Advance from parties % 730,313
Total 1,707,000 2,396,956

Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings

(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)
From Related Parties - 5
From other than Related Parties

From NBFC 11,307,930 10,286,047
From Others 16,179 1,031,955
Total 11,324,109 11,318,002

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables

outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises - -
Other than above Z 6,000
Total - 6,000
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|Notes to the financial statements as on

| Asat31.03.19 | Asat31.03.18

Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Current maturity of long term debt

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Advances from other

Other payable

Statutory Liabilities
Total

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customer and Others
Total

Note 19 Provisions

Provision for Income Tax
Total

2,660,964 2,415,270
61,934 64,932
799,408 881,059
5,000 119,727
149,155 "
3,676,461 3,480,988
2,956,464 300,000
2,956,464 300,000
520,000 493,000
520,000 493,000
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Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations

Year ended 31.03.19

Year ended 31.03.18

Rental Income 3,602,376 3,602,376
TOTAL 3,602,376 3,602,376
Note 21 Other Income
Interest Income - -
Total - -
Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses 671,014 216,338
Interest Paid 967,414 937,205
Consumption 1,638,428 1,153,543
Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & Finished Goods
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress 8,196,168 7,042,625
Opening Inventory of Finished Goods 27,009,400 27,009,400

Sub Total (A) 35,205,568 34,052,025
Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress 9,834,596 8,196,168
Less : Closing Inventory of Finished Goods 27,009,400 27,009,400
Sub Total (B) 36,843,996 35,205,568

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B) (1,638,428) (1,153,543)
Note 24 Finance Cost
Interest on Borrowed fund 775,736 951,741
Other Borrowing Cost

Notional Interest on Security Deposits 40,357 169,640

Finance Charges - 1,385
Total 816,093 1,122,766
Note 25 Others Expenses
Rates & Taxes 4,650 4,710
Filing Fees 2,747 2,579
Repairs & Maintenance 12,638 171,353
Professional Charges 2,100 600
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,631 ]
Interest Penalty charges - 938
Auditor's Remuneration

Statutory Audit Fees 5,000 5,000
Total 28,766 185,180
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Notes to the financial statements

A. Share Capital

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Equity Share Capital a¢ on 01.04.2017 100,100
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year -
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2018 100,100
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year -
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2019 100,100

B. Other Equity
Other Equity

Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company

Amount (Rs.)

Balance at 1 April 2018 10,201,172
Transfers -
Profit for the year 1,778,934
Add:IND AS adjustmnents -
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 11,980,106
Balance at 31 March 2018 11,980,106
Transfers -
Profit for the Year 2,242,231
Add:IND AS adjustmnents g
Other comprehensive income E
Total comprehensive income for the year 14,222,337

Balance at 31 March 2019

14,222,337




Headman Mercantile Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Cash Flow Statement

For th2 yvear ended
31st Miarch,2019

For the year ended
31st March,2018

(Amouitin’) (Amount in’)
A. Cash flow from operating activities ;
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 27,57,517 22,94,430
Adjustments for
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 40,357 1,69,640
Interest Paid 7,75,736 8,16,093 9,51,741 11,21,381
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 35,73,610 34,15,811
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (6,71,014) (2.16,338)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables 7 9,978
(Increase) / Decrease of Advances - -
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Financial Assets - :
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets - -
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (6,008 -
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities (7,77,536) 2,30,941
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities 26,56,464 12,01,921 3,00,000 3,24,581
Cash generated from operations 47,75,531 37,40,392
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Ne 4,288,286 3,83,952
Cash Flow before Exceptional ltems 42,87,245 33,56,440
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities | 42,87,245 33,56,440
B. Cash Fiow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets -
Net cash from investing activities - E
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 6,107 10,64,684
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (24,05,454) (21,98,591)
Interest Paid (17,46,148)|  (41,45,495)| (19,22,802) (30,56,709)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (41,45,495) (30,56,709)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C) 1,41,750 2,99,731
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 7,22,731 4,23,000
8,64,481 7,22,731
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 8,07,461 6,64,560
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 57,020 58,171
8,64,481 7,22,731

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

ViR

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 20th day of May 2019

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board

e
Coodeer frigess;

Director

HEADMAN MERCANTILE PVT. LTD.HEADMAN MERCANTILE f

%

Director

VT. LTD.

Director
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26. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A.

b)

Corporate Information

Headman Mercantile Private Limited (The Company) is a deemed Public limited company, private
company being a subsidiary of Listed Public Company domiciled and incorporated in India. It is a part of
a group leading in real estate activities in Eastern India. The registered office of the Company is situated

at 8/1, Lalbazar Street, Bikaner Building, 1 Floor, Room No.10, Kolkata-700001. The principle bucinace
activity of the company is Real Estate Development.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred
to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant
provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as
applicable

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.The normal
operating cycle of the company has been considered as 12 months.

Use of estimates and management judgments :

The preparation of financial statement in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles

of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assu mptions that affect the reported

balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the

disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in

future periods.

i) Key estimates and assumptions :
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
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i)

Revenue recognition, contract costs and valuation of unbilled revenue

The Company uses the percentage of-completion method for recognition of revenue, accounting for
unbilled revenue and contract cost thereon for its real estate and contractual projects. The
percentage of completion is measured by reference to the stage of the projects and contracts
determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the estimated total contract costs. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the
Company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforte or
costs to be expended. Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion,
the extent of the contract cost incurred, the estimated total contract revenue and contract cost and
the recoverability of the contracts. These estimates are based on events existing at the end of each
reporting date.

For revenue recognition for projects executed through joint development arra ngements, refer
clause (i) below as regards estimates and assumptions involved.

iii) Estimation of net realisable value for inventory property (including land advance)

Inventory property is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).

NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices
existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions
identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical market serving the same real
estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices
at the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction
and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion,

With respect to Land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of
future cash flows, which depends on the estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a
project will be completed, the expected date of completion, the discount rate used and the
estimation of sale prices and construction costs.

c) Revenue Recognition-
Revenue is recognized as follows:

Vi.

Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on Percentage Completion Method.
Revenue recognition starts when 25 % of estimated project cost excluding land and marketing
cost is incurred, atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements
with buyers and Atleast 10 % of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any other
legally enforceable documents are realised at the reporting date in respect of each of the
contracts and it is reasonable to expect that the parties to such contracts will comply with the
payment terms as defined in the contracts.

Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on "Percentage of Completion Method"
measured by reference to the survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the
client before finalisation of projects accounts.

Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax, if any, net of sales return.

Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise
stated

Rental income from assets is recognised for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate
collection is considered doubtful. Rental income is exclusive of service tax

Income from interest is accounted for on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable rate of interest.
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d) Borrowing Costs

e)

g)

h)

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are carried as part of
the cost of such asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they are incurred.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an
indication that both tangible and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized
wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized.

Inventories

Constructed properties, shown as work in progress, includes the cost of land (including development
rights and land under agreements to purchase), internal development costs, external development
costs, construction costs, overheads, borrowing costs, construction materials including material lying at
respective sites, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their
present location and condition and is valued at lower of cost/ estimated cost and net realizable value.
On completion of projects, unsold stocks are transferred to project finished stock under the head
“Inventory” and the same is carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.

Finished Goods — Flats: Valued at cost and net realizable value.

Land Inventory: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Retirement Benefits
No such benefits are payable to any employee.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of
estimation if the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and the amount of
obligation can be reliably estimated.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Possible future or present obligations that may but will probably not require outflow of resources or
where the same can not be reliably estimated is disclosed as contingent liability in the financial
statement.

Taxes on Income

i.  Tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax is determined in respect of
taxable income for the year based on applicable tax rates and laws.

ii. Deferred tax Asset/liability is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing
differences being the differences between taxable incomes and accounting income that originates in
one year and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent year and measured using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date to reassess their reliability.

iii. Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the
book profit. Taxes paid under MAT a available as a set off against regular corporate tax payable in
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subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act. MAT paid in a year is charged to the
statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset
only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In
the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-
tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and
shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at
each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

i) Segment Reporting
The company has identified that its operating activity is a single primary business segment viz. Real
Estate Development and Services carried out in India. Accordingly, whole of India has been
considered as one geographical segment

k} Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

[) Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash & cash on deposit with banks and corporations. The
Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

m) Financial Instruments

» Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the company’s statement of financial
position when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
company determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Financial assets —Subsequent measurement
The Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification which is as follows:
e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets heald for sale in the
near term and those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss,
e Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are
stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable
amounts based on the ageing of the receivables balance and historical experience. Additionally,
a large number of minor-réceivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
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impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems

them not to be collectible.

Debt instruments at amortised cost:

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables,

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A “debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are met:

i. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

ii. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL. Debt instruments included within the
FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

e Financial assets at fair value through OCI

All equity investments, except investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, falling
within the scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). The company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument by instrument basis
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the company decides to
designate an equity instrument at fair value through OCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.

Financial assets —Derecognition

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assets expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset. Upon derecognition of equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCl, the associated fair value changes of that equity instrument is transferred from OC| to Retained

Earnings.

Financial liabilities -
Initial recognition and measurement
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Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including

bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement

The Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification which is as

follows:

¢ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading,
if any, and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

e Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Interest bearing loans and borrowings including debentures issued by the company are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR).
Amortized cost is calculated by ta king into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fee or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortized is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

® Financial liabilities ~Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
expires.

n) Fair Value measurement

The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

o In the principal market for the assets or liability or

© In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The company
uses valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable, or
P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

700001

Particulars Year ended 31.03.19 | Year ended 31.03.18
Profit before tax 27,57,517 22,94,430
Income tax expense calculated @ 26.00% (P.Y: 25.75%) 7,16,954 5,90,816
Effect of itemns not allowable for Tax purpose 13,779 -
Effect of Allowances for Tax purpese (2,90,04c) -
Other differences 70,252 (97,816)
Total 5,20,000 4,93,000
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years (4,714) 22,496
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 5,15,286 5,15,496

The tax rate used for the year 2017-18 and 2018-19 reconciliations above is the corporate tax payable on taxable profits under the

Income Tax Act, 1961.

Related Party Disclosure
Related Party Relationship

Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd — Halding

Transactions & Balanaces :

No related party transactions nor any balances have been reported by the management.

In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course of
business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingent
liability except stated and informed by the Management.

Contingent Liabilities:- Nil (P. Y. Nil}

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures As on 31.03.2019

Particulars at
{a) Financial Assets

(i)  Trade receivables

{ii} Cash and cash equivalents

{iii) Other financial assets
Total Financial Assets
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i}  Borrowings

(i) Trade and other payables

{iii) Other financial liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

Ason 31.03.2016
Particulars
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables
(i) Cashand cash equivalents
(iii} Other financial assets
Total Financial Assets
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i} Trade and other payables
(1if)  Other financial liabilities
Tatal Financial Liabilities

Capital Requirements

For the purpose of the Company's capital management,

Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
669 669 669
8,64,481 8,64,481 8,64,481
1,72,796 1,72,796 1,72,796
10,37,946 10,37,946 10,37,946
1,49,48,736 1,49,48,736 1,49,48,736
53,83,461 54,41,593 54,141,593
2,03,32,197 2,03,90,329 2,03,90,329
Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
676 676 676
7,22,731 7,22,731 7,22,731
1,72,756 1,72,796 1,72,796
2,96,203 2,96,203 8,96,203
1,75,93,777 1,75,93,777 1,75,93,777
6,000 6,000 6,000
58,77,944 58,76,435 59,76,433

2,34,77,721

2,35,76,210

2,35,76,210

capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity

reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise

the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustrments in ligﬁt' j

|2 ‘1|'l
;'i 5 ,"..}

3 Jf

‘changes in economic conditions and the requirements of




Headman Mercantile Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104940

Notes to the financial statements as on

i

the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company maonitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash
and cash equivalents

Pl 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
(in Rs.) {in Rs.)

Borrowings (long-term and short-term, including current

maturities of long term borrowings) LA R0ean Lt
Trade payables - 6,000
Other payables (current and non-current, excluding current

maturities of long term borrowings) S5,54461 S871.2%
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (8,64,481) (7,22,731)
Net debt 1,94,67,716 2,27,54,990
Equity share capital 1,00,100 1,00,100
Other equity 1,42,22,337 1,19,80,106
Total Capital 1,43,22,437 1,20,80,206
Gearing ratio 0.74 0.53

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and barrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and March
31, 2018.

32 Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities Is to finance and support Cormpany's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of
these risks. The Company's senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company's
senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuatebecause of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate riskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and commaodity/ real estate risk.
The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange or commodity derivative contracts. Accordingly, there is no significant exposure
to the market risk other than interest risk.

(I} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Campany has borrowed fund from bank at fixed rate borrowings. The Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps.

(i) Price risk
The Cornpany has not made any investments for trading purposes. The surpluses have been deployed in bank deposits as
explained above.
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Notes to the financial statements as on

financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including refundable joint development deposits, security deposits, loans to employees and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances before transfer
of ownership, therefore, substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored. The impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition,
a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral
as security. The Company’s credit period generally ranges from 30-60 days.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars As on 31.03.2019 As on 31.03.2018
More than 6 months 669 —

Others - 676

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each

counterparty.

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the
year subject to approval of the Board. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss
through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of
the statement of financial position at 31 March 2019 and 2018 is the carrying amounts.

Liguidity Risk

The Company's investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the tenets of safety, liquidity and return.
The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. In case of
short term requirements, it obtains short-term loans from its Bankers.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To:*
The Members of
KASTURI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KASTURI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statemen"t of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flowsfor the year then ended
andasummary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Sforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, and its
profit, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and iﬂ_f_orm-i_.n_gt..-c'a'ur opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. < s




Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not includethe financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the othér information and we do not express
any formof assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility of the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the. Financial Position and Financial Performance, Cash Flowsand the
statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standardsspecified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Co'mpany or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing't_ﬁ_é"qt};ﬁipany’s financial reporting process.




Auditor’sResponsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
contrals.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors

n (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaiuatlngﬁtﬁe results of our work; and (ii) to

evaluate the effect of any identified m[sstatements m the fing) ma{ statements.




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit. .

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those hooks.

¢. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements ‘comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2019, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to p;he;-"iinatters to be included in the
Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11-"O_f__ '_"_T'J;ébmpanies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014: 74

\
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i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise.

ii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under,
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The
question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 20.05.2019



“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of KASTURI TIE-UP PRIVATE
LIMITED, as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

1)

2)

3)

5)

6.)

The company does not have any fixed assets hence the clause is not applicable.

a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals,
In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them.

b) In our opinion and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its
business.

c) On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-
progress. As in earlier years, work-in-progress has been determined by the
management on the basis of physical verification. The discrepancies ascertained on
physical verification between the physical stock and the book records of inventory
were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

The company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.
Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has neither given any guarantees
or security nor has made any investments nor given a loan covered under the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable.

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods gnd service tax, cess and any other

statutory dues with the appropriate=authofities and there is no arrears of
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10.)

11.)

12.)

13))

14.)

15.)

outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to
information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has duly repaid loan taken from banks. Further it
does not have any outstanding from any financial institutions or government nor has it any
outstanding debenture.

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was
no money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for
which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud
by the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel
during the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
neither made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Hence clause is not applicable.




16.)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
" (Firm Regn No: 324428E)

A

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 20.05.2019




Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U5110SWE2005PTC105031

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2019

Particulars Note As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment o g =
(b) Intangible 3 - A
{c) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 180,125 180,125
Total Non - Current Assets 180,125 180,125
Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 39,885,842 38,060,919
(b) Financial Assets
{i) Trade receivables 6 5,240 5,231
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 741,285 496,998
(iii) Other financial assets 8 - -
(c) Current Tax Assets 9 304,104 304,104
(d) Other current assets 10 7 =
Total Current Assets 40,936,471 38,867,252
Total Assets 41,116,596 39,047,377
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 100,000 100,000
(b) Other Equity 12 16,478,580 13,901,245
Total equity 16,578,580 14,001,245
Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 3,624,627 6,275,775
(i1} Other financial liabilities 14 2,083,543 1,850,393
Total non-current liabilities 5,708,170 8,126,168
Current liabilities
(&) Financial Liabilities
(i} Barrowings 15 13,978,609 12,746,368
{ii} Trade and other payables 16 - 67,145
{iti) Other financial liabilities 12 4,301,237 3,469,451
(b) Other current liabilities 18 - -
(c) Provisions 19 550,000 637,000
Total Current Liabilities 18,829,846 16,919,964
Total liabilities 24,538,016 25,046,132
Total Equity & Liabilities 41,116,596 39,047,376

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

Chaﬂerethants

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place; 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 20th day of May 2019

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For and behalf of the Board
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Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US1109WB2005PTC105031

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2019

Particulars Note Year ended 31.03.19 | Year ended 31.03.18
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 4,397,016 4,397,016
Other income 21 3,623
Total Revenue 4,400,639 4,397,016
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 1,824,923 1,293,069
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 23 (1,824,923) (1,293,069)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 E =
Finance costs 24 1,008,886 1,160,597
Other expenses 25 258,304 272,583
Total expenses 1,267,190 1,433,190
Profit before tax 3,133,449 2,963,826
Le ‘ncome tax expenses
= Current tax 550,000 637,000
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 6,114 18,223
Total tax expense 556,114 655,223
Profit after tax 2,577,335 2,308,603
Other comprehensive income
[tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss -
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income =
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 5 2
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,577,335 2,308,603
I ings per equity share
—profit available for Equity Shareholders 2,577,335 2,308,603
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 10,000 10,000
Basic earnings per share 257.73 230.86
Diluted earnings per share 257.73 230.86

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Tl
Vineet Kheten
Proprietor
Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.
The 20th day of May 2019

For and behalf of the Board
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Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US1109WRB2005PTC105031

[Nntes to the financial statements ason As at 31.03.19

As at 31.03.18

Note 4 Financial Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposits 180,125 180,125
TOTAL 180,125 180,125
Note 5 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value) g

Work in Progress 14,453,517 12,628,594

Finished Goods 25,432,325 25,432,325
Total Inventories 39,885,842 38,060,919
Note 6 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade receivables 5,240 5231
Receivables from related parties 2 =
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -
TOTAL 5,240 5,231

All the trade receivables are Unsecured, considered good and does not require any provision or allowance

for doubtful debts

Note 7 Financial Assets {Cash and Cash Equivalents)

(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 650,817
(b)) Cashin hand 50,468
(c) Cheques, drafts on hand -

(d ) Others

446,380
50,618

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 741,285

496,998

Note 8 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Other Advances (Unsecured, considered good) -

TOTAL 5

Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets
Advance Income Tax and TDS ' 304,104

304,104

TOTAL 304,104

304,104

Note 10 Other current assets
Other Advances =

TOTAL -
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|Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.19 Asat31.03.18 |

Note 11 Equity Share Capital

(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares 20,000 20,000
Total Amount 200,000 200,000

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares E 10,000 10,000
Total Amount 100,000 100,000

¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Qutstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 10,000 10,000
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 10,000 10,000
Percentage of total shares held 100.00% 100.00%
e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled ta receive remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

g) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 9,800 9,800
Percentage of total shares held 98.00% 98.00%
Ravi Prakash Pincha *
Number of Shares 100 100
Percentage of total shares held 1.00% 1.00%
Pradeep Kumar Pugalia *
Number of Shares 100 100
Percentage of total shares held 1.00% ' 1.00%
* Both the shareholders holding 100 Shares each are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty &
Infrastructure Ltd
gl Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares = ~
Total Amount - -
h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back
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Notes to the financial statements as on

As at 31.03.19

As at 31.03.18

Note 12 Other equity

Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss

As at the beginning of the year

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Ind AS Adjustments

As at the end of the year
Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income

Total

Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)
Secured - at amortised cost

 Term Loan from Bank
* The loan is secured against first charge over property classified
under inventories and lease rental receivable from the property.
Loan is repayable in 86 equal manthly installment of Rs.
2,865,349/ (incl. interest) starting from 05.11.13 and last
installment falling due on 05.10.21. The rate of interest is Base

Batm Olaie 3 oM 08

Total nhon-current borrowings

Note 14 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)

Security Deposits

Total

Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings

(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)
From Related Parties

From other than Related Parties

From NBFC
From Others

Total

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises

Other than above
Total

13,901,245 11,592,642
2,577,335 2,308,603
16,478,580 13,901,245
16,478,580 13,901,245
3,624,627 6,275,775
3,624,627 6,275,775
2,083,543 1,850,393
2,083,543 1,850,393
11,372,528 10,333,788
2,606,081 2,412,580
13,978,609 12,746,368
: 67,145

67,145
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Notes to the financial statements as on | Asat31.03.19

l

As at 31.03.18

Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities

Current maturity of long term debt 2,660,964 2,415,270
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 61,934 64,932
Advances from other 1,340,872 821,884
Other payable 75,142 167,364
Statutory Liabilities 162,325 .
Total 4,301,237 3,469,451
Note 18 Other Current Liabilities

Advances from Customer and Others

Total - -
Note 19 Provisions

Provision for Income Tax 550,000 637,000
Total 550,000 637,000




Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105031

Notes to the financial statements Year ended 31.03.19 Year ended 31.03.18

Note 20 Revenue from Operations .
Rental & Other Charges 4,397,016 4,397,016
TOTAL 4,397,016 4,397,016

Note 21 Other Income
Sundry Balances written back (net) 3,623 -

Total 3,623 -

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses

Other Construction Expenses 671,014 216,338
Interest Paid 1,153,909 1,076,731

Consumption 1,824,923 1,293,069

Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & Finished Goods

Opening Inventory of Work in Progress 12,628,594 11,335,525
Opening Inventory of Finished Goods 25,432,325 25,432,325
Sub Total (A) 38,060,919 36,767,850
Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress 14,453,517 12,628,594
Less : Closing Inventory of Finished Goods 25,432,325 25,432,325
Sub Total (B) 39,885,842 38,060,919
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B) (1,824,923) (1,293,069)

Note 24 Finance Cost

Interest on Borrowed fund 775,736 951,741
Other Borrowing Cost
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 233,150 207,060
Finance Charges - 1,796
Total 1,008,886 1,160,597
Note 25 Others Expenses
Rates & Taxes 4,650 4,710
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,278 -
Filing Fees 2,498 2,579
Repairs & Maintenance : 237,770 259,468
Professional Charges 7,100 800
Interest Penalty charges 8 36
Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees 5,000 5,000
Total R 258,304 272,593
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Notes to the financial statements

A. Share Capital

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Equity Share Capital as on 01.04.2017 100,000
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year .
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2018 100,000
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year

Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2019 100,000
B. Other Equity

Other Equity

Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company Amount (Rs.)
Balance at 1 April 2017 11,592,642
Transfers 4
Profit for the year 2,308,603
Add:IND AS adjustmnents

Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 13,901,245
Balance at 31 March 2018 13,901,245
Transfers £
Profit for the Year 2,577,335
Add:IND AS adjustmnents =
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 16,478,580

Balance at 31 March 2019

16,478,580




Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

For the year ended For the year ended
Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2019 31st March,2018
{Amountin ) (Amount in °)
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 3,133,449 2,963,826
Adjustments for
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 233,150 207,060
Interest Paid 775,736 1,008,886 951,741 1,158,801
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 4,142,335 4,122,627
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventaries (671,014) (216,338}
{Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (9) 12,158
(Increase) / Decrease of Advances < =
{Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets . 7
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (67,145) (6,554)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities 589,091 281,354
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities - {149,077) - 70,620
Cash generated from operations - 3,993,258 4,193,247
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 643,114 547,717
Cash Flow before Exceptional ltems 3,350,144 3,645,530
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 3,350,144 3,645,530
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets = E
Net cash from investing activities - =
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 1,232,241 586,212
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (2,405,454) (2,198,591)
Interest Paid (1,932,643} (3,105,856) (2,062,328) (3,674,707}
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (3,105,856) (3,674,707)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 244,288 (29,177)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 496,998 526,175
741,285 496,998
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 690,817 446,380
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 50,468 50,618
741,285 496,998

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Vil

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 20th day of May 2019

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board
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26. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A,

b)

Corporate Information

Kasturi Tie-up Private Limited (The Company) is a deemed Public limited company, private company
being a subsidiary of Listed Public Company domiciled and incorporated in India. It is a part of a group
leading in real estate activities in Eastern India. The registered office of the Company is situated at 8/1,
Lalbazar Street, Bikaner Building, 1 Floor, Room No.10, Kolkata-700001. The principle business activity of
the company is Real Estate Development.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements :

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred
to as “Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant
provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as
applicable

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the cha racteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date

Furctional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.The normal
operating cycle of the company has been considered as 12 months.

Use of estimates and management judgments :

The preparation of financial statement in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles

of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

balances of revenues, expenses, assets and lia bilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the

disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in

future periods. ' ;

i) Key estimates and assumptions :
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared,
Existing circumstances and assumptiens about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstar_]__cjé' iSik at are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes

are reflected in the assumptions when theysdecur.
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ii)

Revenue recognition, contract costs and valuation of unbilled revenue

The Company uses the percentage of-completion method for recognition of revenue, accounting for
unbilled revenue and contract cost thereon for its real estate and contractual projects. The
percentage of completion is measured by reference to the stage of the projects and contracts
determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the estimated total contract costs. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the
Company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or
costs to be expended. Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion,
the extent of the contract cost incurred, the estimated total contract revenue and contract cost and
the recoverability of the contracts. These estimates are based on events existing at the end of each
reporting date.

For revenue recognition for projects executed through joint development arrangements, refer
clause (i) below as regards estimates and assumptions invaolved.

ii) Estimation of net realisable value for inventory property (including land advance)

Inventory property is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).

NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices
existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions
identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical market serving the same real
estate segment.

- NRV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices

at the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction
and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion.

With respect to Land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of
future cash flows, which depends on the estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a
project will be completed, the expected date of completion, the discount rate used and the
estimation of sale prices and construction costs.

c) Revenue Recognition-
Revenue is recognized as follows:

vi.

Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on Percentage Completion Method.
Revenue recognition starts when 25 % of estimated project cost excluding land and marketing
cost is incurred, atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements
with buyers and Atleast 10 % of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any other
legally enforceable documents are realised at the reporting date in respect of each of the
contracts and it is reasonable to expect that the parties to such contracts will comply with the
payment terms as defined in the contracts.

Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on "Percentage of Completion Method"
measured by reference to the survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the
client before finalisation of projects accounts.

Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax, if any, net of sales return.

Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise
stated

Rental income from assets is recognised for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate
collection is considered doubtful. Rental income is exclusive of service tax

Income from interest is accounted for on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable rate of interest.

D
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d)

f)

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are carried as part of
the cost of such asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they are incurred.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an
indication that both tangible and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized
wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized. ;

Inventories

Constructed properties, shown as work in progress, includes the cost of land (including development
rights and land under agreements to purchase), internal development costs, external development
costs, construction costs, overheads, borrowing costs, construction materials including material lying at
respective sites, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their
present location and condition and is valued at lower of cost/ estimated cost and net realizable value.
On completion of projects, unsold stocks are transferred to project finished stock under the head
“Inventory” and the same is carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.

Finished Goods - Flats: Valued at cost and net realizable value,

Land Inventory: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Retirement Benefits
No such benefits are payable to any employee.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of
estimation if the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and the amount of
obligation can be reliably estimated.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Possible future or present obligations that may but will probably not require outflow of resources or
where the same can not be reliably estimated is disclosed as contingent liability in the financial
statement.

Taxes on Income

i.  Tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax is determined in respect of
taxable income for the year based on applicable tax rates and laws.

ii. Deferred tax Asset/liability is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing
differences being the differences between taxable incomes and accounting income that originates in
one year and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent year and measured using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date to reassess their reliability.

ii. Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the
book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular corporate tax payable in
/ N\




KASTURI TIE-UP PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata — 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC105031

subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act, MAT paid in a year is charged to the
statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Compa ny recognizes MAT credit available as an asset
only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In
the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-
tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and
shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at
each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

i) Segment Reporting

The company has identified that its operating activity is a single primary business segment viz. Real
Estate Development and Services carried out in India, Accordingly, whole of India has been
considered as one geographical segment

k) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to

_equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

I) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash & cash on deposit with banks and corporations. The
Company considers all highly liquid investments with 2 remaining maturity at the date of purchase
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash
management and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

m) Financial Instruments
» Financial Instruments - Initial recoghition and measurement

v

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the company’s statement of financial
position when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
company determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Financial assets ~Subsequent measurement

The Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification which is as follows:

® Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for sale in the
near term and those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or Joss.

e Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are
stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable
amounts based on the ageing of the receivables balance and historical experience. Additionally,
a large number of minor receivab!es;ﬂre'-.. rouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
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L]

impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems

them not to be collectible.

Debt instruments at amortised cost:

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the-amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,
This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses atrising from impairment are
recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables,

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are met:

i. The objective of the business mode! is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

ii. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI, Debt instruments included within the
FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTQOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

e Financial assets at fair value through OCl

All equity investments, except investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, falling
within the scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income (OCl). The company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument by instrument basis
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the company decides to
designate an equity instrument at fair value through OCl, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.

Financial assets —Derecognition

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assets expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset. Upon derecognition of equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCI, the associated fair value changes of that equity instrument is transferred from OCI to Retained
Earnings.

Financial liabilities —
Initial recognition and measurement
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Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including

bank overdrafts. :

Subseguent measurement

The Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification which is as

follows:

® Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading,
if any, and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

¢ Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Interest bearing loans and borrowings including debentures issued by the company are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR).
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fee or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortized is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss,

* Financial liabilities ~Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
expires.

n) Fair Value measurement

The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

© In the principal market for the assets or liability or

© In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The company
uses valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable, or
P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period,
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0) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance.
The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and [/ or all trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

’727 Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate ; 1
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2019 March, 2018
Profit before tax 3133449 2963826
Income tax expense calculated @ 26.00% 814697 763185
(2018: 25.75%)
Effect of tax relating to items not allowable -
Effect of tax relating to items allowable - ---
Difference in tax rates of subsidiary companies - ---
Effect of income not taxable - -
Other differences (264697) (126185)
Benefit of previously unrecognised tax loss to -
reduce current tax expense
Benefit of previously unrecognised tax loss to -—- -
reduce deferred tax expense
Total 550000 637000
Adjustments recognised in the current year in 6114 18223
relation to the current tax of prior years
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 556114 655223
The tax rate used for the year 2018-19 and 2019-2020 reconciliations above is the corporate
tax payable on taxable profits under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
i =
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28 Related Party Disclosure
Related Party Relationship
Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd — Holding
Transactions & Balanaces :
No related party transactions nor any balances have been reported by the management.
In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the
29 stated value if realised in ordinary course of business. The provision for all known liabilities
is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingent
liability except stated and informed by the Management.
30 Contingent Liabilities:- Nil (P. Y. Nil)
31. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures As on 31.03.2019
Particulars Carrying Ariiiiesg Fair Value
Value Cost
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 5240 5240 5240
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 741285 741285 741285
(iii)Other financial assets 180125 180125 180125
Total Financial Assets 949645 949645 949645
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17603236 17603236 17603236
(i)Trade and other payables -—- - -
(iii) Other financial liabilities 6384780 6384780 6384780
Total Financial Liabilities 25892864 25892864 258928&
As on 31.03.2018
Particulars Edying Anmariecy Fair Value
Value Cost
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 5231 5231 5231
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 496998 496998 496998
(iii)Other financial assets 180125 180125 180125
Total Financial Assets 682354 682354 682354
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19022143 19022143 19022143
(iijTrade and other payables 67145 67145 67145
(ili) Other financial liabilities 5319844 5319844 5319844
Total Financial Liabilities 24409132 24409132 24409132
A. | Capital Requirements
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity
capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of
the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise
the shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital stru,gt‘ﬁﬁg-;é:ﬁ:ﬂf:ma kes adjustments in light of changes in

i 5 S N
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economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a
gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes
within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash
and cash equivalents

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
{in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Borrowings  (long-term
and short—tern.’l,. including 2026420:3 21437413
current maturities of long
term borrowings)
Trade payables = 67145
Other payables (current
and non-current,
excluding current 3723816 2904574
maturities of long term
borrowings)
Less': Cash and cash 741285 496998
-equivalents
Net debt 23246731 23912134
Equity share capital 1,00,000 1,00,000
Other equity 16478580 13901245
‘Total Capital 16578580 14001245
Gearing ratio 0.71 0.59

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst
other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing
loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

33

Disclosure of Financial Instruments

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support Company's
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive
directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior
S RN :
management oversees the managemm@iﬁg’b@ﬂsks. The Company’s senior management

Y
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-

is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Co mpany. The financial risk committee provides
assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities
are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,

‘measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The

Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarised below:

(a) | Market risk:
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuatebecause of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of
risk: interest rate riskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/
real estate risk. The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange or
commodity derivative contracts. Accordingly, there is no significant exposure to the
market risk other than interest risk,
(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
The Company has borrowed fund from bank at fixed rate borrowings. The
Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps.
(i) Price risk
The Company has not made any investments for trading purposes. The surpluses
e have been deployed in bank deposits as explained above.
(b) | Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial

instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed

to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its

financing activities, including refundable joint development deposits, security

deposits, loans to employees and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

® Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk is managed by
requiring customers to pay advances before transfer of ownership, therefore,
substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

® Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by
each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored. The impairment analysis is performed at
each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large
number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed
for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not
hold collateral as security. The Company’s credit period generally ranges from 30-
60 days.
The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars Ason 31.03.2019 | Ason 31.03.2018
More than 6 months 5240 e
Others - 5231
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Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the
Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within
credit limits assigned to each counterparty.

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an
annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the
Board. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate
financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments,

(c)

Liquidity Risk

The Company’s investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are
guided by the tenets of safety, liquidity and return. The Company manages its
liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due. In case of short term requirements, it obtains short-term loans
from its Bankers.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Tao
The Members of
TRITON COMMERCIAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TRITON COMMERCIAL PRIVATE
LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flowsfor the year then ended
andasummary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In-our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, and its
profit, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
= described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion. '

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole;-and. in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. ;) KN
¥ | " /.(I
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Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The

other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not includethe financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any formof assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility of the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance, Cash Flowsand the
statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standardsspecified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the cgm’pany’s financial reporting process.
— S




Auditor’sResponsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
" material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professipnal judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
‘due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

fesulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors

in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating/__t-hé results of our work; and (i} to

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in theﬁin ficial statements.

.‘ .Il \



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
- relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, -Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2019, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect-te.other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 Gfit :

Rules, 2014 =




i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The
question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 20.05.2019



“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of TRITON COMMERCIAL PRIVATE
LIMITED, as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

1, a)

b)

<)

The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the
management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items
which considering the size and nature of operations of the company appears to be
reasonable. Pursuant to such program, no material discrepancies between hook
records and physical inventory have been noticed on physical verification,

The company does not have any immovable property under the fixed assets, hence
the clause is not applicable.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them.

In our opinion and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its
business.

On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-
progress. As in earlier years, work-in-progress has been determined by the
management on the basis of physical verification. The discrepancies ascertained on
physical verification between the physical stock and the book records of inventory
were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

3) The company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.
Hence clause is not applicable.

4.) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has neither given any guarantees

or security nor has made any investments nor given a loan covered under the provisions of




9.)

10.)

11.)

12.)

13.)

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable.

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under cub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, gootjs and service tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of
outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to
information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. '

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has duly repaid loan taken from banks. Further it
does not have any outstanding from any financial institutions or government nor has it any
outstanding debenture.

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was
no money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for
which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud
by the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel
during the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the

transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of

Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements

etc., as required by the applicable accountingg_gﬂdarg;.
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14.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
neither made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.

15.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Hence clause is not applicable.

16.)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

R

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 20.05.2019




Triton Commercial Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2018

Particulars Note As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18
ASSETS .
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 56,008 88,308
(b) Intangible 2 = ¥
(c) Deferred Tax Assets 3 4,589 i
(¢) Financial Assets
(i} Other Financial Assets 4 180,125 180,125
Total Non - Current Assets 240,732 268,433
Current assets
(@) Inventories 5 36,748,742 35,327,871
(b} Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 1,024 1,015
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 736,967 453,545
(iii) Other financial assets 8 . -
(c) Current Tax Assets 9 304,104 315,540
(d) Other current assets 10 - .
Total Current Assets 37,790,837 36,137,976
Total Assets 38,031,569 36,406,409
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 100,000 100,000
(b) Other Equity 12 17,587,951 15,060,104
Total equity 17,687,951 15,160,104
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 3,624,627 6,275,775
(i) Other financial liahilities 14 765,177 679,553
Total non-current liabilities 4,389,804 6,955,328
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
{1} Borrowings 15 8,803,555 9,063,468
{ii) Trade and other payables 16 - 6,000
(i) Other financial liabilities 17 6,440,258 4,583,508
(b) Other current liabilities 18 = =
(c) Provisions 19 710,000 638,000
Total Current Liabilities 15,953,813 14,290,976
Total liabilities 20,343,617 21,246,304
Total Equity & Liabilities 38,031,569 36,406,408

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

i
Vineet Kheten
Proprietor
Membership No.060270
Place: 38, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 20th day of May 2019

2

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For and behalf of the Board
TRITO COMMERC!ALPVT LTOL
Ecrc'l"fl’]'““‘

D! ractor
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Trit;in Commercial Private Limited
1st-Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
ZIN: US1109WB2005PTC104548

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2019

Kolkata - 700 001.
The 20th day of May 2019

Particulars Note Year ended 31.03.19 | Year ended 31.03.18
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 4,397,016 4,397,016
Other income 21 z =
Total Revenue 4,397,016 4,397,016
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 1,420,871 964,067
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 23 (1,420,871) (964,067)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 32,300 13,692
Finance costs 24 861,360 1,029,630
Other expenses 25 259,128 252,420
Total expenses 1,152,788 1,295,743
Profit before tax 3,244,228 3,101,273
Les Income tax expenses
Zurrent tax 710,000 638,000
- Tax Adjustment Far Earlier Year 10,980 11,126
- Deferred Tax (4,599)
Total tax expense 716,381 649,126
Profit after tax 2,527,847 2,452,147
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss =
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,527,847 2,452,147
" -nings per equity share
-_.rofit available for Equity Shareholders 2,527,847 2,452,147
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 10,000 10,000
Basic earnings per share 252.78 245,21
Diluted earnings per share 252.78 245.21
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants TRITON CO MERC[A.L PV-['—LT D.
\/\\‘/ v decp hize’
Vineet Kheten diugspr
A TRITON COMMERCIAL PVT. L1D.
Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street

%% :

Director




Triton Commercial Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548

Notes to the financial statements as on Asat 31.03.19

Note 3 Deferred tax assets (net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets 4,599

As at 31.03.18

TOTAL 4,599

Note 4 Financial Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposits 180,125 180,125
TOTAL " 180,125 180,125
Note 5 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)

‘Work in Progress 9,088,465 7,667,594
Finished Goods 27,660,277 27,660,277
Total Inventories 36,748,742 35,327,871
Note 6 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade receivables 1,024 1,015
Receivables from related parties - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -
1,024 1,015

All the trade receivables are Unsecured, considered good and does not require any provision or allowance for

doubtful debts

Note 7 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)

(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 697,383
{b) Cash in hand 39,584
(c) Cheques, drafts on hand -

(d ) Others

452,815
40,734

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 736,967

493,549

Note 8 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Other Advances (Unsecured, considered good) -

TOTAL =

Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets
Advance Income Tax and TDS 304,104

315,540

TOTAL 304,104

315,540

Note 10 Other current assets
Other Advances 5

TOTAL
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Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18

Note 11 Equity Share Capital
(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares 20,000 20,000

Total Amount 200,000 200,000

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 2 10,000 10,000

Total Amount 100,000 100,000

¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 10,000 10,000
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
' RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 10,000 10,000
Percentage of total shares held 100.00% 100.00%
e} The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of

dividend and repayment of capital
| he Lompany has only one class of equity shares naving par value value ot Ks, 1U per share. tach holder of equity shares

is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event
of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held
by the shareholders.
g) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding

Name of Equity Shareholders

RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 9,800 9,800

Percentage of total shares held 98.00% 98.00%
Ravi Prakash Pincha *

Number of Shares 100 100

Percentage of total shares held 1.00% 1.00%
Pradeep Kumar Pugalia *

Number of Shares 100 100

Percentage of total shares held 1.00% 1.00%

* Both the shareholders holding 100 Shares each are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty &
Infrastructure Ltd
g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares - -
Total Amount - -
h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back

Note 12 Other equity
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Notes to the financial statements as on

Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss

As at the beginning of the year
Add; Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end of the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income
Total

Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)
Secured - at amortised cost
Term Loan from Bank

The loan is secured against first charge over property classified under

inventories and lease rental receivable from the property. Loan is

repayable in 96 equal monthly installment of Rs. 2,65,349/- (incl. interest|
starting from 05.11.13 and last installment falling due on 05.10.21. The

rate of interest is Base Rate Plus 2.60 %

Total non-current borrowings

Note 14 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)

Security Deposits
Total

Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings
(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)
From Related Parties
From other than Related Parties
From NBFC
From Others
Total

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises

Other than above

Total

Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities

As at 31.03.19

As at 31.03.18

15,060,104 12,607,957
2,527,847 2,452,147
17,587,951 15,060,104
17,587,951 15,060,104
3,624,627 6,275,775
3,624,627 6,275,775
765,177 679,553
765,177 679,553
8,657,172 8,051,908
146,383 1,011,560
8,803,555 9,063,468
: 6,000

: 6,000
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Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18
Current maturity of long term debt 2,660,964 2,415,270
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 61,934 64,932
Advances from other 3,521,488 1,972,123
Other payable 73,953 131,182
Statutory Liabilities 121,919 =
Total 6,440,258 4,583,508
MNote 18 Other Current Liabilities

Advances from Customer and Others =
Total =
Note 19 Provisions

Provision for Income Tax 710,000 638,000
Total 710,000 638,000
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Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations
Rental Income -

Year ended 31.03.19

Year ended 31.03.18

TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income
Interest Income

Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses
Interest Paid

Consumption

Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & Finished Goods
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress
Opening Inventory of Finished Goods

Sub Total (A)

Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
Less : Closing Inventory of Finished Goods

Sub Total (B)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)

Note 24 Finance Cost

Interest on Borrowed fund

Other Borrowing Cost
Notional Interest on Security Deposits
Finance Charges

Total

Note 25 Others Expenses

Rates & Taxes

Filing Fees

Repairs & Maintenance

Professional Charges

Miscellaneous Expenses

Interest Penalty charges

Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees

Total

4,397,016 4,397,016
4,397,016 4,397,016
671,014 216,338
749,857 747,729
1,420,871 964,067
7,667,594 6,703,527
27,660,277 27,660,277
35,327,871 34,363,804
9,088,465 7,667,594
27,660,277 27,660,277
36,748,742 35,327,871
(1,420,871) (964,067)
775,736 951,741
85,624 76,042
- 1,847
861,360 1,029,630
4,650 4,710
2,498 3,079
237,770 237,768
7,100 800
2,110
1,063
5,000 5,000
259,128 252,420
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Notas to the financial statements

A. Share Capital

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital as on 01.04.2017 100,000
ndd; Addition/(Deletion ) during the year -
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2018 100,000
Add: Addition/|Deletion ) during the year -
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2019 100,000

B. Other Equity
Other Equity

Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company

Amount (Rs.)

Balance at 1 April 2017 12,607,957
Transfers —
Profit for the year 2,452,147
Add:IND AS adjustments -
Other comprehensive income .
Total comprehensive income for the year 15,060,104
Balance at 31 March 2018 15,060,104
Transfers -
Profit for the Year 2,452,147
Add:IND AS adjustments £
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 17,512,252

Balance at 21 March 2019

17,512,252




Triton Commercial Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

For the year ended For the year ended
Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2019 31st March,2018
(Amount in °) (Amount in °)
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 3,244,228 3,101,273
Adjustments for _
Depreciation & Amortisation 32,300 13,692
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 85,624 76,042
Interest Paid 775,736 893,660 951,741 1,041,475
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 4,137,888 4,142,748
{Increase) / Decrease in Inventories {671,014) (216,338)
{Increase} / Decrease in Trade receivables 9) 12,157
{Increase) / Decrease of Advances - 111,362
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets - =
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (6,000) -
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities 1,614,055 937,032 (792,833) (885,652)
Cash generated from operations 5,074,920 3,257,096
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 637,544 557,456
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items 4,437,376 2,699,640
Net cash Generated/{used) from operating activities 4,437,376 2,699,640
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets - (102,000)
Net cash from investing activities - (102,000}
C. Cash flow from financing activities ;
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings {259,913) 1,349,849
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (2,405,454) (2,198,591)
Interest Paid : (1,528,591} (4,193,958) {1,733,326) {2,582,068)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (4,193,958) (2,582,068)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 243,418 15,572
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 493,549 477,977
736,967 493,549
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 697,383 452,815
Cash an hand (As certified by the management) 39,584 40,734
736,967 493,549

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

S

Vineet Kheten |
Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 2B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 20th day of May 2019

(i de p e~

Forand on behalf of the Board

—

Director

Directar
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F

Director
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Director
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CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548
Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 2 & 3 - Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars

(1) Tangible
Office Equipment

(2) Intangible

Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at 01.04.17

Additions 102,000
Disposals S
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.18 102,000
Additions

Disposals -
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19 102,000
Accumulated depreciation as at 01.04.17 -
Depreciation charge during the year 13,692
Disposals -
Closing accumulated depreéiation ason 31.03.18 13,692
Depreciation charge during the year 32,300
Disposals -
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19 45,992
Net carrying amount as at 01.04.17 -
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.18 88,308
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19 56,008
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26. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A.

b)

Corporate Information

Triton Commercial Private Limited (The Company) is a deemed Public limited company, private company
being a subsidiary of Listed Public Company domiciled and incorporated in India. It is a part of a group
leading in real estate activities in Eastern India. The registered office of the Company is situated at 8/1,
Lalbazar Street, Bikaner Building, 1 Floor, Room No.10, Kolkata-700001. The principle business activity of
the company is Real Estate Development.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred
to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant
provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India {SEBI), as
applicable

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.The normal
operating cycle of the company has been considered as 12 months.

Use of estimates and management judgments :

The preparation of financial statement in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles

of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the

disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in

future periods.

i} Key estimates and assumptions :
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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c)

“plant and equipment is derecognised.

ii) Revenue recognition, contract costs and valuation of unbilled revenue

The Company uses the percentage of-completion method for recognition of revenue, accounting for
unbilled revenue and contract cost thereon for its real estate and contractual projects. The
percentage of completion is measured by reference to the stage of the projects and contracts
determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the estimated total contract costs. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the
Company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or
costs to be expended. Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion,
the extent of the contract cost incurred, the estimated total contract revenue and contract cost and
the recoverability of the contracts. These estimates are based on events existing at the end of each
reporting date.

For revenue recognition for projects executed through joint development arrangements, refer
clause (ii) below as regards estimates and assumptions involved.

iii) Estimation of net realisable value for inventory property (including land advance)

Inventory property is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).

NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices
existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions
“identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical market serving the same real
estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices
at the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction
and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion.

With respect to Land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of
future cash flows, which depends on the estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a
project will be completed, the expected date of completion, the discount rate used and the
estimation of sale prices and construction costs.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price, any costs directly
attributable to its acquisition and an initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which the company incurs when the item
is acquired. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Al other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item is depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the Property,
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d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

Revenue Recognition-
Revenue is recognized as follows:

15 Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on Percentage Completion Method.
Revenue recognition starts when 25 % of estimated project cost excluding land and marketing
cost is incurred, atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements
with buyers and Atleast 10 % of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any other
legally enforceable documents are realised at the reporting date in respect of each of the
contracts and it is reasonable to expect that the parties to such contracts will comply with the
payment terms as defined in the contracts.

ii. Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on "Percentage of Completion Method"
measured by reference to the survey of works done:up to the reporting date and certified by the
client before finalisation of projects accounts.

iii. Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax, if any, net of sales return.

iv.  Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise
stated

v.  Rental income from assets is recognised for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate
collection is considered doubtful. Rental income is exclusive of service tax

vi.  Income from interest is accounted for on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable rate of interest.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are carried as part of
the cost of such asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they are incurred.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an
indication that both tangible and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized
wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized.

Inventories

Constructed properties, shown as work in progress, includes the cost of land (including development
rights and land under agreements to purchase), internal development costs, external development
costs, construction costs, overheads, borrowing costs, construction materials including material lying at
respective sites, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their
present location and condition and is valued at lower of cost/ estimated cost and net realizable value.
On completion of projects, unsold stocks are transferred to project finished stock under the head
“Inventory” and the same is carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.

Finished Goods — Flats: Valued at cost and net realizable value.

Land Inventory: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Retirement Benefits
No such benefits are payable to any employee.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of
estimation if the company has a present obligation as a“result of past event and the amount of
obligation can be reliably estimated.
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Possible future or present obligations that may but will probably not require outflow of resources or
where the same can not be reliably estimated is disclosed as contingent liability in the financial
statement.

Taxes on Income

Tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax is determined in respect of
taxable income for the year based on applicable tax rates and laws.

Deferred tax Asset/liability is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing
differences being the differences between taxable incomes and accounting income that originates in
one year and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent year and measured using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date to reassess their reliability.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the

‘book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular corporate tax payable in

subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act. MAT paid in a year is charged to the
statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset
only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In
the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-
tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and
shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at
each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

k) Segment Reporting

The company has identified that its operating activity is a single primary business segment viz. Real
Estate Development and Services carried out in India. Accordingly, whole of India has been
considered as one geographical segment

I} Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

m) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash & cash on deposit with banks and corporations. The
Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management and that are readily convertible to krlgwn amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.
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n) Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the company’s statement of financial
position when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
company determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition, All
financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

\’\‘

Financial assets -Subsequent measurement
The Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification which is as follows:

L

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for sale in the

near term and those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss,

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in an active market. Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are

stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable

amounts based on the ageing of the receivables balance and historical experience. Additionally,

a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for

impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems

them not to be collectible.

Debt instruments at amortised cost:

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

il. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables,

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are met:

i. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

ii. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPl. Debt instruments included within the
FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL, Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has t designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.
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® Financial assets at fair value through OC|

All equity investments, except investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, falling
within the scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair valye through Other Comprehensive
Income (OCl). The company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument by instrument basis
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the company decides to
designate an equity instrument at fair value through OCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding divide nds, are recognized in the OC.

® Financial assets —Derecognition .
The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assets expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset. Upon derecognition of equity instruments designated at fair value through

Earnings.

® Financial liabilities —

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value th rough

profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including

bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement

The Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification which is as

follows:

¢ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading,
if any, and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or |oss,

® Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Interest bearing loans and borrowings including debentures issued by the company are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR).
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fee or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortized is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

* Financial liabilities —Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
expires.

o) Fair Value measurement
The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
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based on presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:
o In the principal market for the assets or liability or
o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The company

uses valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are

available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the

use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable, or

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unohservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the

Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
“assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

p) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance.
The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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Notes to the financial statements as on

27  Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the acoount.ng profit as follows:

Particulars Year ended 31.03.19 | Year ended 31,03.18
Profit before tax 3,244,228 3.101,273

Income tax expense calculated @ 26.00% (P.Y: 25.75%) 843,499 798,578

Effact of iterns not allowable for Tax purpose 92,480

Effect of Allowances for Tax purpose (346,349)

Other differences 120,369 (160,578)
Total # 710,000 638,000

Adjustments recognised in the current year in refation to the current tax of prior years 10,980 11,126

Income tax recognised in profit or loss 720,980 649,126

The tax rate used for the year 2017-18 and 2018-19 reconciliations above is the corporate tax payable an taxable profits under the

Income Tax Act, 1961,

28 Related Party Disclosure
Related Party Relationshin
Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd — Holding
Transactions & Balanaces :

No related party transactions nor any balances have been reported by the management.

29 In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course of
business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingsnt

liability except stated and informed by the Management.

30 Contingent Liabilities:- Nil (P. Y. Nil)

30 Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures As on 31.03.2019

Particulars at Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
(a) Financial Assets
{ij  Trade receivables 1,024 1,024 1,024
(i)  Cash and cash equivalents 736,967 736,967 736,967
(i1} Other financial assets 180,125 180,125 180,125
Total Financial Assets 918,116 918,116 918,116
(al Finandal Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12,428,182 12,428,182 12,428,182
(i) Trade and other payables = =
(iii) Other financial liabilities 7,205,435 8,594,756 8,594,756
Total Financial Liabilities 19,633,617 21,022,938 21,022,938
As on 31.03.2018
Particulars Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
(3} Financial Assats :
{i) Trade receivables 1,015 1,015 1,015
{ii) Cashand cash equivalents 493,549 493,549 493,549
(i) Cther financial assets 180,125 180,125 180125
Total Financial Assets 674,689 674,680 674,689
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15,339,243 15,335,243 15,339,243
{ii) Trade and other payables €,000 6,000 6,000
{iii} Other financial liabilities 5,263,061 5,263,061 5,263,061
Total Financial Liabilities 20,608,304 20,608,304 20,608,304
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Notes to the financial statements as on

A,

3

s

Capital Requirements

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
resarves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management Is to maximise
the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic canditions and the requirements of
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash
and cash equivalents

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Particulars 5 ,
(inRs.) {in Rs.)
Borrowings (long-term and shortterm, including current 12,428,182 17,754,513

maturities of long term borrowings}
Trade payables 5 - 65,000
Other payables (current and non-current, excluding current

L % 7,205,435 2,847,791
maturities of long term borrowings)
Less: Cash and cash eguivalents (736,967} (493,549)
Net debt 18,896,650 20,114,754
Equity share capital ' 100,000 100,000
Other equity 17,587,951 15,060,104
Total Capital 17,687,951 15,160,104
Gearing ratio 0.94 0.75

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and berrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial coveriants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current peried.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, palicies ar processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and March
31, 2018

Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finznce and support Company's operations, The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management overseas the management of
these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the
appropriste financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company’s
senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuatebecause of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate riskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and commadity/ real estate risk.
The Company has not entered Into any foreign exchange or commaodity derivative contracts. Accordingly, there is no significant exposure
to the market risk other than interest risk.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market Interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
long-term debt obligations with floating intere Eh& iz

5
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Notes to the financial statements as on

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's

long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates,
The Company has borrowed fund from bank at fixed rate borrowings. The Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps.

(i) Price risk
The Company has not made any investments for trading purposes. The surpluses have been deployed in bank deposits as
explained above.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meetits obligations under a financial instrument of customer contract, leadingto a
financial loss, The Company s exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade recelvables) and from its financing
activities, including refundable joint development deposits, security deposits, loans to employees and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances before transfer
of awnership, therefore, substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management, Outstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitared. The impairment analysisis performed at each reporting date an an individual basis for major clients. In addition,
a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral
as security. The Company’s credit period generally ranges from 30-60 days.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars As on 31.03.2019 As on 31.03.2018
More than 6 months 1,024 e
Others - 1,015

Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Credit risk from balancas with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each

counterparty,

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the
year subject to approval of the Board. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss
through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of
the statement of financial position at 31 March 2019 and 2018 is the carrying amounts.

Liguidity Risk

The Company’s investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the tenets of safety, liguidity and return.
The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. In case of
short term requirements, it obtains short-term loans from its Bankers.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
BHAGWAT! BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT
PRIVATE LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flowsfor the year
then ended andasummary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, and its
profit, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 7 \’Q/ A\



Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to

Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not includethe financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any formof assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility of the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance, Cash Flowsand the
statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standardsspecified under Section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

s

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the\ﬂ{rﬁb n

y'sfinancial reporting process.




Auditor’sResponsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordancelwith SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating. the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the fmanual 1




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016(“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our apinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, ‘Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2019, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the"'o :'"panles (Audit and Auditors)

Rules, 2014:




i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts, as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The
question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN _
(Proprietor) NOTYE%
Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: 20.05.2019



“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of BHAGWATI BUILDERS &
DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED, as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2019,

1‘

2.)

4.)

5.)

a)

b)

a)

b)

The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the
management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items
which considering the size and nature of operations of the company appears to be
reasonable. Pursuant to such program, no material discrepancies between book
records and physical inventory have been noticed on physical verification.

The company does not have any immovable property under the fixed assets, hence
the clause is not applicable.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them.

In our opinion and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its
business.

On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-
progress. As in earlier years, work-in-progress has been determined by the
management on the basis of physical verification. The discrepancies ascertained on
physical verification between the physical stock and the book records of inventory
were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

The company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other

parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.

Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information

and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has neither given any guarantees

or security nor has made any investments nor given a loan covered under the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the

Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed-:tfh.éjié rid

\are not applicable.




6.)

L)

8.)

10.)

11.)

12.)

13.)

14.)

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central

government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of
outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerred for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to
information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company does not have any outstanding from any banks,

financial institutions or government nor has it any outstanding debenture; hence the clause
is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was
no money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for
which they were obtained. .

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud
by the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel
during the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable acéodnt[ng standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
neither made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year underreview, Hence clause is not applicable.




15.)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Hence clause is not applicable.

16.)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

\/CMW

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 20.05.2019



BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2019

Particulars Note As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 76,615 76,615.00
(b} Intrangible 2A - u
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Investment 3 N .
{ii) Other Financial Assets 4 104,888 104,885.00
(d) Other Non current Assets 5 14,481,000 14,481,000.00
Total Non - Current Assets 14,662,503 14,662,503.00
Current assets
{a) Inventories 6 42,142,659 42,142,659.00
{b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 24,540,839 28,373,402.00
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 8 601,006 914,665.00
(iii) Other financial assets g 78,514,045 72,361,143.00
(c) Current Tax Assets 10 618,136 629,018.00
{d) Other current assets 11 - -
Total Current Assets 146,416,689 144,420,887.00
Total Assets 161,079,192 159,083,390.00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 12 272,000 272,000.00
(b) Other Equity 13 112,634,101 110,797,580.00
Total equity 112,906,101 111,069,580.00
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 = =
(ii) Other financial liabilities 9,478,266 9,816,442.00
Total non-current liabilities 9,478,266 9,816,442.00
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
{i) Barrowings 15 692,110 692,000.00
{ii) Trade and other payables 16 1,292,814 1,496,713.00
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 5 186,144.00
(b) Other current liabilities 18 36,159,902 34,197,511.00
(c) Provisions 19 550,000 1,625,000.00
Total Current Liabilities 38,694,826 38,197,368.00
Total liabilities 48,173,092 48,013,810.00
Total Equity & Liabilities 161,079,192 159,083,390.00

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behlaf of the Board

BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT,PVT. I

D,

\}(W/ Sedeplnive
Vineet Khetan Diﬁctor tbr
Proprietor 12 BHAGWATI BUILDERS § BEVELOPUENT PVT. i
Membership No.060270 =
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street !
Kolkata - 700 001. D|recfor
The 20h day of May 2019 Directot




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2019

Particulars

Note Year ended 31.03.19 | Year ended 31.03.18
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 7,649,166 7,972,072
Other income 21 - -
Total Revenue 7,649,166 7,972,072
Expencog
Construction Activity Expenses 22 = 40,183
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & finished goods 23 - 315,861
Employee benefit expense 24 534,778 527,096
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 - 12,385
Finance costs 25 - -
Other expenses 26 4,546,350 900,557
Total expenses 5,081,128 1,796,082
Profit before tax 2,568,038 6,175,390
Le==* Income tax expenses
Current tax 550,000 1,625,000
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 181,518 1,085,272
Total tax expense 731,518 2,710,272
Profit after tax 1,836,520 3,478,103
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - .
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - —
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans - =
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,836,520 3,478,103
Earnings per equity share
" nfit available for Equity Shareholders 1,836,520 3,478,103
.ighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 27,200 27,200
Basic earnings per share 67.52 127.87
Diluted earnings per share 67.52 127.87

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street

Kolkata - 700 001,
The 20h day of May 2019

For and on behlaf of the Board

BHAGWATI BUI

RS & DEVELOPMIENT Pl eic.

5‘(}(1‘—"’9 |twe

Disgtector

BRAGWATI BUI% DEUE%‘EHT PVT. LTD.,
£ -4

Pi§i¥ctor




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70102WB1995PT (073792
Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Intangible Intangible
Particulars
Office
| Software
Equipement

Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at 01.04.17 - .
Additions 89,000 -
Disposals - -
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.18 89,000 E
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19 89,000 -
Accumulated depreciation as at 01.04.17 - -
Depreciation charge during the year 12,385 =
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.18 12,385 =
Depreciation charge during the year - -
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19 12,385 -
Net carrying amount as at 01.04.17 as per IND AS - -
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.18 76,615 =
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19 76,615 =




BHAGWATI| BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70102WB1995PTCO73792

Notes to the financial statements as on

Asat31.03.19 | Asat31.03.18

Note 3 Investment

Note 4 Financial Assets
Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposits 104,883 104,888
TOTAL 104,888 104,888
Note 4 Other non-current asset
Unsecured, Considered Good

Capital Advances 14,481,000 14,481,000

14,481,000 14,481,000

Note 6 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)

Finished Stock 39,546,250 39,546,250

Work in process 2,596,409 2,596,409
Total Inventories 42,142,659 42,142,659
Note 7 Trade receivables
Trade receivables 24,540,839 28,373,402
Receivables from related parties -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -

24,540,839 28,373,402

Break up of security details:
Trade receivables
(a) Secured, considered good E =
(b) Unsecured, considered good 24,540,839 28,373,402
() Doubtful - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -
Total 24,540,839 28,373,402
Note 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents
(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 568,942 904,551
(b) Cheques, drafts on hand - =
(c) Cash in hand 32,064 10,114
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 601,006 914,665




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792

Notes to the financial statements as on

As at 31.03.19

As at 31.03.18

Note 9 Other financial assets
Unsecured, considered good
Loan To Others

5,167,358 5,814,917
Other Advance to Related Parties i 315,790
Other Advance to Others 73,346,691 66,230,436
TOTAL 78,514,049 72,361,143
Note 10 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets
Advance Income Tax and TDS 618,136 629,018
TOTAL 618,136 629,018
Note 11 Other current assets
Prepaid Expenses 2 "
Balance with Statutory Authorities E —
TOTAL = 2
Note 12 Equity Share Capital
(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares 100,000 100,000
Total Amount 1,000,000 1,000,000
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 27,200 27,200
Total Amount 272,000 272,000
¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Qutstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 27,200 27,200
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited
d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 27,200 27,200
Percentage of total shares held 100% 100%

e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of

dividend and repayment of capital

of all preferential amounts. The distpifilitio
by the shareholders. rl/.'--;_-;v

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in
Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liguidation of the company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution
n‘;"\?._f-t}\L_\be)n proportion to the number of equity shares held



BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792

|§otes to the financial statements as on

Asat31.03.19 | Asat31.03.18 |

g) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding

Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares
Percentage of total shares held
Ravi Prakash Pincha (Nominee of above)
Number of Shares
Percentage of total shares held

Infrastructure Ltd

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares
Total Amount

27,100
95.63%

100
0.37%

27,100
99.63%

100
0.37%

100 Shares held by Ravi Prakash Pincha are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty &

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from

shareholders within the period of 5 years

No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back

Note 13 Other equity

Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss

Total / }‘*g .

As at the beginning of the year 110,797,580 107,319,477

Add: Profit for the year 1,836,521 3,478,103

As at the end of the year 112,634,101 110,797,580
Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income - -

Other items of Other Comprehensive Income - .
Total 112,634,101 114,275,683
Note 14 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)
Secured - at amortised cost

Loan - -
Total non-current borrowings - -
Note 15 Other Financial Liability (Non Current)

Unsecured

Advance against properties 8,578,266 8,916,442

Security Deposits 900,000 900,000
Total 9,478,266 9,816,442
Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings (Currentl

From other than Related Parties (Unsecured) 692,110 692,000

' 692,110 692,000




BHAGWAT! BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792

[Notes to the financial statements as on Asat31.03.19 | Asat31.03.18 |

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade Payables

outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises = =
Other than above 1,292,813 1,496,713
Total 1,292,813 1,496,713

Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities (Current)
Other Liabiltiies - 186,144

Total - 186,144

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customer and Others 36,159,902 34,197,511
Total 36,159,902 34,197,511

Note 19 Provisions
Provision for Incaome Tax 550,000 1,625,000
Total 550,000 1,625,000




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792
Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations
Sale of Construction Activities
Sale of Services (Maintenance Charges)
Interest on Loan

TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income
Miscellaneous Income
Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses
Consumption

Note 23 Changes in inventories
(A) Opening Inventory
Finished Goods
Work in Progress
Sub Total (A)
(B) Closing Inventory
Finished Goods
Work in Progress
Sub Total (B)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)

Note 24 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and incentives
Total

Note 25 Finance Cost

Interest Paid

Other Borrowing Cost (Finance Charges)
Total

Year ended 31.03.19

Year ended 31.03.18

1,467,788 1,681,998
6,181,378 6,290,074
7,649,166 7,972,072

= 40,183
. 40,183

39,546,250 39,506,066
2,596,409 2,952,454

42,142,659 42,458,520

39,546,250 39,546,250
2,596,409 2,596,409

42,142,659 42,142,659

- 315,861
534,778 527,096
534,778 527,096




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70102WB1995PTC073792

Notes to the financial statements

Note 26 Others Expenses
Rates & Taxes

Year ended 31.03.19

Year ended 31.03.18

4,650 4,710
Rent 60,000 60,000
Electricity Expenses 18,000 12,000
Professional Charges 553,050 166,500
‘Bank Charges 1,016 1,685
Conveyance 2,188 3,474
Filing Fees 13,913 1,334
General Expenses 6,651 37,680
Donation e 500,000
Other Marketing Expenses 1,514,983 71,436
Printing & Stationery 4,822 34,238
Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees 5,000 5,000
Tax Audit Fees — 2,500
Sundry Debtor Write off 1,996,287
Commission & Brokerage 365,790
Total 4,546,350 900,557




BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2019

For the year ended For the year ended
Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2019 31st March, 2018

(Amount in ) (Amount in ")

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax 2,568,038 8,175,990

Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortisation - 12,385
Interest provided capitalised under Inventories e
Interest Received -
Fixed Assets written off
Sundry Assets written off 1,996,287
Net Unrealised Exchange (Gain) / Loss

1,996,287 12,385

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 4,564,325 6,188,375
Changes in working capital.

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories - 315,861

Trade Receivables 3,832,563 5,831,550
Long-Term Loans & Advances (6,152,906) (7,639,840)
Other Current Assets - (3,000,000)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Trade Payables {203,899) 72,300
Other Financial Liabilities (524,320) (252,790)
Other Current Liabilities 1,962,391 6,167,492

(1.086,171) 1,494,573

Cash Flow from Extraordinary Items 3,478,154 7,682,947
Cash Generated from Operations S S
Net Income Tax (Paid) / Refunds 1,745,599 (9,297.878)

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) 5,223,753 (1,614,931)

B. Cash flow from investing activities :
Sale / (Purchase) of Fixed Assets (76,615) (89,000)
Short-Term Loans & Advances (6,152,906) -

" Interest Received / (Paid) - -
Cash Flow From Extraardinary ltems e -
(6,229,521) (89,000)

Net cash from investing activities (6,229,521) (89,000)

C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long-Term Borrowings - -
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short-Term Borrowings 692,110 692,000
Cash Flow From Extraordinary ltems == 692,110 - 692,000

Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities 692,110 692,000

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C) (313,658) (1,011,930)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 914,664 1,928,595
601,006 914,664

Cash and cash equivalenis -Closing balance 601,006 914,665

CASH AND CASH EQUIVELANTS COMPRISE:
Cash on Hand 32,064 10,114
Balances with Scheduled Banks on: ; .
Current Accounts 568,042 904,551
Cheque in Hand =

601,006 914,665

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For and on behalf of the Board
For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

Kolkata - 700 001 N4

50 Acct
The 20h day of May 2019 N

Chartered Accountants BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEUEU}PMEW PVT. LTD.
Ny~ e BHAGWAT) BUILUERS & DEVELOPMENT PVT. LTD.
SZRTED S AN Lgd_’m +Coe
Vineet Khetan by ' szc.-de..{a piges® - Director
Proprietor Director
Membership No.060270 . ire .
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street Director Director



BHAGWATI BUILDERS & DEVELOPMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

26. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A,

a)

b)

Corporate Information

Bhagwati Builders & Development Private Limited (The Company) is a deemed Public limited company,
private company being a subsidiary of Listed Public Company domiciled and incorporated in India. It is a
part of a group leading in real estate activities in Eastern India. The registered office of the Company is
situated at 8/1, Lalbazar Street, Bikaner Building, 1 Floor, Room No.10, Kolkata-700001. The principle

business activity of the company is Real Estate Development.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements (Separate financial Statements) have been prepared on accrual basis in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards( Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. For all periods up to and
including the year ended 31 March 2017, the company prepared its financial statements in accordance
with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 (previous GAAP).

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 are the first the company has prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note29 for an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to

operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Nl of the Companies Act, 2013.The normal
operating cycle of the compa ny has been considered as 12 months.

Use of estimates and management judgments :

The preparation of financial statement in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles
of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities aifected in
future periods.

i) Key estimates and assumptions :

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared,
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are.beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when thg\?{@éﬁﬁﬁ X

S
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ii)

Revenue recognition, contract costs and valuation of unbilled revenue

The Company uses the percentage of-completion method for recognition of revenue, accounting for
unbilled revenue and contract cost thereon for its real estate and contractual projects. The
percentage of completion is measured by reference to the stage of the projects and contracts
determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the estimated total contract costs. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the
Company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or
costs to be expended. Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion,
the extent of the contract cost incu rred, the estimated total contract revenue and contract cost and
the recoverability of the contracts. These estimates are baced on events existing at the end of each
reporting date.

For revenue recognition for projects executed through joint development arrangements, refer
clause (ii) below as regards estimates and assumptions involved.

iii) Estimation of net realisable value for inventory property (including land advance)

Inventory property is stated at the lower of cost and net realisa ble value (NRV).

NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices
existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions
identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical market serving the same real
estate segment,

NRV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices
at the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction
and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion.

With respect to Land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of
future cash flows, which depends on the estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a
project will be completed, the expected date of completion, the discount rate used and the
estimation of sale prices and construction costs.

¢) Revenue Recognition-
Revenue is recognized as follows:

Vi,

Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on Percentage Completion Method.
Revenue recognition starts when 25 % of estimated project cost excluding land and marketing
cost is incurred, atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements
with buyers and At least 10 % of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any other
legally enforceable documents are realised at the reporting date in respect of each of the
contracts and it is reasonable to expect that the parties to such contracts will comply with the
payment terms as defined in the contracts.

Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on "Percentage of Completion Method"
measured by reference to the survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the
client before finalisation of projects accounts.

Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax, if any, net of sales return.

Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise
stated

Rental income from assets is recognised for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate
collection is considered doubtful. Rental income is exclusive of service tax

Income from interest is accounted for on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable rate of interest.

d) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are carried as part of

the

cost of such asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get

ready for its intended use. All other borrowing cq5$ﬁfﬂ@§ensed in the year they are incurred,
e alan & SN
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e)

f)

g)

h)

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an
indication that both tangible and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized
wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recovera ble amount. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized.

Inventories

Constructed properties, shown as work in progress, includes the cost of land (including development
rights and land under agreements to purchase), internal development costs, external development
costs, construction costs, overheads, borrowing costs, construction materials including material lying at
respective sites, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their
present location and condition and is valued at lower of cost/ estimated cost and net realizable value.
On completion of projects, unsold stocks are transferred to project finished stock under the head
“Inventory” and the same is carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.

Finished Goods ~ Flats: Valued at cost and net realizable value,

Land Inventory: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value,

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Retirement Benefits
No such benefits are payable to any employee.

Provisions, Contingent Liahilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of
estimation if the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and the amount of
obligation can be reliably estimated.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Possible future or present obligations that may but will probably not require outflow of resources or
where the same can not be reliably estimated is disclosed as contingent liability in the financial
statement.

Taxes on Income

I.  Tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax is determined in respect of
taxable income for the year based on applicable tax rates and laws.

ii. Deferred tax Asset/liability is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing
differences being the differences between taxable incomes and accounting income that originates in
one year and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent year and measured using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date to reassess their reliability.

iii. Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the
book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular corporate tax payable in
subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act. MAT paid in a year is charged to the
statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset
only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forwa rd. In
the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-
tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and
shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company.reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at

4 ~ 5N




each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

i) Segment Reporting

The company has identified that its operating activity is a single primary business segment viz. Real
Estate Development and Services carried out in India. Accordingly, whole of India has been
considered as one geographical segment

k) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the nat profit or loce far the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per sha re, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

[) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash & cash on deposit with banks and corporations. The
Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are' considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

m) Financial Instruments

>

Y

Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the company’s statement of financial
position when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
company determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of tha
financial asset.

Financial assets ~Subsequent measurement
The Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification which is as foilows:
¢ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for sale in the
near term and those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.
e Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are
stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable
amounts based on the ageing of the receivables balance and historical experience. Additionally,
a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems
them not to be collectible,
Debt instruments at amortised cost:
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.




This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are met:
i. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and
ii. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL. Debt instruments included within the
FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the EVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

e Financial assets at fair value through OCl
All equity investments, except investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, falling
within the scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income (OCl). The company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument by instrument basis
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the company decides to
designate an equity instrument at fair value through OCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.

Financial assets ~Derecognition

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assets expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset. Upon derecognition of equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCl, the associated fair value changes of that equity instrument is transferred from OCl to Retained
Earnings.

Financial liabilities —

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate,

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement

The Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification which is as
follows:




n)

o)

* Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading,
if any, and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.,
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

* Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Interest bearing loans and borrowings including debentures issued by the company are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR).
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fee or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortized is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

* Financial liabilities —-Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
expires,

Fair Value measurement

The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measu rement date. The fair value measurement is
based on presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either;

o Inthe principal market for the assets or liability or

O In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

lizbility.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The company
uses valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs,
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable, or
P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level in put that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance.,
The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. -
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Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting

Particulars Year ended Year ended 31.03.18
31.03.19

Profit before tax 2,568,038 6,175,990

Income tax expense calculated @ 26.00% (2017; 25.76% 667,690 1,590,317

Effect of items not allowable for Tax purpose -

Effect of Allowances for Tax purpose -

Other differences (117,690) 34,683
Total 550,000 1,625,000
Adjustments in current year in relation to the current 181,518 1,085,272
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 731,518 2,710,272

The tax rate used for the year 2017-18 and 2018-19 reconciliations above is the corporate tax
payable on taxable profits under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Related Party Disclosure
Related Party Relationship
Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd — Holding

In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated
value if realised in ordinary course of business. The provision for all known liahbilities is adequate and
not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingent liability except stated and

Contingent Liabilities:-

Ind AS optional exemptions

Deemed Cost of Property, Plant and Equipment

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for property,
plant and equipment and use that as its deemed cost at the date of transition.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at their
previous GAAP carrying value.

Deemed Cost of Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The company did not had any Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint

Ventures as at the date of transition.

Ind AS mandatory exemptions

Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent
with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP. Ind AS estimates at 1st
April, 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made with conformity with
De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109
prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the da_.'ggp.f-;@nsition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS
101 allows a first time adopter to apply the de-recogrkit]:(;jjh-‘-i;'\é’t"r?éisq" ctively from a date of entity’s
choosing. [ A




Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of assets on the basis of
facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. The entity has applied this

Fair Valuation of Investments

Under the previous GAAP, investments were classified as long term investments or current
investments based on the intended holding period and realisability. Under Ind AS, these
investments are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value changes of these
investments have been recognised in retained earnings as at the date of transition.

(i) Under Indian GAAP, there are certain security deposits received which are carried at nominal
value. Ind AS requires the measurement of these assets at fair value at inception and
subsequently these assets are measured at amortized cost. At inception date, Company
recognises difference between deposit fair value and nominal value as income/expensesand the

(i) Indian GAAP required deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which
focusses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12
requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet
and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax
on new temporary differences, which was not required under Indian GAAP. In addition, the
various transitional adjustments lead to different temporary differences. According to the
accounting policies, the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax adjustments

~ (iii) The Company has undertaken a detailed exercise to determine the manner of allocation of
expenses to inventory in context of Ind AS and accordingly realignedallocation of expenses and
income to comply with Ind AS requirements.

Impact of Ind AS adoption on the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019
There are no differences between the Cash Flow Statement presented under Ind AS and the
Previous GAAP.

32 Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures As on 31.03.2019
Particulars at Carrying Value ~ Amortised Cost Fair Value
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments - -
(i)  Trade receivables 24,540,839 24,540,839 24,540,839

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 601,006 601,006 601,006
(iv) Other financial assets 78,618,937 78,618,937 78,618,937
Total Financial Assets 103,760,782 103,760,782 103,760,782

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings - = #

(i) Trade and other payables 1,292,814 1,292,814 1,292,814
(ili) Other financial liabilities 9,478,266 9,478,266 9,478,266

Total Financial Liabilities 10,771,080 10,771,080 10,771,080




As on 31.03.2018
Particulars
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(i)  Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Other financial assets
Total Financial Assets
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Trade and other payables
(iii) Other financial liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

Capital Requirements

Carrying Value  Amortised Cost Fair Value
28,373,402 28,373,402 28,373,402
914,665 914,665 914,665
72,466,031 72,466,031 72,466,031
101,754,098 101,754,098 101,754,098
692,000 692,000 692,000
1,496,713 1,496,713 1,496,713
10,002,586 10,002,586 10,002,586
12,191,299 12,191,299 12,191,299

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The
primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing

: 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Particulars . i
(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Borrowings (long-term and short-term, including 2 .
current maturities of long term borrowings)

Trade payables 1,292,813 1,283,381
Other payables (current and non-current, excluding 9,478,266 9,123,404
current maturities of long term borrowings)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (601,006) (914,665)
Net debt 10,170,074 9,492,120
Equity share capital 272,000 272,000
Other equity 112,634,101 110,797,580
Total Capital 112,906,101 111,069,580
Gearing ratio 11.10 11.70

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company'’s capital management, amongst other
things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and

borrowings that define capital structure req uirements. Brea

would permit the bank to immedi

ches in meeting the financial covenants
ately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in

the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies-oF-processes for managing capital during the years

ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018. Ji=




33 Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support Company's
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is
supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to
the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed

Market risk:
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate riskand
other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/ real estate risk. The Company has not
entered into any foreign exchange or commodity derivative contracts. Accordingly, there is no
significant exposure to the market risk other than interest risk.
(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations
The company does not have any interest bearing loan oustanding as at the end of the period,
hence there is no such risk.
(it) Price risk
The Company has not made any investments for trading purposes. The surpluses have been
deployed in bank deposits as explained above.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including
refundable joint development deposits, security deposits, loans to employees and other financial

Trade receivables
Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring
customers to pay advances before transfer of ownership, therefore, substantially eliminating the
Company’s credit risk in this respect.

Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars Ason 31.03.2019 Ason 31.03.2018

-\ 24,540,839 28,373,402

Moaore than 6 months
Others



Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s
treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are
made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.
Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis,
and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Board. The limits are set to
minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s
potential failure to make payments. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the statement of financial position at 31 March 2018 and 2019 is the carrying
Ligquidity Risk

. The Company’s investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the
tenets of safety, liquidity and return. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. In case of short term requirements,
it obtains short-term loans from its Bankers.




KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF BHAGWATI PLASTOWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Bhagwati Plastoworks Private Limited, which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended on that date,
including a summatry of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required ar. give a

true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of aitairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2019, its Profit (including other comprehensive income), Changes in Equity a.d Cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (SA’s) section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accerdance v.ith the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirerne.ts that
are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 0.3 2nd the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilied cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of o audi. of the
Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide @ soparate
opinion oh these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is an
unlisted company.

~ Information other than the Ind AS financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, but does not include the Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. These other information is expected to be made availible to
us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Chartered Accountant

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the ind AS financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s alllity to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the goirg concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, of has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficiont and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omiissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use af the going concern basis of accounting and, bised on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind
AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease Lo continue as a going concern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a mannr that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the natters
communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The Comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2018 included in these
ctandalone Ind AS Financial Statements, is based on the Ind AS financial statement for the year ended 31% March,
2018 which were audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.
Qur opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below is not modified in respect of above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records
as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we set out a statement
on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

1, The company does not own any fixed assets, hence the clause is not applicable.

) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on

physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been properly
dealt with in the books of account.
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27 a) The company has granted unsecured loans to company covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not
prejudicial to the company’s interest.

b)  There is no stipulation regarding recovery of loans as these loans are repayable on demand. The
aforesaid loans being repayable on demand, there is no amount overdue for more than ninety days in
respect of recovery of principal and interest of the above loans.

4.) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, have been complied with in respect of
loans, investments guarantees and securities given by the Company.

5.) The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the

provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules
framed there under are not applicable.

6.) The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central goverament
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

7.) a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
goods and service tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is
no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to information and
explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.

8.) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us,
the Company does not have any outstanding from any banks, financial institutions or government nor has it
any outstanding debenture; hence the clause is not applicable.

9.) In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was no mone/ raised
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and the term loan has been
applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for which they were obtained.

10.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud by the company
nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

11,) As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel during the period

in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.




13))

14.)

15.)

16.)

KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
the Company has complied with the requirements of sections 177 and 188 of the Act with respect to its
transactions with the related parties. Pursuant to the requirement of the applicable Accounting Standard,

details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in Note 35 of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements for the year under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has neither made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not required to be
registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Report on Other Lepal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

1,

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so fai as it appears
from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income) and the Cash
Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

6. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financials reporting of the company and the

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure Al

With respect to the other matters to be ‘ncluded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requircments
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our apinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company 1o its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;
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8. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

(a) The company does not have any pending litigation.

(b) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

(c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI
Chartered Accountant

9{
Krishan Kumar Bengani

Place: Howrah
Date: 20/05/2019
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TO THE MEMBERS OF BHAGWATI PLASTOWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 '

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bhagwati Plastoworks Private Limited as

of 31% March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management'’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls basec on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Charterea Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and p un and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over flancial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, ircluding
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purpJses in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over fiiandial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that
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Chartered Accountant

0) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detalil, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

ii) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company.

ii)  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, Jse, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial repo:ting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may Lecome
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedu: s may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31t
March, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company cons dering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Cortre s Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI
Chartered Accountant

A—

Krishan Kumar Bengani
Place: Howrah
Date; 20/05/2019

Flat No 706, 7" Floor, Block-B, Swapnalok Apartment, Howrah - 711106



Bhagwati Plastoworks Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U25209WB1998PTC088083

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2019

Particulars Note Asat31.03.19 As at 31.03.18
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 - -
(b) Intangible - -
{c) Financial Assets
(i) Investment 3 360,000 360,000
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 108,706 126,571
Total Non - Current Assets 468,706 486,571
Current assets
{a) Inventories 5 123,826,712 125,445,600
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 3,493,047 7,022,730
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 6,183,163 6,595,721
(iii) Other financial assets 8 7,424,896 7,351,897
(c) Current Tax Assets 9 1,032,339 1,088,836
(d) Other current assets 10 159,322 157,532
Total Current Assets 142,119,480 147,662,316
Total Assets 142,588,186 148,148,887
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 11,036,000 11,036,000
(b) Other Equity 12 74,536,164 69,605,509
Total equity 85,572,164 80,641,509
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 13 26,534,399 31,292,843
Total non-current liabilities 26,534,399 31,292,843
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 7,293,370 4,978,197
(i) Trade and other payables 15
outstanding to micro enterprises & small 5 5
enterprises;
outstanding to other than micro enterprises & - 1,050,504
small enterprises
(i) Other financial liabilities 16 710,845 797,012
(b) Other current liabilities 17 20,797,408 27,808,822
(c) Provisions 18 1,680,000 1,580,000
Total Current Liabilities 30,481,623 36,214,535
Total liabilities 57,016,022 67,507,378
Total Equity & Liabilities 142,588,186 148,148,887

For Krishan Kumar Bengani
Chartered Accountant

Gie

Krishan ar Bengani
Membership No. 302555
20, Salkia School Road
Howrah - 711106

The 20th day of May'2019

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements

or and on behalf of the Board
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B agusati Plastoworks Private Limited
1ist Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar 5treet, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U25209WB1998PTC088083

statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2019

Particulars Note |Year ended 31.03.19| Year ended 31.03.18
Revenue
Revenue from operations 19 16,373,448 9,006,724
Other income 20 277,892 292,862
Total Revenue 16,651,340 9,299,586
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 21 2,496,154 2,587,656
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 22 1,618,888 (2,587,656)
Employee benefit expense 23 330,530 325,219
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 - -
Finance costs 24 1,533,736 862,028
Other expenses 25 3,327,806 305,976
Total expenses 9,307,114 1,493,223
k. ufit before tax 7,344,227 7,806,363
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 1,680,000 1,580,000
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 733,572 (55,353)
Total tax expense 2,413,572 1,524,647
Profit after tax 4,930,655 6,281,716
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - -
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Te+al comprehensive income for the year 4,930,655 6,281,716
L_.nings per equity share
Basic earnings per share 5.69 5.69
Diluted earnings per share 5.69 5.69

Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements

For Krishan Kumar Bengani
Chartered Accountant

Gergo-

Krishan Kumar Bengani
Membership No. 302555
20, Salkia School Road
Howrah - 711106

The 20th day of May'2019

This is the Statement of {rofit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board

.

BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PVT, LiL,
WAL

G

Director
Director

BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PVT. LTD.

Qeodcadp Wizewd

DirectPlirector




Bhagwati Plastoworks Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U25209WB1998PTC082083

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 3 Financial Assets (Investment)
nvestment in Equity Instruments (A fully Pai
Equity Shares, Unquoted (Face Value Rs.10/- each)
Dalton Kunj Private Limited (Qty - 40,000 Shares)
Manavata Vyapaar Private Limited (Qty - 50,000 Shares)
Perci Fashion Private Limited (Qty - 90,000 Shares)

Note 4 Financial Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits

TOTAL

Note 5 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Work in process
Total

Note 6 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade receivables
Receivables from related parties
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Break up of security details of Trade receivables
Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Total

Note 7 Financial Assets (Cash and Bank Balance)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account)
Cheques, drafts on hand
Cash in hand
Others
-Term Deposits with maturity more than 1 years
including interest accurued
(pledged with Bank against credit facilities availed)
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet

Note 8 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Unsecured, considered good
Other Advances

TOTAL

Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilities

Unsecured, considered good
Current tax assets
Advance Income Tax and TDS

TOTAL

Note 10 Other current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid Expenses
Interest accured on Security Deposit
Balance with Statutory Authorities

TOTAL

Asat31.03.19  Asat31.03.18
80,000 80,000
100,000 100,000
180,000 180,000
360,000 360,000
108,706 126,571
108,706 126,571
123,826,712 125,445,600
123,826,712 125,445,600
3,493,047 7,022,730
3,493,047 7,022,730
3,493,047 7,022,730
3,493,047 7,022,730
1,161,391 1,744,233
45,643 45,843
4,976,129 4,805,645
6,183,163 6,595,721
7,424,896 7,351,897
7,424,896 7,351,897
1,032,339 1,088,836
1,032,339 1,088,836
153,452 157,532

5,870

159,322 157,532




Bhagwati Plastoworks Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U25209WB1998PTC088083
Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 11 Equity Share Capital
(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares
Total Amount

b) lssued, subscribed and fullv paid Share Capital

Number of Shares
Total Amount

¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding

As at the beginning & end of the year

No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right

Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares
Percentage of total shares held
Raj KumarJaiswal
Number of Shares
Percentage of total shares held
Ram Gopal Manpuria (HUF)
Number of Shares
Percentage of total shares held
Shree Prakash Manpuria (HUF
Number of Shares
Percentage of total shares held
Arjun Patra (HUF
Number of Shares
percentage of total shares held

As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18
1,250,000 1,250,000
12,500,000 12,500,000
1,103,600 1,103,600
11,036,000 11,036,000
1,103,600 1,103,600
562,870 562,870
51.00% 51.00%
104,500 104,500
9.47% 9.47%
80,000 80,000
7.25% 7.25%
74,000 74,000
6.71% 6.71%
61,800 61,800
5.60% 5.60%

e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of

dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares

is entitled to one vote per share, The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupee

s. The dividend proposed by

the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event
of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,

after distribution of all preferential amount:

by the shareholders.

g) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding

Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares
percentage of total shares held

562,870
51,00%

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.

Number of Shares
Total Amount

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from

shareholders within the period of 5 years

No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back

s. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held

562,870
51.00%



Bhagwati Plastoworks Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U25209WB1998PTC0O88083

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 12 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end of the year
Securities Premium
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Charges during the year
As at the end of the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income

Total

Note 13 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)
Advance against Properties
Security Deposits

Total

Note 14 financial liabilities - Borrowings
{Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)
Non Banking Financial Companies (Related)
Other body Corporates (Related)
From other than Related Parties
Total

Note 15 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises
Other than above

Total

Note 16 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Statutory Payables

Total

Note 17 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customer and Others
Total

Note 18 Provisions
Provision for Income Tax
Total

As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18
59,637,509 53,355,793
4,930,655 6,281,716
64,568,164 59,637,509
9,968,000 9,968,000
9,968,000 9,968,000
74,536,164 69,605,509
25,658,000 29,758,000
876,399 1,534,843
26,534,399 31,292,843
6,411,297 767,973
882,073
- 4,210,224
7,293,370 4,978,197
5 1,050,504
. 1,050,504
568,546 677,185
142,299 119,827
710,845 797,012
20,797,408 27,808,822
20,797,408 27,808,822
1,680,000 1,580,000
1,680,000 1,580,000




Bhagwati Plastoworks Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U25209WB1998PTC082083

Notes to the financial statements Year ended 31.03.19

Note 19 Revenue from Operations
Sale of Services

Year ended 31.03.18

Construction Activities 7,517,560 -
Other Charges 143,340 -
Sub-Total 7,660,900 5

Other Operating Income

Rental Income 7,978,044 8,528,044

Maintenance & Other Charges 734,504 478,680

Sub-Total 8,712,548 9,006,724

TOTAL 16,373,448 9,006,724
Note 20 Other Income
Interest Income 277,892 292,862
Sundry Balances written back (net) - -
Total 277,892 292,862
Note 21 Construction Activity Expenses
Labour Charges 65,915 179,568
Other Construction Expenses 2,430,239 2,408,088
Consumption 2,496,154 2,587,656
Note 22 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress 125,445,600 122,857,944
Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress 123,826,712 125,445,600
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B) 1,618,888 (2,587,656)
Note 23 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and incentives 330,530 325,219
Total 330,530 325,219
Note 24 Finance Cost
Interest on Borrowed fund 633,461 690,278
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 900,056 171,750
Interest paid to Others 219 Z
Total 1,533,736 862,028
Note 25 Others Expenses
Rates & Taxes 4,650 8,882
Sundry Balances written off (net) 3,159,660 160,613
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses -
Bank Charges 4,277 7,051
Conveyance 18,455 17,516
Filing Fees 6,500 2,215
General Expenses 5,817
Postage & Telegram 2,830 2,852
Printing & Stationery 48,434 38,330
Professional Charges 75,500 55,200
Auditor's Remuneration 7,500 7,500
Total 3,327,806 305,976




Bhagwati Plastoworks Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U25209WE1998PTC0O88083

Notes to the financial statements

A. Share Capital

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital as on 01.04.2017 11,036,000
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year =
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2018 11,036,000
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year “
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2019 11,036,000
B. Other Equity

Other Equity

Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company Amount (Rs.)
Balance at 1 April 2017 63,323,793
Transfers -
Profit for the year 6,281,716
IND-AS adjustments -
Other comprehensive income B
Total comprehensive income for the year 6,281,716
Balance at 31 March 2018 69,605,509
Transfers -
Profit for the Year 4,930,655
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the period 4,930,655

Balance at 31 March 2019

74,536,164




Bhagwati Plastoworks Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U25209WB1998PTC088083
Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars

Tangible

Intangible

Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at 01.04.17

Additions

Disposals

Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.18

Additions

Disposals

Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19

Accumulated depreciation as at 01.04.17

Depreciation charge during the year

Disposals

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.18

Depreciation charge during the year

Disposals

Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19

Net carrying amount as at 01.04.17

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.18

Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19




Bhagwati Plastoworks Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U25209WB1998PTC0O88083

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

For the year ended For the year ended
Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2019 31st March,2018
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 7,344,227 7,806,363
Adjustments for
Sundry Balances written back 3,159,660 160,613
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 900,056 171,750
Interest Paid 633,461 4,693,177 690,278 1,022,641
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 12,037,403 8,829,004
(Increase) / Decrease in Security Deposits 17,865 [+ -
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 1,618,888 (2,587,656)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables 3,529,683 1,881,498
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets (1,790) 159,869
(Increase) / Decrease of Advances {3,232,659) (177,613)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables - (1,742,977)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities (5,744,667) (2,312,342)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities (7,011,414)]  (10,824,094) 2,876,627 (1,902,594)
Cash generated from operations 1,213,309 6,926,410
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 2,257,075 1,889,290
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items (1,043,766) 5,037,120
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities (1,043,766) 5,037,120
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Investment in Fixed Deposits (170,484) (2,389,827
Net cash from investing activities (170,484) (2,389,827
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 2,315,173 (1,510,042)
Interest Paid (633,461) 1,681,712 (690,278) (2,200,320)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities 1,681,712 (2,200,320)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 467,462 446,973
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 1,790,076 292,599
2,257,539 739,572
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 1,161,391 1,744,233
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 45,643 45,843
1,207,034 1,750,076
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For and on behalf of the Board
For Krishan Kumar Bengani
e e  BHAGWAT| PLASTO WORKS PVTLLTD. gy Gywam PLASTO WORKS VT, LTD.
irector .
Krishan Kumar Bengani Director Director Director
Membership No. 302555
20, Salkia School Road
Howrah - 711106
The 20th day of May'2019




BHAGWATI PLASTOWORKS PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata — 700001
CIN: U25209WB1998PTC088083

26. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A.

B.

b)

Corporate Information

Bhagwati Plastoworks Private Limited (The Compa ny) is a deemed Public limited company, private
company being a subsidiary of Listed Public Company domiciled and incorporated in India. It is a part of
a group leading in real estate activities in Eastern India. The registered office of the Company is situated
at 8/1, Lalbazar Street, Bikaner Building, 1 Floor, Room No.10, Kolkata-700001. The principle business
activity of the company is Real Estate Development.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred
to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant
provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as
applicable

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date

Eunctional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.The normal
operating cycle of the company has been considered as 12 months.

Use of estimates and management judgments :

The preparation of financial statement in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles

of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the

disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in

future periods.

i) Key estimates and assumptions :
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assu mptions'\y%glaﬁ?gﬁqccur.

o
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1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata — 700001
CIN: U25209WB1998PTC088083

ii)

Revenue recognition, contract costs and valuation of unbilled revenue

The Company uses the percentage of-completion method for recognition of revenue, accounting for
unbilled revenue and contract cost thereon for its real estate and contractual projects. The
percentage of completion is measured by reference to the stage of the projects and contracts
determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the estimated total contract costs. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the
Company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or
costs to be expended. Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion,
the extent of the contract cost incurred, the estimated total contract revenue and contract cost and
the recoverability of the contracts. These estimates are based on events existing at the end of each
reporting date.

For revenue recognition for projects executed through joint development arrangements, refer
clause (ii) below as regards estimates and assumptions involved.

iii) Estimation of net realisable value for inventory property (including land advance)

Inventory property is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).

NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices
existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions
identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical market serving the same real
estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices
at the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction
and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion.

With respect to Land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of
future cash flows, which depends on the estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a
project will be completed, the expected date of completion, the discount rate used and the
estimation of sale prices and construction costs.

c) Revenue Recognition-
Revenue is recognized as follows:

Vi,

Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on Percentage Completion Method.
Revenue recognition starts when 25 % of estimated project cost excluding land and marketing
cost is incurred, atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements
with buyers and Atleast 10 % of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any other
legally enforceable documents are realised at the reporting date in respect of each of the
contracts and it is reasonable to expect that the parties to such contracts will comply with the
payment terms as defined in the contracts.

Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on "Percentage of Completion Method"
measured by reference to the survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the
client before finalisation of projects accounts.

Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax, if any, net of sales return.

Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise
stated

Rental income from assets is recognised for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate
collection is considered doubtful. Rental income is exclusive of service tax

Income from interest is accounted for on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable rate of interest.
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d)

e)

8)

h)

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are carried as part of
the cost of such asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they are incurred.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an
indication that both tangible and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized
wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized.

Inventories

Constructed properties, shown as work in progress, includes the cost of land (including development
rights and land under agreements to purchase), internal development costs, external development
costs, construction costs, overheads, borrowing costs, construction materials including material lying at
respective sites, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their
present location and condition and is valued at lower of cost/ estimated cost and net realizable value.
On completion of projects, unsold stocks are transferred to project finished stock under the head
“Inventory” and the same is carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.

Finished Goods — Flats: Valued at cost and net realizable value.

Land Inventory: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Retirement Benefits
No such benefits are payable to any employee.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of
estimation if the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and the amount of
obligation can be reliably estimated.

If the effect of the time value of money is rnaterlal provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Possible future or present obligations that may but will probably not require outflow of resources or
where the same can not be reliably estimated is disclosed as contingent liability in the financial
statement.

Taxes on Income

i. Tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax is determined in respect of
taxable income for the year based on applicable tax rates and laws.

ii. Deferred tax Asset/liability is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing
differences being the differences between taxable incomes and accounting income that originates in
one year and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent year and measured using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date to reassess their reliability.
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k)

fii.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the
book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular corporate tax payable in
subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act. MAT paid in a year is charged to the
statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset
only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In
the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-
tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and
shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at
each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Segment Reporting

The company has identified that its operating activity is a single primary business segment viz. Real
Estate Development and Services carried out in India. Accordingly, whole of India has been
considered as one geographical segment

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash & cash on deposit with banks and corporations. The
Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

Financial Instruments

>

Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the company’s statement of financial
position when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
company determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Financial assets —~Subsequent measurement

The Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification which is as follows:

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for sale in the
near term and those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

e Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are
stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable
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amounts based on the ageing of the receivables balance and historical experience. Additionally,

a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for

impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems

them not to be collectible.

Debt instruments at amortised cost:

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are

recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
i. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and
ii. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. Debt instruments included within the
FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

e Financial assets at fair value through OCI

All equity investments, except investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, falling
within the scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). The company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument by instrument basis
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the company decides to
designate an equity instrument at fair value through OCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.

e Financial assets —Derecognition
The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assets expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset. Upon derecognition of equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCl, the associated fair value changes of that equity instrument is transferred from OCI to Retained
Earnings. ':_;;
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Financial liabilities —

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including

bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement

The Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification which is as

follows:

¢ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading,
if any, and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

e Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Interest bearing loans and borrowings including debentures issued by the company are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR).
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fee or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortized is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

e Financial liabilities —Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
expires.

n) Fair Value measurement

The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

o In the principal market for the assets or liability or

o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The company
uses valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unohservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
p Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable, or
» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
Eor assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation {ba{éﬂ'&ﬁ“mﬁﬁ;mg lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole “arthe ‘Sfaach reporting period.
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0)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a fina ncial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance.
The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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29

30

31 (1)

31(2)

Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.19 31.03.18

Profit before tax 7,344,227 7,806,363
Income tax expense calculated @ 26.00% (2017: 25.76%) 1,909,499 2,010,138
Effect of Fair Market Value adjustments in accordance with IND-AS 234,015 44,226
Effect of Allowances for Tax purpose (565,975) -
Other differences 102,461 (474,364)
Total 1,680,000 1,580,000
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years 733,572 (55,353)
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 2,413,572 1,524,647

The tax rate used for the year 2017-18 and 2018-19 reconciliations above is the corporate tax payable on taxable profits under the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

Related Party Disclosure

Related Party Relationship

Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd — Holding
Transactions & Balanaces :

No related party transactions nor any balances have been reported by the management.

In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course
of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no
contingent liability except stated and informed by the Management.

Contingent Liabilities:- Nil (P. Y. Nil)
Income Tax Demand - Rs.1.43 lacs. These demand includes payable towards addition by Income Tax Officer, Demand & Interest on
Summary Assessment. Etc

Ind AS optional exemptions

Deemed Cost of Property, Plant and Equipment

The company did not had any Property, Plant and Equipment as at the date of transition.

Deemed Cost of Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The company did not had any Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures as at the date of transition

Ind AS mandatory exemptions

Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the
same date in accordance with previous GAAP. Ind AS estimates at 1st April, 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same
date made with conformity with previous GAAP.

De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions
occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition
retraspectively from a date of entity’s choosing.

The entity has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions prospectively from the date of transition.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of assets on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist
at the date of transition to Ind AS. The entity has applied this exception.

Fair Valuation of Investments
Under the previous GAAP, i
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holding period and realisability. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value
changes of these investments have been recognised in retained earnings as at the date of transition.

31(3) Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables
represent the reconciliations from Previous GAAP to Ind AS:
Reconciliation of Other Equity
Particulars Ason 31.03.2019  Ason 31.03.2018
Reserves and Surplus as per IGAAP 7,27,00,028 6,68,69,317
Add: Fair valuation of Security Deposits Received 18,36,136 27,36,192
Other Equity as per Ind AS 7,45,36,164 6,96,05,509
Notes:

(i) under Indian GAAP, there are certain security deposits received which are carried at nominal value. Ind AS requires the
measurement of these assets at fair value at inception and subsequently these assets are measured at amortized cost. At
inception date, Company recognises difference between deposit fair value and nominal value as income/expensesand the
Company recognises notional interest income/expenses on these deposits over the lease term.

(ii)  Indian GAAP required deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focusses on differences between
taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance
sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance
sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary
differences, which was not required under Indian GAAP. In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to different
temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax
adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a separate component of

(iii) ?E:Ig‘;mpany has undertaken a detailed exercise to determine the manner of allocation of expenses to inventory in context of

Ind AS and accordingly realignedallocation of expenses and income to comply with Ind AS requirements.

Impact of Ind AS adoption on the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

There are no differences between the Cash Flow Statement presented under Ind AS and the Previous GAAP.

32 Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures As on 31.03.2019

Particulars at Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value

(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 3,60,000 3,60,000 3,60,000
(i)  Trade receivables 34,93,047 34,93,047 34,93,047
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 61,83,163 61,83,163 61,83,163
(iv] Other financial assets 75,33,602 75,33,602 75,33,602

Total Financial Assets 1,75,69,812 1.75.,69.812 1,75,65,812

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 72,93,370 72,93,370 72,93,370
(i) Trade and other payables . = %
(iii) Other financial liabilities 2,72,45,244 2,90,81,380 2,72,45,244

Total Financial Liabilities 3,45,38,614 3,63,74,750 3,45,38,614

As on 31.03.2018

Particulars Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value

(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 3,60,000 3,60,000 3,60,000
(i)  Trade receivables 70,22,730 70,22,730 70,22,730
(ili) Cash and cash equivalents 65,95,721 65,95,721 65,95,721
(iv) Other financial assets 74,78,468 74,78,468 74,78,468

Total Financial Assets 2,14,56,919 2,14,56,919 2,14,56,919

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 49,78,197 49,78,187 49,78,197
{ii) Trade and other payables 10,50,504 10,50,504 10,50,504
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(iif)  Other financial liabilities 3,20,89,855 3,48,26,047 3,20,89,855
Total Financial Liabilities 3,81,18,556 4,08,54,748 3,81,18,556
Capital Requirements
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity

reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to
maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade
and other payables less cash and cash equivalents

Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
(in Rs.) (in Rs.)
Borrowings (long-term and short-term, including current
72,93,370 49,78,197

maturities of long term borrowings)

Trade payables - 10,50,504
Other payables (current and non-current, excluding current

maturities of long term borrowings) B0, 284 2;0,82,853
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (65,95,721) (27,08,417)
Net debt 2,79,42,893 3,54,10,139
Equity share capital 1,10,36,000 1,10,36,000
Other equity 7,45,36,164 6,96,05,509
Total Capital 8,55,72,164 8,06,41,509
Gearing ratio 3.06 2.28

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in
the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and barrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and
March 31, 2018.

Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payahles. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance and support Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its
operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management
of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the
Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures
and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuatebecause of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate riskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/ real
estate risk. The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange or commodity derivative contracts. Accordingly, there is no
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(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by by accepting fixed rate loans and borrowings which are repayable on demand
at the option of company and lender both. Most of the borrowings of the Company are unsecured and at fixed rates. The
Company has interest bearing oustanding borrowings from 2 parties at the end of the period. In case the interest rate in the
markets falls below the rate payable by company, company can negotiate interest rate of exisiting loan or can repay the
borrowing and re-borrow at prevalent market rate. The Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss, The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including refundable joint development deposits, security deposits, loans to employees and other financial instruments.

Trade receivablas
Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances befcre
transfer of ownership, therefore, substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored. The impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company
does not hold collateral as security. The Company’s credit period generally ranges from 30-60 days.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars As on 31.03.2019 As on 31.03.2018
More than 6 months - 1,184,461
Others 3,493,047 5,838,269

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance
with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits

assigned to each counterparty.

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout
the year subject to approval of the Board. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial
loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the statement of financial position at 31 March 2017 and 2016 is the carrying amounts.

Liguidity Risk
The Company’s investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the tenets of safety, liquidity and
return. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liahilities when

due. In case of short term requirements, it obtains short-term loans from its Bankers.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited, which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended on that date,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required anc give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of aljairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2019, its Loss (including other comprehensive income), Changes in Equity and Cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for apinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (SA’s) section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Aucit
of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Comipany in accordunce v, ith the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirernents that
are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidenice we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 2
basis for aur opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a scparate
opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is an
unlisted company.

Information other than the Ind AS financial statements and auditors’ report thereon
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, but does not include the Ind AS

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. These other information is expected to be made available to

us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

W
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materizlly inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statan, onts or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position; linancial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are fres from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole ure lree
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion onh whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls

° Evalualft_g-:_th_e appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimales and

..... Loy

retaféf_éﬁﬁjéﬁ[@s:u‘r.ﬁ:s made by management.
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGAN!I

Chartered Accountant

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind
AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause tha Company to cease to continue as 3 going concern,

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclgsures,
and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

. timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters
communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in aur report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The Comparative financial infermation of the Company for the yvear ended 31st March, 2018 included in these
standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, is based on the Ind AS financial statement for the year ended 37 March,
2018 which were audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified apinion on those statements.
Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below is not modified in respect of above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records
as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we set out a statement
on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

1. a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the management accoiding to
a phased programme designed to cover all the items which considering the size and nature of
operations of the company appears to be reasonable. Pursuant to such program, no riaterial
discrepancies between book records and physical inventory have been noticed on physical verification.

Flat No 706, 7** Floor, Block-B, Swapnalok Apartment, Howrah - 711106




6.)

7.)

8.)

KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

c) The company does not own any immovable properties under the head Fixed assets, hence the clause is
not applicable.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on

physical verification of inventory as compared to bcok records were not material and have been properly
dealt with in the books of account.

a) The company has granted unsecured loans to company covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not
prejudicial to the company’s interest.

b)  There is no stipulation regarding recovery of loans as these loans are repayable on demand. The
aforesaid loans being repayable on demand, there is no amount overdue for more than nincty days in
respect of recovery of principal and interest of the above loans.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, have been complied with in respect of
loans, investments guarantees and securities given by the Company.

The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules
framed there under are not applicable.

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
goods and service tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is
no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to information and
explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined oy us and the information and explanations g.ver to us,
the Company does not have any outstanding from any banks, financial institutions or government nor has it
any outstanding debenture; hence the clause is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was no money raised
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and the term loan has been

applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for which they were obtained.
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud by the company
nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel during the period
in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
the Company has complied with the reguirements of sections 177 and 188 of the Act with respect Lo its
transactions with the related parties. Pursuant to the requirement of the applicable Accounting Standard,
details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in Note 35 of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements for the year under audit, ’

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has neither made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Hence clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not required to be
registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
1

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of thase books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income) and the Cash
Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31lst March, 2019 taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 fron being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

6. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financials reporting of the company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.

7. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with the reguirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to

the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

8. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

(a) The company does not have any pending litigation.

{b) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

() There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company,

For KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI
Chartered Accountant

Bogo—
Krishan Kumar Bengani

Place: Howrah
Date: 20/05/2019
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

TO THE MEMBERS OF RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited

as of 31° March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
“internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

i) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
firnancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and

directors of the company.

ili)  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Qpinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI
Chartered Accountant

Krishan Kumar Bengani

Place: Howrah
Date: 20/05/2019
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RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty {P) Ltd.)
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2019

Particulars Note As at31.03.19 | Asat31.03.18
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(2) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 1,74,007 3,03,830
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 2 71,899 38,547
Total Non - Current Assets 2,45,906 3,42,377
Current assets
() Inventories 3 1,32,25,31,066 | 1,32,22,56,880
(b} Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 4 38,09,683 1,22,44,661
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 5 6,74,457 3,24,526
(iii) Other financial assets 6 7,25,965 5,06,55,966
(c) Current Tax Assets 7 3,63,051 14,10,438
(d) Other current assets 8 2,59,72,748 2,48,59,701
Total Current Assets 1,35,40,76,970 | 1,41,17,52,172
Total Assets 1,35,43,22,876 | 1,41,20,94,549
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital g9 10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
(b) Other Equity 10 (1,47,74,531) (1,18,59,622)
Total equity 8,52,25,469 8,81,40,378
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 11 9,00,00,000 9,00,00,000
Total non-current liabilities 9,00,00,000 9,00,00,000
Current liahilities
(a} Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings T2 6,56,77,833 5,30,22,113
(i) Trade and other payables 13 4,94,83,565 4,95,53,250
(iii) Other financial liabilities 14 1,06,32,95,232 | 1,13,07,34,657
(b) Other current liabilities 15 6,40,777 6,30,65Q
{c) Provisions 16 - 13,500
Total Current Liabilities 1,17,90,97,407 | 1,23,39,54,170
Total liabilities 1,26,90,97,407 | 1,32,39,54,170
Total Equity & Liabilities 1,35,43,22.876 | 1,41,20,94,548
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements
For Krishan Kumar Bengani Fora on]gehal_{_of,the'Bogrd -
Chartered Accountant &_{]B JMPU%LE&S:{:U;'%;% gl o
e |
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Director
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RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
1st Fioor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lzl Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U?OlOlWB2005PTC105328

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2019
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Particulars Note Year ended 31.03.19 | Year ended 21.03.18
Revenue
Revenue from operations 19 - -
Other income 20 25,33,867 51,32,839
Total Revenue 25,33,867 51,32,839
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 2 2,74,186 13,62,715
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 22 (2,74,186) (13,62,715)
Employee benefit expense 23 8,25,741 8,44,914
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 1,289,823 1,30,196
Finance costs 24 43,45,771 39,97,262
Other expenses 25 1,80,779 89,546
Total expenses 54,82,114 50,61,918
Profit before tax (29,48,247) 70,921
Less: Income tax expenses
Current tax - 13,500
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 14 10,267
- Deferred Tax (33,352) (9,426)
Total tax expense (33,338) 14,341
Profit after tax {29,14,909) 56,580
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -
ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income r
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax = g
Total comprehensive income for the year (29,14,909) 56,580
Earnings per equity share
P tavailable for Equity Shareholders (29,14,909) 56,580
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Basic earnings pet share (0.29) 0.01
Diluted earnings per share (0.29) 0.01
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For and on behalf of the Board
|For Krishan Kumar Bengani RJJ_B JAIPUR INFRASTRUU LUS :::
Chartered Accountant i%o- deet? )
@ R Dire c#ar
Director
QV“%" ROB JAIRUR INFRASTRUCTURE Pyl
Krishan Kumar Bengani
Membership No, 302555 %
20, salkia School Road .\N :
-lowrah - 711106 o : '
The 20th day of May'2019 #< i Director



RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 2 Deferred tax assets (net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets

Note 3 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Wark in process

Note 4 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade receivables
More than six months
Less than six months
Receivables from related parties
More than six months
Less than six months
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Break up of security details of Trade receivables
Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Note 5 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)
Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account)
Cheques, drafts on hand
Cash in hand (As certified by the ma nagement)
Others

Note 6 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to Companies (Interest bearing)

Note 7 Current tax assets and liabilitias
Unsecured, considered good
Current tax assets
Advance Income Tax and TDS

Note 8 Other current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Balance with Statutory Authorities
Advance to Holding Company
Advance to Staff
Advance against land to vendors
Other Advances

Asat 31,03.19

71,899

As at 31.03.18

38,547

Total 71,899

38,547

1,32,2531.066

1,32,22,56,880

Total 1,32,25,31,066 1,32,22,56,880
38,09,683 =
% 1,22,44,661
Total 38,09,683 1,22,44,661
38,09,683 1,22,44,661
38,09,683 1,22,44,661
6,395,241 2,67,143
35,216 57,333
Total 6,74,457 3,24,526
7,25,965 5,06,55,966
Total 7,25,965 5,06,55,966
3,63,051 14,10,438
Total 3,63,051 14,10,438
12,86,924 g
- 90,000
86,491 1,05,368
2,23,31,000 2,23,31,000
22,68,333 23,33,333
Total 2,59,72,748 2,48,59,701




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Motes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.19

Note 9 Equity Share Capital (Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

a) Authorised Share Capital

Asat 31.03.18

Number of Shares 1,50,00,000 1,50,00,000
Total Amount 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000
b} Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Ca pital
Number of Shares 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Total Amount 10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited
d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 53,63,046 53,63,046
Percentage of total shares held 53.63% 53.63%
Sanjay Surana
Number of Shares 10,00,000 10,060,000
Percentage of total shares held 10.00% 10.00%
Gaurishankar Kothari
Number of Shares 10,00,000 10,00,000
Percentage of total shares held 10.00% 10.00%
Shyam Sunder Mohata
Number of Shares 9,33,477 9,33,477
Percentage of total shares held 9,33% 9.33%
Santosh Devi Dhoot
Number of Shares 6,00,000 6,00,000
Percentage of total shares held 6.00% 6.00%
Kedar Nath Dhoot
Number of Shares 5,40,977 5,40,977
Percentage of total shares held 5.41% 5.41%

e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend and repayment

of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of
the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity
shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the co mpany, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The

distribution will be in nranartion to the numher nf poutity sharec hald by the sharehnlders

f) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 5,62,870
Percentage of total shares held 5.63%

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares & Amount _

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from

shareholders within the period of 5 years

No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back

5,62,870
5.63%



RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 10 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus

Surplus from Statement of Profit & Lass
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end of the year

Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income

Note 11 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)
(Unsecured, as per terms of agreement)
Advance against Properties

The above deposit have been received from Developers pursuant to Joint
Development Agreement between Landowner (RDB Jaipur) and Developers

Note 12 financial liabilities - Borrowings

(Unsecured, Repayable on Demand, Interest bearing, Including Interest))

Naon Banking Financial Companies
Other bady Corporates

Note 13 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
Outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises
Other than above

Note 14 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Advances from Others

Note 15 Other Current Liabilities
Oustanding Payables to Directors
Statutory Payables
Other payable

Note 16 Provisions
Pravision for Income Tax

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

As at 31.03.19

(1,18,59,622)
(29,14,909)

As at 31.03.18

(1,19,16,202)
56,580

(1,47,74,531)

(1,18,59,622)

=

(1,47,74,531)

{1,18,59,622)

9,00,00,000 $,00,00,000
9,00,00,000 9,00,00,000
1,60,68,435 44,55,335
4,96,09,398 4,85,66,778
6,56,77,833 5,30,22,113
4,94,83,565 4,95,53,250
4,94,83,565 4,95,53,250
1,06,32,95,232  1,13,07,34,657
1,06,32,95232  1,13,07,34,657
2,10,000 2,10,000
4,30,777 4,20,650
6,40,777 6,30,650

- 13,500

13,500




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
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Notes to the financial statements Year ended 31.03.19  Year ended 31.03.18
Note 19 Revenue from Operations
Maintenance & Other Charges =

TOTAL = "
Note 20 Other Income
Profit on Sale of Investment (Non Current, other than trade) - -
Interest Income 25,30,494 51,32,839
Miscellaneous Income
sundry Balances written ba ck (net) 3,373 -
Total 25,33,867 51,32,839
Note 21 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses 2,74,186 54,398
Interest & Other Finance Cost (in accordance with IND AS-23) - 13,08,317
Consumption 2,74,186 13,62,715
Note 22 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress 1,32,22,56,880 1,32,08,94,165
Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress 1,32,25,31,066 1,32,22,56,880
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B) (2,74,186) (13,62,715)
Note 23 Employee Benefits Expense
salaries, Wages and incentives 8,25,741 8,44,914
Total 8,25,741 8,44,914
Note 24 Finance Cost
Interest on Borrowed fund 43,45,771 39,97,262
Total 43,45,771 39,97,262
Note 25 Others Expenses
Rates & Taxes 2,500 2,500
Filing Fees 6,215 4,311
General Expenses 200 60,500
Printing & Stationery 27,664 7,035
Professional Charges 1,29,200 200
Auditor's Remuneration

Statutory Audit Fees 15,000 15,000
Total 1,80,779 89,546

e}



RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P} Ltd.)
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Notes to the financial statements

A. Share Capital

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Equity Share Capital as on 01.04.2017 10,00,00,000
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year #
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2018 10,00,00,000

Add; Addition/(Deletion ) during the year

Equity Share Capital as on 21.03.2019

10,00,00,000

B. Other Equity
Other Equity

Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company

Amount (Rs.)

Balance at 1 April 2017

(1,19,16,202)

Transfers -
Profit for the year 56,580
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 56,580
Balance at 31 March 2018 (1,18,59,622)

Transfers
Profit for the Year
Other comprehensive income

(29,14,909)

Total comprehensive income for the period

(29,14,909)

Balance at 31 March 2019

(1,47,74,531)

'y iy o
e, No.- 302558
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RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

For the year ended For the year ended
Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2019 3ist March,2018
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (29,48,247) 70,921
Adjustments for
Sundry Balances written back (3,373) 2
Profit on Sale of Investmant (Non Current, other than trade) - =
Depreciation & Amortisation 1,29,823 1,30,196
Interest Paid 43,45,771 44,772,221 39,97,262 41,27,458
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 15,23,974 41,98,379
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (2,74,186) (54,398)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables 84,34,978 (1,22,44,661)
(Increasze) / Decrease of Advances 4,28,20,327 (2,980,81.940)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (69,585) 7,53,250
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities {5,74,39,425) 4,46,27,330
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities 10,127 (1.05,17,864) (2,15,733) 37,73,848
Cash generated from operations (89,93,890) 79,72,228
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) (10,33,873) 14,20,704
Cash Flow before Exceptional ltems (79,60,019) 65,51,524
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities (79,60,019) 65,51,524
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets - -
Net cash from investing activities = -
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 1,26,55,720 (24,79,444)
Interest Paid (43,45,771) 23,09,949 (53,05,579) (77,85,023)
Net cash generated/{used] in financing activities 83,09,949 (77,85,023)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,49,930 {12,33,500)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 3,24,526 15,58,025
6,74,457 3,24,526
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 6,39,241 2,67,143
Cash on hand {(As certifiad by the management) 35,216 57,383
6,74,457 3,24,526
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For and on behalf of the Board
For Krishan Kumar Bengani
Chartered Accountant RDB JAIPURWFRASTRUCTURE H&TD‘
ROB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE PVI. LTD. P
o—" v /
i’b’aolcsk jaiy e~ \N\ irector
. . Director . Drx
Krishan Kumar Bengani Director Director
Membership No. 302555
20, Salkia School Road
Howrah -711106
The 20th day of May'2019




RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY RDB REALTY (P) LTD.)
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata — 700001
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

26. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A. Corporate Information

RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.) (The Company) is a deemed
Public limited company, private company being a subsidiary of Listed Public Company domiciled and
incorporated in India. It is a part of a group leading in real estate activities in Eastern India. The
registered office of the Company is situated at 8/1, Lalbazar Street, Bikaner Building, 1 Floor, Room

No.10, Kolkata-700001, The principle business activity of the company is Real Estate Developmant.

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred
to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant
provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as

applicable
Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial

instruments).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing

the asset or liability at the measurement date
Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the

Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.The normal

operating cycle of the company has been considered as 12 months.

b) Use of estimates and management judgments :

The preparation of financial statement in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles
of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in

future periods.
i) Key estimates and assumptions :

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes

are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.




RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY RDB REALTY (P) LTD.]
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata— 700001
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

i) Revenue recognition, contract costs and valuation of unbilled revenue

The Company uses the percentage of-completion method for recognition of revenue, accounting for
unbilled revenue and contract cost thereon for its real estate and contractual projects. The
percentage of completion is measured by reference to the stage of the projects and contracts
determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the estimated total contract costs. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the
Company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or
costs to be expended. Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion,
the extent of the contract cost incurred, the estimated total contract revenue and contract cost and
the recoverability of the contracts. These estimates are based on events existing at the end of each

reporting date.

For revenue recognition for projects executed through joint development arrangements, refer

clause (ii) below as regards estimates and assumptions involved.

iii) Estimation of net realisable value for inventory property (including land advance)
Inventory property is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).

NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices
existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions
identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical market serving the same real

estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventary property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices
at the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction

and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion.

With respect to Land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of
future cash flows, which depends on the estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a
project will be completed, the expected date of completion, the discount rate used and the

estimation of sale prices and construction costs.

¢) Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price, any costs directly
attributable to its acquisition and an initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which the company incurs when the item
is acquired. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic henefits associated with the item
will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and

maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item is depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or

foss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the Property,

plant and equipment is derecognised.

On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property,
plant and equipment recognized as at 1% April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that

carrying value as the deem_g&d@pas&g‘&lle property, plant and equipment.
”"L:i"f’.—-Mfﬁ‘ 5
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d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

Revenue Recognition-
Revenue is recognized as follows:

i Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on Percentage Completion Method.
Revenue recognition starts when 25 % of estimated project cost excluding land and marketing
cost is incurred, atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements
with buyers and Atleast 10 % of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any other
legally enforceable documents are realised at the reporting date in respect of each of the
contracts and it is reasonable to expect that the parties to such contracts will comply with the
payment terms as defined in the contracts.

ii.  Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on "Percentage of Completion Method"
measured by reference to the survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the
client before finalisation of projects accounts.

ii.  Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax, if any, net of sales return.

iv. Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise
stated

V. Rental income from assets is recognised for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate
collection is considered doubtful. Rental income is exclusive of service tax

vi.  Income from interest is accounted for on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable rate of interest.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are carried as part of
the cost of such asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they are incurred.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an
indication that both tangible and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized
wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized.

Inventories

Constructed properties, shown as wark in progress, includes the cost of land (including development
rights and land under agreements to purchase), internal development costs, external development
costs, construction costs, overheads, borrowing costs, construction materials including material lying at
respective sites, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their
present location and condition and is valued at lower of cost/ estimated cost and net realizable value.
On completion of projects, unsold stocks are transferred to project finished stock under the head
“Inventory” and the same is carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.

Finished Goods - Flats; Valued at cost and net realizable value.

Land Inventory: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value,

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Retirement Benefits
No such benefits are payable to any employee.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of
estimation if the company has_a a present obligation as a result of past event and the amount of
obligation can be reliably est‘fh\at{gi\;\

/).../




RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY RDB REALTY (P) LTD.)
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Possible future or present obligations that may but will probably not require outflow of resources or
where the same can not be reliably estimated is disclosed as contingent liahility in the financial
statement.

Taxes on Income

Tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax is determined in respect of
taxable income for the year based on applicable tax rates and laws.

Deferred tax Asset/liability is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing
differences being the differences between taxable incomes and accounting income that originates in
one year and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent year and measured using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date to reassess their reliability.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the
book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular corporate tax payable in
subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act. MAT paid in a year is charged to the
statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset
only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In
the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-
tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and
shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at
each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

k) Segment Reporting

The company has identified that its operating activity is a single primary business segment viz. Real
Estate Development and Services carried out in India. Accordingly, whole of India has been
considered as one geographical segment

1) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

m) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash & cash on deposit with banks and corporations. The
Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash
management and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.
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n)

Financial Instruments

» Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the company’s statement of financial
position when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
company determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Y

Financial assets —Subsequent measurement
The Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification which is as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for sale in the
near term and those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are
stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable
amounts based on the ageing of the receivables balance and historical experience. Additionally,
a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems
them not to be collectible.
Debt instruments at amortised cost:
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
I The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.
Debt instrument at FVTOC|
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
i. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financizl assets, and
ii. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL. Debt instruments included within the
FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCl).
Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting m}ism?'{j?_:h’“ The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.
ey e i
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o)

¢ Financial assets at fair value through OC|

All equity investments, except investments in subsidia ries, joint ventures and associates, falling
within the scope of ind AS 109, are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). The company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument by instrument basis
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the company decides to
designate an equity instrument at fair value through OCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.

Financial assets ~Derecognition

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assets expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset. Upon derecognition of equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCl, the associated fair value changes of that equity instrument Is transferred from OCI to Retained
Earnings.

Financial Habilities —
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate.
The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts.
Subseguent measurement
The Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification which is as
follows:
e Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading,
if any, and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term,
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

e Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Interest bearing loans and borrowings including debentures issued by the company are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR).
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fee or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortized is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

¢ Financial liabilities ~Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
expires.

Fair Value measurement

The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
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based on presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

o Inthe principal market for the assets or liability or

o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The company
uses valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unohservable inputs. i
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable, or
P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets Is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance.
The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recoghnition.
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Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

The income tax expense for the year can he recondled ta the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars Year ended 31.03.19 | Year ended 31.03.18
Profit before tax (29,48,247) 70,921
Income tax expense calculated @ 25.75% (2017: 29.87%) - 18,262
Other differences - (4,762)
Total - 13,500
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years 14 10,267
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 14 23,767

The tax rate used for the year 2017-18 and 2018-19 reconciliations above is the corporate tax payable on taxable profits under the
Income Tax Act, 1951,

Related Party Disclosure

Related Party Relatioriship

Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd — Holding
Transactions & Balanaces :

No related party transactions have been been reported by the management.

In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course of
business. The provision for all known liabilities s adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingent
liability except stated and informed by the Management.

Contingent Liabilities:- Nil (P. Y. Nil)

Ind AS optional exemptions
Deemed Cost of Property, Plant and Equipment

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for property, plant and equipment and use that as its
deemed cost at the date of transition.
Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant ard equipment at their previous GAAP carrying value.

Deemed Cost of Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
The company did not had any Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures as at the date of transition

ind AS mandatory exemptions

Estimates

An entity’s astimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same
date in accordance with previous GAAP. Ind AS estimates at 1st April, 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made
with conformity with previous GAAP,

De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on
or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition retrospectively from
a date of entity’s choosing.

The entity has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions prospectively fram the date of transition.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of assets on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the
date of transition to Ind AS. The entity has applied this exception.

Fair Valuation of Investments

Under the previous GAAP, investments were classified as long term investments or current investments based on the intended holding
period and realisability. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value changes of
these investments have been recognised in retained earnings as at the date of transition.

Transition to Ind AS -~ Reconciliations

Ind AS 101 requires an entity.ta.reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables
iatiBris-fhoind revi d AS:

represent the reccnci!‘_ga.tgglrbs\{ﬂdr&j;rﬁmgs GAAP to In

)
3
o 0
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Reconciliation of Other Equity

Particulars As on 31.03.2019 As on 31.03.2018
Resarves and Surplus as per IGAAP (1,47,74,531) (1.18,59,622)
Add: Fair valuation of Security Deposits Received = -

Other Equity as per Ind AS (1,47,74,531) (1,18,59,622)

Notes:

Under Indian GAAP, there are certain security deposits recelved which are carried at nominal value. Ind AS requires the measurement
of these assets at fair value at inception and subsequently these assets are measured at amortized cost. At inception date, Company
recognises difference between deposit fair value and nominal value as income/expensesand the Company recognises notional interest
income/expenses on these deposits over the lease term.

Indian GAAP required deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focusses on differences between taxable
profits and accounting profits for the periad. Ind AS 12 requires entitias to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach,
which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The
application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences, which was not reqguired
under Indian GAAP. In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to different temporary differences. According to the accounting
policies, the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in retained earnings or a separate component of equity.

The Company has undertaken a detailed exercise to determine the manner of allocation of expenses to inventary in context of Ind AS
and accordingly realignedallocation of expenses and income to comply with Ind AS requirements.

Impact of Ind AS adoption on the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019
There are no differences between the Cash Flow Statement presentad under Ind AS and the Previous GAAB,

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures As on 31.03.2019

Particulars at Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 38,038,683 38,09,683 38,09,683
(i)  Cash and cash equivalents 6,74,457 6,74,457 6,74,457
(illy Other financial assets 7,25,965 7,25,965 7,425,965
Total Financial Assets 52,10,105 52,10,105 52,10,105
(a) Financlal Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 6,56,77,833 6,56,77,833 6,56,77,833
(i)  Trade and ather payables 4,94,83,565 4,94,83,565 4,94 83,565
(iii} Other financial liabilities 1,15,32,95,232 1,15,32,95,232 1,15,32,95,232
Total Financial Liabilities 1,26,84,56,630 1,26,84,56,630 1,26,84,56,630
As on 31.03.2018
Particulars Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
{a) Financial Assets
{1}  Trade receivables 1,22,44 661 1,22,44,661 1,22,44,661
(if)  Cash and cash equivalents 3,24,526 3,24,526 3,24,526
(i) Other financial assets 5,06,55,966 5,06,55,966 5,06,55,966
Total Financial Assets 6,32,25,153 6,32,25,152 6,32,25,153
(a)} Financial Liabilities
(I} Borrowings 5,30,22113 5,30,22,113 5,30,22,113
{ii}  Trade and other payables 4,95,53,250 4,95,53,250 4,85,53,250
{iii}  Other financial liabilities 1,22,07,34,657 1,22,07,34,657 1,22,07,34,657
Total Financial Liabilities 1,32,33,10,020 1,32,33,10,020 1,32,33,10,020

Capital Requirements i

For the purpose of the Compa‘ri\-?{ £ ',iiliﬂagement, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
oy A \

d\
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reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise
the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharahaldere,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash
and cash equivalents

Particulars 31i-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Borrowings (long-term and  short-term, including current
maturities of long term borrowings) 6,56,77,833 5.30,22,113

Trade payables 4,94,83,565 4,95,53,250
Other payables (current ‘and non-current, excluding current

maturities of long term borrowings) WSR2 Ll 2T
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (6,74,457) {3,24,526)
Net debt 1,26,77,82,173 1,32,29,85,494
Equity share capital 10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
Other aquity (1,47,74,531) (1,18,59,622)
Total Capital 8,52,25469 £,81,40,378
Gearing ratio 0.07 0.07

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital managemeant, amongst other things, airms to ensure that it meats
financlal covenants attached to the inte rest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and barrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and March
31, 2018,

Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities Is to finance and support Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk, The Company's senior management oversees the management of
these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company’s
senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk:
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuatebecause of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate riskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and commadity/ real estate risk.
The Company has not entered Into any foreign exchange or commodity derivative contracts, Accordingly, there is no significant exposure
to the market risk other than interest risk.
() Interest cate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fMows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changesin
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
The borrowings of the Company are unsecured and at fixed rates. In case of huge interest rate flucualtion, compamny has the
options to repay the amount and can also re-borrow at lower prevalent market rate. The Company does not enter into any
interest rate swaps. :

{ii} Price risk
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The Company has not made any investments for trading purposes. The surpluses have been deployed in bank deposits as
explained above.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counte rparty will not meet its obligations under 3 financial Instrument or customer contract, leading to a
finandial loss. The Cornpany Is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from ite financing
activities, including refundable joint development deposits, security deposits, loans to employees and other financial instruments,

Trade receivables

Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances before transfer
of ownership, therefore, Substantially eliminating the Company's credit risk in this respect.

Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Quistanding customer receivables ara
regularly monitored. The impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for majar clients. In addition,
a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximurn
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral
a3 security. The Company’s credit period generally ranges from 30-60 days.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars As on 31.03.2019 Ason 31.03.2018
Mare than 6 months 38,09,683 -
Others - 1,22,44 661

Depaosits with banks and financial institutions

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made on ly with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
counterparty.

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the
year subject to approval of the Board, The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss
through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk forthe components of
the statement of financial position at 31 March 2019 and 2018 is the carrying amounts.

Liguidity Risk

The Company's investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the tenets of safety, liquidity and return.
The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. In case of
short term requirements, it obtains short-term loans from its Bankers.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF RAJ CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Raj Construction Projects Private Limited, which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other compretiensive
income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended on that date,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2019, its Profit {including other comprehensive income), Changes in Equity and Cash
flows for the year ended on that gate.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (SA’s) section 143(10) of the Companias Act,
2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fuifilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirernents and
the Code of Ethics. We believe thatsthe audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate te provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provice a separate
opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it i< an
unlisted company.

information other than the Ind AS financial statements and auditors’ report thereon
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, but does not include the Ind AS
financial statemerits and our auditor’s report thereon. These other information is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not expross any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Flat No 706, 7" Floor, Block-B, Swapnalok Apartment, Howrah - 711106
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Chartered Accountant

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respansibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or

our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern

realistic alternative but to do so.
The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

L]
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and

throughout the audit. We also:
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3](i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible

the operating effectiveness of such controls
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

closures made by management,
Flat No 706, 7" Floor, Block-B, Swapnalok Apartment, Howrah - 711106
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Chartered Accountant

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind
AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disciosures,
and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters
communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public iterest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The Comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2018 included in these
standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, is based on the Ind AS financial statement for the year ended 21 March,
2018 which were audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.
Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below is not modified in respect of above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records
as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we set out a statement
on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

1 a)  The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the management according to
a phased programme designed to cover all the items which considering the size and nature of
operations of the company appears to be reasonable, Pursuant to such program, no material
discrepancies between book records and physical inventory have been noticed on physical verification.
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Chartered Accountant

2, The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on

physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been properly
dealt with in the books of account.

3 a) The company has granted unsecured loans to company covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not
prejudicial to the company’s interest.

b) There is no stipulation regarding recovery of loans as these loans are repayable on demand. The

aforesaid loans being repayable on demand, there is no amount overdue for more than ninety days in
respect of recovery of principal and interest of the above loans.

4.) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, have been complied with in respect of
loans, investments guarantees and securities given by the Company.

. The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules
framed there under are not applicable.

6.) The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

7.) a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
goods and service tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is
no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to information and
explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.

8.) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us,
the Company does not have any outstanding from any banks, financial institutions or government nor has it
any outstanding debenture; hence the clause is not applicable.

9.) In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was no money raised
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and the term loan has been
applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for which they were obtained.

10.)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud by the company

nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

Flat No 706, At Floor, Block-B, Swapnalok Apartment, Howrah - 711106




KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

11.)  As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managerial personnel during the period
in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

12.)  The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicable,

13.)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
the Company has complied with the requirements of sections 177 and 188 of the Act with respect 1o its
transactions with the related parties. Pursuant to the requirement of the applicable Accounting Standard,
details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in Note 35 of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements for the year under audit.

14.)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has neither made

any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.

15 According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Hence clause is not applicable.

16.) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not required to be
registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
1. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

2. In our opinion, proper boaoks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

3. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income) and the Cash
Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

4. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

5. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

6. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financials reporting of the company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.

Flat No 706, 7" Floor, Block-B, Swapnalok Apartment, Howrah - 711106
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7. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

8. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

(a) The company does not have any pending litigation.

(b) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

(c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the lnvestor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI
Chartered Accountant

Krishan Kumar Bengani

Place: Howrah
Date: 20/05/2019 /_/':i WUASN
7 N
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

TO THE MEMBERS OF RAJ CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

as of 31 March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implemeniat on and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the o:deily and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assuts, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Com pany's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intefnal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial contrals, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controle
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that

e
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KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI

Chartered Accountant

i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

ii) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the campany.

iii)  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 317
I\.’Iérch, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidarice Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For KRISHAN KUMAR BENGANI
Chartered Accountant

Krishan Kumar Bengani A T/-—-aw;}\
7 \0\

Place: Howrah Je

a0 . O
Date: 20/05/2019 L oo pepenc 0
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Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2019

Particulars Note As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18
ASSETS
MNon-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 3,747,612 4,478,528
(b) Intangible 2A - -
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Investment 3 31,125,000 31,075,000
(if) Other Financial Assets 4 108,097 193,087
(d) Deferred tax assets (Net) 5 705,435 58,246
Total Non - Current Assets 35,690,144 35,804,861
Current assets
(a) Inventories 6 31,157,088 37,902,428
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 1,354,815 1,491,922
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 8 3,924,407 2,530,701
(ili) Other financial assets 9 164,686,218 149,869,007
(c) Current Tax Assets 10 1,763,823 1,798,241
(d) Other current assets 11 70,109 63,674
Total Current Assets 202,956,460 193,655,973
Total Assets 238,646,604 229,460,834
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 12 18,544,500 18,544,500
{b) Other Equity 13 212,033,258 201,964,575
Total equity 230,577,758 220,509,075
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 - =
(iii) Other financial liabilities - -
Total nen-current liabilities - -
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 - 1,563,348
(ii) Trade and other payables 16
outstanding to micro enterprises =
& small enterprises;
outstanding to ather than micro 312,710 356,877
enterprises & small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 97,444 1,371,490
(b) Other current liabilities 18 3,101,500 3,739,786
(c) Provisions 19 4,557,192 1,920,258
Total Current Liabilities 8,068,846 8,951,759
Total liabilities 8,068,846 8,951,759
Total Equity & Liabilities 238,646,604 229,460,834

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements

The 20th da

For Krishan Kumar Bengani For and on beha_lf f the IZ'.oarclH i

Chartered Accountant RAJ CON&EUC“ON LTD.

@&% rector
Dirgct_pr__ 4

Krishan Kumar Bengani RAJ CONSTRUCTION PROJECTPJLVI LTD.

Membership No. 302555 ¥edep lime™

20, Salkia School Road ]

Howrah - 711106 pirectd?ifector



Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floar, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2019

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note
31.03.19 31.03.18
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 13,181,223 4,269,731
Other income 21 15,214,615 15,282,423
Total Revenue 28,395,838 19,552,154
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 686,311 587,965
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & finished goods 23 6,745,340 (587,965)
Employee benefit expense 24 632,939 875,355
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 721,887 766,139
Finance costs 25 s 1,808,146
Other expenses 26 3,992,535 4,470,070
Total expenses 12,779,012 7,923,710
Profit before tax 15,616,826 11,628,444
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax N 102028
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 1,642,140 1,527,508
- Deferred Tax (651,189) i
Total tax expense 5,548,143 3,447,766
Profit after tax 10,068,683 8,180,678
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -+ 5
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 5 8
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,068,683 8,180,678
Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders 10,068,683 8,180,678
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 1,854,450 1,854,450
Basic earnings per share 5.43 4.41
Diluted earnings per share 5.43 4.41
Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements
This is the Statement of profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements
For Krishan Kumar Bengani For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountant RAJC TR CWPROJ"‘?TS PVI. LTD.
Sﬂiﬁi)wﬁm ) TLQ'
*@Pﬁw . [g#' Ctor
. . RAJ CONSTRUCTION PROJERTS R,
Krishan Kumar Bengani B —
Membership No, 302555 P‘(c.n’ec.'& g Y e
20, Salkia school Road Didector
Howrah - 711106 DirectarrF
The 20th day of May'2019




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935
Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Tangible Intangible
Particulars =
Land _u_m.snm m.._ﬂ._.__n..:.mm o Vehicles Computer Total Software
Machineries Fixtures
Gross carrying amount
Deemed cost as at 01.04.17 475,086 2,633,010 1,218,756 4,998,400 303,565 9,628,817 29,100
Additions - - 40,600 - - 40,600 -
Disposals - -
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.18 475,086 2,633,010 1,255,356 4,998,400 303,565 9,669,417 29,100
Additions - - - - 9,500 9,500 -
Disposals - 571,181 944,723 - 294,069 1,809,973 29,100
Closing gross carrying amount as on 31.03.19 475,086 2,061,829 314,633 4,998,400 18,996 7,868,944 &
Accumulated depreciation as at 01.04.17 - 1,526,767 1,050,665 1,543,859 303,459 4,424,750 29,100
Depreciation charge during the year - 216,378 27,207 522,554 - 766,139 7
Disposals - - - - - - 3
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.18 - 1,743,145 1,077,872 2,066,413 303,459 5,190,889 29,100
Depreciation charge during the year - 155,873 29,564 534,348 2,102 721,887 >
Disposals = 566,116 931,255 - 294,069 1,791,444 29,100
Closing accumulated depreciation as on 31.03.19 - 1,332,902 176,177 2,600,761 11,492 4,121,332 -
Net carrying amount as at 01.04.17 475,086 1,106,243 168,091 3,454,541 106 5,204,067 E
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.18 475,086 889,865 181,484 2,931,987 106 4,478,528
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.19 475,086 728,927 138,456 2,397,639 7,504 3,747,612




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Notes to the financial statements as on

As at 31,03.19

As at 31.03.18

Note 3 Investment

Investment in Equity Instruments (At Cost, fully Paid)

Equity Shares, Unguoted (Face Value Rs.10/- each)

Ritudhan Suppliers Pvt Ltd (Qty - 5,000 Shares) 50,000 =
Investment in Partnership Firm
Rituraj Construction LLP
- Capital 50,000 50,000
- Current = .
HPSD Enclave LLP
- Capital 50,000 50,000
- Current = -
HPVD Enclave LLP
- Capital 250,000 250,000
- Current 30,725,000 30,725,000
31,125,000 31,075,000
Disclosure of Partnership Firm
Rituraj Construction LLP
Name of Partner and Share of Investment
Raj Construction Projects Pvt Ltd (50%) 50,000 50,000
Raj Vardhan Patodia (50%) 50,000 50,000
HPSD Enclave LLP
Name of Partner and Share of Investment
Raj Construction Projects Pvt Ltd (50%)
- Capital 50,000 50,000
- Current - -
Regent Hirise Private Limited (50%)
- Capital 50,000 50,000
- Current (45,000) (45,000)
HPVD Enclave LLP
Name of Partner and Share of Investment
Raj Construction Projects Pvt Ltd (50%)
- Capital 250,000 250,000
- Current 30,725,000 30,725,000
Regent Hirise Private Limited (50%)
- Capital 250,000 250,000
- Current 30,490,000 30,490,000
Note 4 Financial Assets
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits 108,097 193,087
TOTAL 108,097 193,087
Note 4 Deferred Tax Liability (net)
Deferred Tax Assets
- On Fixed Assets 709,435 58,246
Deferred Tax Assets 709,435 58,246

O%
m@m‘ﬁ“’%



Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18

Note 6 inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)

Finished Stock 12,476,659 19,820,459
Work in process 18,680,429 18,081,569
Total Inventories 31,157,088 37,902,428
Note 7 Trade receivables
Trade receivables 1,342,169 1,491,922
Receivables from related parties (holding company) 12,646 -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -
1,354,815 1,491,922

Break up of security details:

Trade receivables

(a) Secured, considered good - -
(b) Unsecured, considered good 1,354,815 1,491,922
() Doubtful 5 g
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -

Total 1,354,815 1,491,922

Note 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 3,548,146 2,292,339
(b) Chegques, drafts on hand - =

(c) Cash in hand 376,261 238,362
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 3,924,407 2,530,701

Note 9 Other financial assets
Unsecured, considered good

Loan To Others 162,016,906 146,445,502
Other Advance 2,669,312 3,423,505
TOTAL 164,686,218 149,869,007

Note 10 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets

Advance Income Tax and TDS 1,763,823 1,798,241
TOTAL 1,763,823 1,798,241
Note 11 Other current assets

Prepaid Expenses 49,522 25,710
Balance with Statutory Authorities 20,587 37,964
TOTAL 70,109 63,674




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18

Note 12 Equity Share Capital
(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares 2,000,000 2,000,000

Total Amount 20,000,000 20,000,000

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 1,854,450 1,854,450

Total Amount 18,544,500 18,544,500

¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 1,854,450 1,854,450
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 1,854,450 1,854,450
Percentage of total shares held 100% 100%

o) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repayment of capital
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder
of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian
rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

g) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 1,854,350 1,854,350
Percentage of total shares held 99.99% 99.99%

Ravi Prakash Pincha (Nominee of above)
Number of Shares 100 100
Percentage of total shares held 0.01% 0.01%

100 Shares held by Ravi Prakash Pincha are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB Realty &
Infrastructure Ltd

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares . @ "
Total Amount = =

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Notes to the financial statements as on

As at 31.03.19

As at 31.03.18

Note 13 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
As at the end of the year
Securities Premium
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Charges during the year
As at the end of the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income

Total

124,922,075
10,068,683

116,741,397
8,180,678

134,990,758

124,922,075

77,042,500

77,042,500

77,042,500

77,042,500

212,033,258

201,964,575

Note 14 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)
Secured - at amortised cost
Car Loan From Bank
Secured by way of hypothecation of Car Purchased
Total Facility Amount - Rs.44,00,000/- repayable in 36
equal monthly installments of Rs. 1,47,196/- each
including interest @ 12.50% starting from 07.04.15
and last installment falling due on 07.03.18
Total non-current borrowings

Note 15 Other Financial Liability (Non Current)
Security Deposits (Unsecured)
Total

Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings (Current)
From other than Related Parties (Unsecured)
Total

1,563,348

1,563,348

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade Payables

To micro enterprises & small enterprises;

To other than micro enterprises & small enterprises
Total

312,710

356,877

312,710

356,877

Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities (Current)

Current maturity of long term debt
Other Liabilities

Qutstanding Statutory Payment
Total

74,200
23,244

1,371,490

97,444

1,371,490




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.19 As at 31.03.18

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customer and Others 3,101,500 3,739,786

Total 3,101,500 3,739,786

Note 19 Provisions
Provision for Income Tax 4,557,192 1,020,258

Total 4,557,192 1,920,258




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70109WB1987PTC0413935

Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations

Sales of Services (Construction Activities)
Rental Income (Including Rs.90,000/- from holding company)

TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income

Interest on Loan

Sundry Balances written back
Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Contract Labour Charges

Professional Charges

Other Construction Expenses
Consumption

Note 23 Changes in inventories
(A) Opening Inventory
Finished Goods
Work in Progress
Sub Total (A)
(B) Closing inventory
Finished Goods
Work in Progress
Sub Total (B)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)

Note 24 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and incentives
Total

Note 25 Finance Cost

Interest Paid

Other Borrowing Cost (Finance Charges)
Total

Year ended 31.03.19

Year ended 31.03.18

9,464,726 =
3,716,497 4,269,731
13,181,223 4,269,731
14,712,175 15,282,423
502,440 =
15,214,615 15,282,423
1,950 =
684,361 587,965
686,311 587,965
15,820,459 19,820,459
18,081,969 17,494,004
37,902,428 37,314,463
12,476,659 19,820,459
18,680,429 18,081,969
31,157,088 37,902,428
6,745,340 (587,965)
632,939 879,355
632,939 879,355
E 1,808,146

1,808,146




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U7010SWB1987PTC041935

Notes to the financial statements

Note 26 Other Expenses

Municipal Tax on Rented Property

Rates & Taxes

Rent

Electricity Expenses

Computer Expenses

Filing Fees

General Expenses

Insurance Charges

Interest on Statutory Dues

Maintenance Charges

Motor Vehicle Expenses

Other Repairs

Postage & Telegram

Printing & Stationery

Fixed Assets written off

Professional Charges

Advertisement, Publicity & Sales Promotion Expenses

Commission

Travelling Charges

Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees

Total

Year ended 31.03.19

Year ended 31.03.18

738,261 762,148
10,580 8,600
31,872 32,868

8,250 -

22,363 ===
7,800 2,916
24,035 51,027
45,352 80,693
318 5,563

609,129 1,374,052

581,104 355,245
10,875 925,342

40 3,210

9,523 8,509
18,529 -ne

27,425 10,200

1,535,566 766,117

277,850 57,500

26,163 18,580
5,000 5,000
2,500 2,500

3,992,535 4,470,070




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70109WB1987PTCD41935
Notes to the financial statements

A. Share Capital

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital as on 01.04.2017 18,544,500
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year =
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2018 18,544,500
Add; Addition/(Deletion ) during the year =
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2019 18,544,500

B. Other Equity

Other Equity

Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity s A b Securities il .

R T —— Stati.:ment of S i Comprehensive | Amount (Rs.)
Profit & Loss Income

Balance at 1 April 2017 116,741,397 77,042,500 - 193,783,897

Transfers - - - -

Profit for the year 2,180,678 - - 8,180,678

Total comprehensive income for the year 124,922,075 77,042,500 - 201,964,575

Balance at 31 March 2018 124,922,075 77,042,500 - 201,964,575

Transfers - 5 = &

Profit for the Year 10,068,683 - - 10,068,683

Total comprehensive income for the year 134,990,758 77,042,500 - 212,033,258

Balance at 31 March 2019 134,990,758 77,042,500 = 212,033,258

om, No.- 302655 W\ |
Howrah-711406

i




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

For the year ended For the year ended
Cash Flow Statement 31st March,2019 31st March,2018
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Met profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 15,616,826 11,628,444
Adjustments for
Sundry Balances written back (502,440) -
Fixed Assets written off 18,529 B
Depreciation & Amortisation 721,887 766,139
Interest Paid - 237,976 1,808,146 2,574,285
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 15,854,802 14,202,729
{Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 6,745,340 (587,965)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables 137,107 22,919
(Increase) / Decrease of Financial Assets (14,732,221) 23,795,789
(Increase) / Decrease of Non Financial Assets (6,435) 24,310
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (44,167) 160,379
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial lizbilities (1,274,046) 181,346
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities (135,846) (9,310,268) 461,286 24,058,064
Cash generated from operations 6,544,534 38,260,793
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 3,527,981 4,485,911
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items 3,016,553 33,774,882
Net cash Generated/{used) from operating activities 3,016,553 33,774,882
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets (9,500) (40,600)
Increase in Investment (50,000) (975,000)
Net cash from investing activities {59,500) {1,015,600)
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (1,563,348) (28,463,283)
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings - (1,652,346)
Interest Paid - (1,563,348) (1,808,146) (31,923,775)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (1,563,348) (31,923,775)
Net increase/(decrease] in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C) 1,393,705 835,507
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 2,530,701 1,695,194
3,924,407 2,530,701
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 3,548,146 2,292,339
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 376,261 238,362
3,924,407 2,530,701

For Krishan Kumar Bengani
Chartered Accountant
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Krishan Kumar Bengani
Membership No. 302555
20, Salkia School Road

Howrah - 711106
The 20th day of May'2019

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
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26. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A.

b)

Corporate Information

Raj Construction Projects Private Limited (The Company) is a deemed Public limited company, private
company being a subsidiary of Listed Public Company domiciled and incorporated in India. It is a part of
a group leading in real estate activities in Eastern India. The registered office of the Company is situated
at 8/1, Lalbazar Street, Bikaner Building, 1 Floor, Room No.10, Kolkata-700001, The principle business
activity of the company is Real Estate Development.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred
to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time and other relevant
provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as
applicable

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional cu rrency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013.The normal
operating cycle of the company has been considered as 12 months.

Use of estimates and management judgments :

The preparation of financial statement in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles

of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the

disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in

future periods.

i) Key estimates and assumptions :
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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c)

i) Revenue recognition, contract costs and valuation of unbilled revenue

The Company uses the percentage of-completion method for recognition of revenue, accounting for
unbilled revenue and contract cost thereon for its real estate and contractual projects. The
percentage of completion is measured by reference to the stage of the projects and contracts
determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the estimated total contract costs. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the
Company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or
costs to be expended. Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion,
the extent of the contract cost incurred, the estimated total contract revenue and contract cost and
the recoverability of the contracts. These estimates are based on events existing at the end of each
reporting date.

For revenue recognition for projects executed through joint development arrangements, refer
clause (ii) below as regards estimates and assumptions involved.

iii) Estimation of net realisable value for inventory property (including land advance)
Inventory property is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).
NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices
existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions
identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical market serving the same real
estate segment.
NRV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices
at the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction
and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion.
With respect to Land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of
future cash flows, which depends on the estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a
project will be completed, the expected date of completion, the discount rate used and the
estimation of sale prices and construction costs.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price, any costs directly
attributable to its acquisition and an initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which the company incurs when the item
is acquired. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item is depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the Property,
plant and equipment is derecognised.

On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property,
plant and equipment recognized as at 1°' April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that

carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.
v\ KUM ‘\‘\
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d)

e)

g)

Revenue Recognition-
Revenue is recognized as follows:

i Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on Percentage Completion Method.
Revenue recognition starts when 25 % of estimated project cost excluding land and marketing
cost is incurred, atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by contracts or agreements
with buyers and Atleast 10 % of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any other
legally enforceable documents are realised at the reporting date in respect of each of the
contracts and it is reasonable to expect that the parties to such contracts will comply with the
payment terms as defined in the contracts.

i.  Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on "Percentage of Completion Method"
measured by reference to the survey of works done up to the reporting date and certified by the
client before finalisation of projects accounts.

fii.  Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax, if any, net of sales return.

iv.  Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise

stated

V. Rental income from assets is recognised for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate
collection is considered doubtful. Rental income is exclusive of service tax

vi.  Income from interest is accounted for on time proportion basis taking into account the amount

outstanding and the applicable rate of interest.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are carried as part of
the cost of such asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they are incurred.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an
indication that both tangible and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized
wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss for an asset
is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized.

Inventories

Constructed properties, shown as work in progress, includes the cost of land (including development
rights and land under agreements to purchase), internal development costs, external development
costs, construction costs, overheads, borrowing costs, construction materials including material lying at
respective sites, finance and administrative expenses which contribute to bring the inventory to their
present location and condition and is valued at lower of cost/ estimated cost and net realizable value.
On completion of projects, unsold stocks are transferred to project finished stock under the head
“Inventory” and the same is carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.

Finished Goods — Flats: Valued at cost and net realizable value.

Land Inventory: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

Retirement Benefits
No such benefits are payable to any employee.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of
estimation if the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and the amount of
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J)

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Possible future or present obligations that may but will probably not require outflow of resources or

where the same can not be reliably estimated is disclosed as contingent liability in the financial
statement.

Taxes on Income

i.

Tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax is determined in respect of
taxable income for the year based on applicable tax rates and laws.

Deferred tax Asset/liability is recognized, su bject to consideration of prudence, on timing
differences being the differences between taxable incomes and accounting income that originates in
one year and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent year and measured using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substa ntively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date to reassess their reliability.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the
book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular corporate tax payable in
subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act. MAT paid in a year is charged to the
statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset
only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In
the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-
tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and
shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at
each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

k) Segment Reporting

The company has identified that its operating activity is a single primary business segment viz. Real
Estate Development and Services carried out in India. Accordingly, whole of India has been
considered as one geographical segment

I) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

m) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash & cash on deposit with banks and corporations. The
Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.
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n)

Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the company’s statement of financial
position when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
company determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All
financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded

at fair value through profit or loce, trancaction cocte that are attributable to the acquicition of the
financial asset.

»

Financial assets —Subsequent measurement
The Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification which is as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for sale in the

near term and those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in an active market. Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are

stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable

amounts based on the ageing of the receivables balance and historical experience. Additionally,

a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for

impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems

them not to be collectible.

Debt instruments at amortised cost:

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are met:

i. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

ii. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. Debt instruments included within the
FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL, Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOC! criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as

g m|smatch ). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.
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e Financial assets at fair value through OCI

All equity investments, except investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, falling
within the scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income (OCl). The company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument by instrument basis
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
claccification ic made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the company decides to
designate an equity instrument at fair value through OCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL.

e Financial assets —Derecognition
The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assets expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset. Upon derecognition of equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCl, the associated fair value changes of that equity instrument is transferred from OCI to Retained
Earnings.

e Financial liabilities —

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including

bank overdrafts.

Subseguent measurement

The Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification which is as

follows:

e Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading,
if any, and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

¢ Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Interest bearing loans and borrowings including debentures issued by the company are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR).
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fee or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortized is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

e Financial liabilities —Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
expires.

o} Fair Value measurement
The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
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based on presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

o In the principal market for the assets or liability or

o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The company
uses valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
> Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable, or
P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

p) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance.
The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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Notes to the financial statements

27

28

29

30

31(1)

31(2)

0]

Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.19 31.03.18

Profit before tax 15,616,826 11,628,444
Income tax expense calculated @ 26.00% (2017: 25.76%) 4,060,375 2,994,324
Effect of items not allowable for Tax purpose 350,882 -
Effect of Allowances for Tax purpose (76,216) =
O‘_cher differences 222,151 (1,074,066)
Total 4,557,192 1,920,258
Adjustments in current year in relation to the current tax of prior years 1,642,140 1,527,508
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 6,199,332 3,447,766

The tax rate used for the year 2017-18 and 2018-19 reconciliations above is the corporate tax payable on taxable profits under

the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Related Party Disclosure
Related Party Relationship

Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd — Holding

Transactions & Balanaces :

Rental Income from RDB RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd - Rs. 90,000/- (P.Y. Rs. 80,000/-)

In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary
course of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

There is no contingent liability except stated and informed by the Management.

Contingent Liabilities:-

Income Tax Demand - Rs.13.32 lacs. These demand includes payable towards addition by Income Tax Officer, Demand &

Interest on Summary Assessment. Etc

Ind AS optional exemptions
Deemed Cost of Property, Plant and Equipment

Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for property, plant and equipment and use

that as its deemed cost at the date of transition.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at their previous GAAP carrying

value.

Deemed Cost of Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The company did not had any Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures as at the date of transition.

Ind A5 mandatory exemptions
Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for
the same date in accordance with previous GAAP. Ind AS estimates at 1st April, 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at

the same date made with conformity with previous GAAP.
De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions
occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first time adopter to apply the de-

recognition retrospectively from a date of entity’s choosing.

The entity has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions prospectively from the date of transition.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of assets on the basis of facts and circumstances that

exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. The entity has applied this exception.

Fair Valuation of Investments

Under the previous GAAP, investments were classified as long term investments or current investments based on the
intended holding period and realisability. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value. The
resulting fair value changes of these investments have been recognised in retained earnings as at the date of transition.
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Notes to the financial statements

A,

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Under Indian GAAP, there are certain security deposits received which are carried at nominal value. Ind AS requires the
measurement of these assets at fair value at inception and subsequently these assets are measured at amortized cost. At
inception date, Company recognises difference between deposit fair value and nominal value as income/expensesand the
Company recognises notional interest income/expenses on thesa deposits over the lease term.

Indian GAAP required deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focusses on differences
between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using
the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in
the balance sheet and its tax base, The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resclted in recognition of deferred tax on new
temporary differences, which was not required under Indian GAAP. In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to
different temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the Company has to account for such differences,
Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a
separate component of equity.

The Company has undertaken a detailed exercise to determine the manner of allocation of expenses to inventory in context
of Ind AS and accordingly realignedallocation of expenses and income to comply with Ind AS requirements,

Impact of Ind AS adoption on the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

There are no differences between the Cash Flow Statement presented under

32 Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures As on 31.03.2019

Ind AS and the Previous GAAP.

Particulars at Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
(a) Financial Assets
{i} Investments 3,11,25,000 3,11,25,000 3,11,25,000
(ii)  Trade receivables 13,54,815 13,54,815 13,54,815
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 39,24,407 39,24,407 39,24,407
(iv) Other financial assets 16,47,94,315 16,47,94,315 16,47,94,315
Total Financial Assets 20,11,98,537 20,11,98,537 20,11,98,537
(2) Financial Liabilitias
(i) Borrowings = - -
(i)  Trade and other payables 3,12,710 F 12710 3,12,710
(iii) Other financial liabilities 97,444 97,444 97,444
Total Financial Liabilities 4,10,154 4,10,154 4,10,154
As on 31.03.2018
Particulars Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 3,10,75,000 3,10,75,000 3,10,75,000
(i) Trade receivables 14,91,922 14,91,922 14,91,922
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 25,30,701 25,30,701 25,30,701
(iv) Other financial assets 15,00,62,094 15,00,62,094 15,00,62,094

Total Financial Assets
(a) Financial Liabilities

18,51,59.717

18,51,59,717

18,51,59,717

(i) Borrowings 15,63,348 15,63,348 15,63,348
(ii) Trade and other payables 3,56,877 3,56,877 3,56,877
(iii) Other financial liabilities 13,71,490 13,71,490 12,71,490
Total Financial Liabilities 32,91,715 32,91,715 32,91,715

Capital Requirements

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital

management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue rew shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt -ﬁ FT‘*-:-,R

b o

ital plus net debt, The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing lnoans
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Notes to the financial statements

and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents

Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Borrowings (long-term and short-term, including current

maturities of long term borrowings) g 15,63,348
Trade payables 3,12,710 3,56,877
Other payables (current and non-current, excluding current

maturities of long term borrowings) Wyt 1371890
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (25,30,701) (16,95,194)
Net debt (21,20,547) 15,96,521
Equity share capital 1,85,44,500 1,85,44,500
Other equity 20,19,64,575 19,37,83,897
Total Capital 22,05,09,075 21,23,28,397
Gearing ratio (103.99) 132,99

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediatel
been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and bor

y call loans and borrowings. There have
rowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2019

and March 31, 2018.

33 Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of

these financial liabilities is to finance and support Company's operations. The Com

pany’s principal financial assets include

trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly

from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee
provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by

appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate riskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and
commodity/ real estate risk. The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange or commaodity derivative contracts,
Accordingly, there is no significant exposure to the market risk other than interest risk.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
The company does not have any interest bearing loan oustanding as at the end of the period, hence there is no such
risk.

(ii} Price risk
The Company has not made any investments for trading purposes, The surpluses have been deployed in bank deposits
as explained above.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meat its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading
to a financial loss. The Compasy saggposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
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Notes to the financial statements

financing activities, including refundable joint development deposits, security depasits, loans to employees and other financial
instruments.

Trade receivables
Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances
before transfer of ownership, therefore, substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

Recoivablas resulting from othar than sale of properties: Credit risk s managed by each business unit subject to the

Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Qutstanding cusiomer

receivables are regularly monitored. The impairment aralysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for

major clients. In additien, a large nurnber of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for

impairment colleclively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of

financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company's credit period genzrally ranges from 30-60
The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars Ason 31.03.2015 As on 31.03.2018
More than 6 months - -
Dthers 13,54,815 14,91,922

Deposits with banks and financial institutions :

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in
accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are riarde only with approved counterparties and within
credit limits assigned to each rounterparty.

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directers on an annual basis, and may be updated
throughout the year subject to approval of the Board. The imits zre set to minimise the concantration of risks and tharefore
rnitigate financial logs through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The Company’s maximum exposure to
credit risk for ihe components of the statement of financial position at 31 March 2018 and 2019 is the carrying amounts.

Liquidity Risk

The Company’s investrient decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the tereats of safety, liquidity
and return. The Compaay imeanages its liguidity risk by ensuring that it will always have suificient liquidity to meet its lizbilities
when due. In case of shore term requiremants, it obtains short-term foars from its Bankers,




VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

5th Floor, R. No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 1, Mobile : 8331040655, Phone : (033) 4066 1047
E-mail - khousehouse71@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
RDB MUMBAI INERASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Fina ncial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RDB MUMBAI INFRASTRUCTURE
PRIVATE LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss, for the year then ended, cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory info rmation.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
sforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, and its
profit or loss for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and i+ forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.




Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether +he other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereis a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility of the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the Financial Position and Financial Performance of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting palicies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.




Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
-audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
staternents or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. The Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to this company.
2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that;

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss are dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2019, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, we repoi*t as under with respect to other matters to be included in the
Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014




i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under
report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The
question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270 Mol SO
Place: Kolkata S
Date: 20.05.2019




“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of RDB MUMBAI
INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED, as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

1. a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us Fixed Assets of the company are physically verified by the
management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items
which considering the size and nature of operations of the company appears to be
reasonable. Pursuant to such program, no material discrepancies between book
records and physical inventory have been noticed on physical verification.

c) The company does not have any immovable property under the fixed assets, hence
the clause is not applicable.

2.) a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals.
In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them.

b) In our opinion and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adeguate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its
business.

c) On the basis of our examinations of records of the inventory, in our opinion, the
company is maintaining proper records of inventory except in respect of work-in-
progress. As in earlier years, work-in-progress has been determined by the
management on the basis of physical verification. The discrepancies ascertained on
physical verification between the physical stock and the book records of inventory
were not material in relation to the operations of the Company.

3.) The company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.
Hence clause is not applicable.

4.) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in our opinion the company has neither given any guarantees
or security nor has made any investments nor given a loan covered under the provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5 The company has not accepted deposits and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
india and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under-are not pplicable.




6.)

7.)

8.)

9.)

10.)

11))

12.)

13.)

14.)

The rules regarding maintenance of cost records which have been specified by the central
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there is no arrears of
outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the company examined by us and according to
information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has duly repaid loan taken from banks. Further it
does not have any outstanding from any financial institutions or government nor has it any
outstanding debenture.

In our opinion, and according to the information’s and explanations given to us, there was
no money raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and the term loan has been applied, on an overall basis, for the purpose for
which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that neither any fraud
by the company nor on the company by its officers / employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

As examined by us, the company has not paid remuneration to any managetial personnel
during the period in accordance, hence clause is not applicable.

The company is not a nidhi company. Hence clause is not applicahle.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
neither made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares nor fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Hence clause is not applicable.




15.)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Hence clause is not applicable.

16)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that company is not
required to be registered u/s 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: 20.05.2019




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
15t Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2007PTC114242

Balance Sheet as on 31 March 2019

As per our report of even date
For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

i

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
3B.Lal Bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001,

The 20th day of May 2019

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statemenis

Particulars Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 77.470 55,736
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Investment 4 70,881,299 61,681,545
(d) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 5 2,272,466 2,272,466
(d) Other non-current assets : g
Total Non - Current Assets 73,231,235 64,009,747
Current assets
(a) lnventories 6 316,849,750 282,444,294
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 14,701,872 13,068,735
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 690,160 5,853,020
(iii) Other financial assets 9 15,446,651 15,824,852
(c) Current Tax Assets 10 4,945,518 4,565,468
(d) Other current assets 11 36,077,708 38,033,973
Total Current Assets 388,711,659 359,790,402
Total Assets 461,942,894 423,800,149
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 12 10,000,000 10,000,000
(b) Other Equity 13 (6,442,297) (5.382,446)
Total equity 3,557,703 4,617,554
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 14 285,984,921 243,592,165
(ii) Other financial liabilities i3 27,030,472 16,685,438
Total non-current liabilities 313,015,393 260,277,603
Current liabilities
(@) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 27,835,376 23,978,369
(i} Trade and other payables 17 16,129,538 2,652,963
(iif) Other financial liabilities 18 1,557,428 1,740,356
(b) Other current liabilities 19 99,847,456 130,533,302
(c) Provisions - -
Total Current Liabilities 145,369,798 158,904,992
Total liabilities 458,385,191 419,182 595
Total Equity & Liabilities 461,942,894 423,800,149
Significant nccounting policies 1-2
Notes to the accounts 2-36

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

RDB Mumbai Infrastructures
vik ash ehand Thonue-es.
Vikash Jhanwar

Director
DIN: 0006901812

ate Limited

\ |
ran Mali

Director
DIN: 0003106868




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1. Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2007PTC114242

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2019

As per our report of even datc
For Vineet Khetan & Associaies
Chartered Accountants

™

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
3B,Lal Bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001,

The 20th day of May 2019

Particulars Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 69,294,780 78,911,008
Other income 21 1,262,559 17,656
Total Revenue 70,557,339 78,928,664
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 103,629,951 80,220,906
Changes in inventories and work-in-progress 23 (34,405,456) (5,221,241)
Employee benefit expense 24 1,019,067 713,510
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 60,339 36,661
Finance costs 25 177,600 201,000
Other expenses 26 1,133,690 2,286,250
Total expenses 71,617,190 78,237,086
Profit before tax (1,059,851) 691,578
Less: Income tax expenses

- Current tax - -

- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year - -

- Deferred Tax = =
Total tax expense - -
Profit after tax (1,059,851) 691,578
Other comprehensive income
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss : - -
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income * =
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans o =
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,059,851 691,578
Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders (1,059.,851) 691,578
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 1,000,000 1,000,000
Basic earnings per share (1.06) 0.69
Diluted earnings per share (1.06) 0.69
| Significant accounting policies 1-2
Notes to the accounts 2-36

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Jinancial siatements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RDB Mumbai Infrastructu es rivate Limited

vikash ehand Thanusts .

Vikash Jhanwar Kiran Mali
Director Director
DIN: 0006901812 DIN: 0003106868




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U51109WB2007PTC114242

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

A. Cash flow from operating activities :

Net profit before tax as per Stalement of Profit and Loss (1,059.851) 691,578
Adjusiments for
Sundry Balances wrillen back 351,600
Depreviation & Amortisation 60.339 36,661
Interest Paid 177.600 201,000
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (821,912) 1,280,839
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (8.314,149) 14,830,709
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (1,633,137) (8,768,642)
(Increase) / Decrease of Advances - (351,600)
(Increase) / Decrease of Other financials assets 378 201
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets 1,956,265 (5,467,774)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 13,476,573 (828.424)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities 14,019,113 28.966,993
Increase / { Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities (30,685,846) (59.796,511)
Cash generated from operations (11,624.892) (30,134,410)
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) (380,050} (536.337)
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activitics (12.004,942) (30,670,747

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :

Purchase of Fixed Assets (82.073) (33.317)
Changes of Investment (9,199,734) (212,469)
MNet cash from investing activities (0,281,827) (245,786)

C. Cash flow from financing activities :

Issue of Shares

Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings 42,392,756 73,778,404

Interest Paid (26,268.907) (20,252 950)

Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities 16,123,849 53,525454
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (5,162,920) 22,608,921
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 5,853,080 (16,755,842)
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance 690,160 5,853,080

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

(a) Batances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 398.773 5,844,624
(b) Cash in hand . 291.387 8,456
690,160 5,653,080
Significant accounting policies 1-2
Notes to the accounts 2-36

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Jinancial statements

As per our report of even date
For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants RDB Mumbai Infrastructures PRivate Limited

\/t{ W : Vllﬂ% (j\gm& Tkmww#-\
VYineet Khetan : Vikash Jhanwar iran Mali
Proprietor LN Director Director
Membership No.060270 \ DIN: 0006801812 DIN: 0003106868
3B,Lal Bazar Street,

Kolkata - 700 001.
The 20th day of May 2019




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
8/1. Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

15t Floor, Bikaner Building,
CIN: U51109WB2007PTCl 14242

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 Mar

A. Equity Share Capital (Refer Note )

ch 2019

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Balance as at 1 April 2017 10,000,000
Changes in equity share capital during the year :
Balance as at 31 March 2018 10,000,000
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 10,000,000
B. Other Equity
Particulars Retallned
Earnings
Balance at 1 April 2017 (6,074,024)
Transfers -
Profit for the year 691,578
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 691,578
Balance at 31 March 2018 (5,382,446)
Transfers =
Profit for the Year (1,059,851)
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the period (1,059,851)
Balance at 31 March 2019 (6,442,297)

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the accounts

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
(Chartered Accountants

Vineet Khetan L O A2\
Proprietor olkatyy | %
Membership No.060270
3B,Lal Bazar Street,
Kolkata - 700 001.

The 20th day of May 2019

1-2
2-45

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Priyate Limited

~ikash chand Thanwts.

Vikash Jhanwar
Director
DIN: 0006901812

\

Director
DIN: 0003106868



RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2007PTC114242

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Note 3: Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Office Equipment Computers Total
Gross Block

Balance as at 1 April 2017 47,000 85,467 132,467
Additions during the year - 33,317 33,317
Disposals - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 47,000 118,784 165,784
Additions 22,625 59,448 82,073
Disposals - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 69,625 178,232 247,857
Azcumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2017 15,566 57,821 73,387
Depreciation charge during the year 14,168 22,493 36,661
Disposals - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 29,734 80,314 110,048
Depreciation charge during the year 14,990 45,349 60,339
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 44,724 125,663 170,387
Net Block

Balance as at 31 March 2018 17,266 38,470 55,736
Balance as at 31 March 2019 24,901 52,569 77,470
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Note 4 Financial Assets (Investment)
Investment in Partnership Firm

Regent Associates (51% share in Profit) 69,300,473 61,681,543

Disclosure of Investment in Part hip Fi Regent Associates)
Name of Partner and Share of Investment

RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited (51%) 69,300,473 61.681,545
Dharmendra Lalchand Jain (11%) 15,903,692 15,903,692
Lalchand Pannalal Jain (11%) 5,068,804 5,097,692
Leela Lalchand Jain (11%) 5,905,804 4,904,692
Mahendra Lalchand Jain (8%) 9,541,307 8,040,498
Praveen Lalchand Jain (3%) 11,864,767 11.863.959

117,584,848 107,492,078

RDB Mumbai Housing LLP (67% share in Profit) 666,344 -

Disclosure of Investment in Partnership Firm
Name of Partner and Share of Investment

AN Ol L gl e

RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited (67%) 666,344. =
Shashank Bansode (33%) 316,296 -
982,640 -

RDB Mumbai Realty LLP (90% share in Profit) 451,892 -

Disclosure of Investment in Partnership Firm
Name of Partmer and Share of Investment

RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited (90%) 451,892 -
Harish Mali (10%) 49,108 -
501,000 -

Regent Developers & Builders (60% share in Profit) (37.410)

Disclosure of Investment in Partnership Firm
Name of Partner and Share of Investment

RDB Munibai Infrastructures Private Limited (60%) (37,410)
Keshulal Mehta (25%) 138,163
Mahendra Bokadia (15%) 2.898 -
103,650 -
Fixed deposit with ICICI Bank 500,000
70,881,299 61,681,545

Note 5 Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred Tax Assets on
- On Fixed Assets 3,801 3.801
- On Brought Forward Losses 2,268,665 2,268,665

Total 1,212,466 2,272,466
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Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 6 Inventories

(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Unsold Flat - Hema Niwas CHS Ltd

Work in process

Total Inventories

Note 7 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade receivables

Receivables from related parties

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Total

Break up of security details:

Trade receivables

(a) Secured, considered pood

(by Unsecured, considered good

(¢) Doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Total

Note 8 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)

(2) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account)
(b ) Cash in hand

Total
Note 9 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)

Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposit

Total

Note 10 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets (Advance Income Tax and TDS)
Total

Note 11 Other current assets

Advance to suppliers against Material

Balances with government authorities

Pre paid expenses

Other Advances

Total

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
36,570,555 .
280,279,195 282,444,294
316,849,750 282,444!294
14,701,872 13,068,735
143'?01 g? 1 ]3!068;735
14,701,872 13,068.735
14,701,872 13,068,735
398,773 5,844,624
291,387 8.456
690,1 60 55853!080
15,446,651 15.824.852
15446651 15524852
4,945,518 4,565,468
4 =51'4 515]8 4g65!468
19.470 394,400
3,118,428 1,623,917
o 2,706,715
32,939,810 33,218,941
36,077,708 38,033,913
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Note 12 Equity Share Capital (Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares 10,000,000 10,000,000
Total Amount 100,000,000° 100,000,000
b) Issued, subscribed fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 1.000,000 1,000,000
Total Amount 10,000,000 10,000,000
¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning of the year 1.000,000 1,000,000
Add: Tssued during the year - -
As at the end of the year 1,000,000 1.000.000
d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 510.000 510,000
Percentage of Total shares held 51.00% 51.00%
Kiran Ponnamchand Mali
Number of Shares 163,330 163,330
Percentage of Total shares held 16.33% 16.33%
Vikash Mohan Jhanwar
Number of Shares 163,340 163,340
Percentage of Total shares held 16.33% 16.33%
Waseem Javed Khan
Number of Shares 163,330 163,330
Percentage of Total shares held 16.33% 16.33%

¢) The rights, preferences & resirictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repayment ital

The Company has only one class of equity shares, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of
liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equitv shares held by the shareholders.

Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holdin,
MName of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Lid
Number of Shares 510,000 510,000
Percentage of Total shares held 51% : 51.00%

Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares & Amount - -

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to sharcholders or bought back from
sharcholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back
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Note 13 Other equity

Reserve & Surplus

Surplus from Statement o fit & Loss

As at the beginning of the year (5.382,446) (6,074,024)

Add; Profit for the year (1,059.851) 691,578

Add; Ind AS Adjustments 2 -

As af the end of the year (6,442,297) (5,382.,446)
Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income - -

Other items of Other Comprehensive Income -
Total (6,442,297) (5,382,446)
Note 14 Financial liabilities - Borrowings
(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)

From Directors 123,531,000 102,531,000

From Others 162,453,921 141,061,165
Total 285,984,921 243,592,165
Note 15 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)

Interest accrued and due on borrowing 27,030,472 16,685,438
Total 27,030,472 16,685,438
Note 16 financial liabilities - Borrowings
(Secured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)

Overdraft facility From Banks 27,835,376 23,978.369
Total 217,835,376 23,978,369
Note 17 Financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises - -
Other than above 16,129,538 2,652,965
Total 16,129,538 2652965
Note 18 Financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Qther payable 1,557,428 1,379,141
Book Debt From Bank - 361,215
Total 1,557,428 1,740,356
Note 19 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customers / Booking 99,847,456 130,533,302
Total 99,847,456 130,533,302
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Notes to the financial statements
Note 20 Revenue from Operations

Sale of Construction Activities

Other Income of Construction Activities

Share of Profit from Investment in Firm (Non Current, Trade)
TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income

Miscellaneous Income
Balance amount w/off

Total
Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses

Other Construction Expenses
Interest & Other Finance Cost (in accordance with IND AS-23)

Consumption

Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress
Opening Inventory of Unsold flats

Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
Less ; Closing Inventory of unsold flats
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)
Note 24 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and incentives

Total

Note 25 Finance Cost

Processing fees for OD & BG

Total

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
67,128,168 78,761,598
2,558,044
(391,432) 149.410
69,294,780 78,911,008
59,722 17.656
1,202,837
1,262,559 17,656
77,538,644 60,168,956
26,091,307 20,051,950
103,629,951 80,220,906
282,444,294 277,223,053
(280,279,195) 282 444,294

(36,570,555)

(34,405,456) (5,221,241)
1,019,067 713,510
1,019,067 713,510

177,600 201,000
177,600 201,000
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Note 26 Others Expenses
Rates & Taxes — 100,100
Rent - 851,350
Electricity Expenses 84,780 75,820
Motor Vehicle Expenses 04,062 £1,878
Other Repairs 17,560 32,680
Travelling & Conveyance Expn 67,7714 139,656
Postage, Telegraph & Telephones 39,864 37,532
Printing & Stationary 112,130 93,837
Listing Fees & Filing Fees 3.544 57
Interest Penalty charges 44,432 7.461
Miscellaneous Expenses 95,685 201,165
Bad Debts/ Advances Written Off == 351,600
Professional Charges 325,441 251,554
Bank Charges : 6,344 12,302
Staff welfare & Tea & Refreshment expenses 171,073 =es
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses - 32,545
Other Sales Expenses 44,496 13,395
Auditor's Remuneration

Statutory Audit Fees 7,500 7,500

Tax Audit Fees 21,000 21,000

Total 1,135,690 2,286,250
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27 Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

19

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

'Psrtil:uhrs 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Profit before tax (1,059,851) 691,578
Income tax expense calculated (@ 26% (2018; 25.75%) (272,912) 178,081
Other differences 272,912 (178,081)

Total 3

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years

Income tax recognised in profit or 10ss

The tax rate used for the year 2018-10 and 2017-18 reconciliations above is the corporate tax payable ot taxable profits under the Income Tax

Act, 1961,

Above workings are based on provisional computation of tax expense and subject to finalisation including that of tax audit or

otherwise in due course.

Operating Lease

As per Ind AS -17 ‘Leases’, the disclosure of transactions with the respect to lease of premises is disclosed as follows:

Assets taken on Operating Lease :

The Company has taken commercial premises on Operating Lease and lease rent of Rs. NIL (Previous Year Rs. 851,340)has been

debited to Statement of Profit and Loss and Rs. 10,43,600 (Previous Year Rs. NIL) has been inventorised for the current year

The Company does not have any contingent lease rental expenses/ income.

Related Party Disclosure

Disclosures as required by the Indian Accounting Standard 24 (Ind AS-24) “Related Party Disclosures” arc given

below:

Rel P Relationshi

Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd — Holding

T tio Balances :

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Trangactions

Loan Taken 51,200,000 21,309,150
Refund of Loan Taken 30,200,000 25,909,150
Interest provided on Loan Taken . -
Investment in partnership firm 8,762,813 149,410
Balanc:gsl

Loan Taken 123,531,000 102,531,000
Interest accrued on Loan Taken 3,689,759
Investment in partnership firm 70,381,299 61,681,545
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30 Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria of recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income
andexpenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in note 2.15 of the Ind AS

financial statements.

The carrying valuc of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2019 were as follows:

Fair Value > < Carrying amount
Particulars through profit and t::::-lg‘;:ﬂll'_;.éi Amo::s:;fow as at 31 March
loss 2019
() Financial Assets
(i) Investments - 70,881,299 70,881,299
(ii) Trade receivables - - 14,701,872 14,701,872
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents - - 690,160 690,160
(iv) Other financial assets - - 15,446,651 15,446,651
Total Financial Assets - - 101,719,982 101,719,982
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings - - 313,820,297 313,820,297
(ii) Trade and other payables - - 16,129.538 16,129,538
(iii) Other financial liabilities : - - 28,587,900 28,587,900
Total Financial Liabilities - - 358,537,735 358,537,735

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2018 were as follows:

Fair Value
Particulars through profitand

Fair YValue Amortised Cost/

Carrying amount
ag at 31 March

o through OCI At cost 2018
{a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments - - 61,681,545 61,681.545
(i) Trade receivables - - 13,068,735 13,068,735
(iii) Cashand cash equivalents - - 5,853,080 5,853,080
(iv) Other financial assets - - 15,624,852 15,824,852
Total Financial Assets - - 96,428,212 96,428,212
(@) Finaneial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings - - 267,570,534 267,570,534
(i) Trade and other payables - - 2,652,965 2,652,965
(i) Other financial liabilities - - 18,425,794 18,425,794
Total Financial Liabilities - - 288 640,203 788,649,293

31 Disclosure of Financial Instraments

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, The main purpose of these financial
{iabilities is to finance and support Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash

and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Company’s senior management OVersees the management of these
risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the
Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policics for managing each

of these risks, which are summarised below:
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Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuatebecause of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate riskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/ real estate risk. The Company
has not entered into any foreign exchange or commodity derivative coniracts. Accordingly, there is no significant exposure to the market rigk
other than interest risk.

(1) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt
obligatiens with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and varizble rate loans and borrowings. Most of the
borrowings of the Company are unsecured and at fixed rates. The Company has only one cash credit account which is linked to the Prime
Bank Lending Rate. The Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps.

(i) Pricerisk
The Company has not made any investments for frading purposes. The surpluses have been deployed in bank deposits as explained
above,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activitics (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including
refundable joint development deposits, security deposits, loans to employees and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables
Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk i3 managed by requiring customers to pay advances before transfer of
ovwmership, therefore, substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

Recgivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor
receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company’s credit

period generally ranges from 30-60 days.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars . 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
More than 6 months = 1
Others 14,701,872 13,068,735

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
counterparty.

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year
subject to approval of the Board. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a
counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The Company’s maximum exposure (o credit risk for the components of the statement of
financial position at 31 March 2019 and 2018 is the carrying amounts.

Liquidity Risk

The Company’s investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the tenets of safety, liquidity and return. The
Company manages-its liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. In case of short term
requirements. it obtains short-term loans from its Bankers.
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32 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder

value.

The Company manages its capital structurc and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables

less cash and cash equivalents

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Borrowings (long-term and short-term, including current maturities of long term borrowings) 313,820,297 267,570,534
Trade payables 16,129,538 2,652,965
Other payables (current & non-current, excluding current maturitics of long term borrowings) 28,587,900 18,425,794
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (690,160) (5,853,080)
Net debt 357,847,575 282,796,213
Equity share capital 10,000,000 10,000,000
Other equity (6,442,297) (5,382,446)
Total Capital 3,557,703 4,617,554
Gearing ratio 0.01 0.02

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any

interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March

2018.

31,2019 and March 31,
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34

35

Disclosure as per Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Centarcts with Customers

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

The amount of project revenue recognized as revenue during the year 69,294,780 78,911,008
The amount of advances received 99,847 456 130,533,302
The amount of work in progress 280,279,195 282 444 294

Contingent Liabilities and commitments

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt:
Disputed demand of income tax for Assessment Year 2014-15

24948150

24,948,150

* The Company is under appeal before Commissioner (Appeal) of Income tax

Disclosures required under Sec 22 of MSMED Act, 2006

The amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises suppliers defined under “The Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Aot 2006 have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company,

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separa tely) remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at the end of accounting year:

The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of
the payment made to the supplier beyond the due date during each accounting year:

The amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but
interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid);

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year; and

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise. for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23,

* Tnterest paid or payable, if any have been waived by vendor.

36 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the presentation of the current
year.
Significant accounting policies i-2
Notes to the accounts 2-36

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statenients

As per our report of even date

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ity

N kash ehand Thaniey.

Vineet Khetan Yikash Jhanwar
Proprietor Director
Membership No.060270 DIN; 0006901812
3B,Lal Bazar Street,

Kolkata - 700 001.

The 20th day of May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private

Direcior

DIN: 0003106868
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 |

1. Corporate Information

RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited (Formerly Maple Tie Up Private Limited)(The
Company) is a deemed Public limited compary, private company being a subsidiary of Listed
Public Company domiciled and incorporated in Indialt is a part of a group leading in real estate
activities in Eastern India. The registered office of the Company is situated at 8/1, Lalbazar Street,
Bikaner Building, 1 Floor, Room No.10, Kolkata-700001. The principle business activity of the
company is Real Estate Development.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

Basis of preparation

The financial statements (Separate financial statements) have been prepared on accrual basis in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards(Ind. AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements
of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as
applicable to the standalone financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been
prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financialassets and liabilities which have been
measured atfair value as explained in relevant accounting policies.

2.2 Operating Cycle

An asset is considered as current when it is:

o Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or con sumed in normal operating cycle,

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

o Expectedtobe realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reportingperiod

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

A liability is considered as current when:

o Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The Company’s normal operating cycle in respect of operations relating to the construction of
realestate projects may vary from project toproject depending upon the size of the project, type of
development, project complexities and related approvals. Accordingly, project relatedassets and
liabilities have been classified in to current and non-current based on operating cycle of
respectiveproject. All other assets andliabilities have been classified into current and non-current

based on a period of twelve months.

.3 Use of estimates and management judgments

The preparation of financial statement in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reportedbalances of revenucs, expenscs, assets and liabilities and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of

assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

i) Key estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Companybased its assumptions and ' estimates on parameters available when the
financialstatements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are

beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumption
occur.

ii) Revenue recognition, contract costs and valuation of unbilled revenue

s when they

The Company uses the percentage of-completion method for recognitionof revenue,
accounting for unbilled revenue. and contract cost thereon for its real estate and contractual

projects. The percentage of/Gompletion: is

sured by reference to the stage of the projects
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and contracts determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date bear tothe estimated total contract cOSts. Use of the percentage-of-
completionmethod requires the Company to estimate the efforts or costsexpended to date as a
proportion of the total efforts or costs to be expended. Significant assumptions are required in
determining the stage of completion, the extent of the contract cost incurred, the estimated
total contract revenue and contract cost and the recoverability of the contracts. These estimates
are based on events existing at the end of each reporting date.

For revenue recognition for projects executed through joint development arrangements, refer
clause (i) below as regards estimates and assumptions involved.

iii)Estimation of net realisable value for inventory property (including land advance)
Inventory property is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).
NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and
prices existing at the reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable
transactions identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical market serving
the same real estate segment.

NRYV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market
prices at the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete
construction and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion,

With respect to Land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of
future cash flows, which depends on the estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a
project will be completed, the expected date of completion, the discount rate used and the
estimation of sale prices and construction costs.

2.4 Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price, any costs
directly attributable to its acquisition and an initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which the
company incurs when the item is acquired. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the

reporting period in which they are incurred.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to
the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for
machinery, When significant parts of plant-and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
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major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-
recognised upon disposal or when no future cconomic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement when the Property, plant and equipment is derecognised.

On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its
property, plant and equipment recognized as at 1% April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

2.5 Revenue Recognition-

Revenue is recognized as follows:

i Revemnue from own construction projects are recognised on Percentage Completion
Method. Revenue recognition starts when 25 % of estimated project cost excluding land
and marketing cost is incurred, atleast 25% of the saleable project area is secured by
contracts or agreements with buyers and Atleast 10 % of the total revenue as per the
agreements of sale or any other legally enforceable documents are realised at the reporting
date in respect of each of the contracts and it is reasonable to expect that the parties to
such contracts will comply with the payment terms as defined in the contracts.

i Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on "Percentage of Completion
Method" measured by reference to the survey of works done up to the reporting date and
certified by the client before finalisation of projects accounts.

iii.  Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax, if any, net of sales return.

iv. Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except
otherwise stated

v.  Rental income from assets is recognised for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate
collection is considered doubtful. Rental income is exclusive of service tax

vi. Income from interest is accounted for on time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the applicable rate of interest.

2.6 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are carried as
part of the cost of such asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they are
incurred. ===
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2.7 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an
indication that both tangible and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is
recognized wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event

oceurring after the impairment loss was recognized.

2.8 Inventories

Constructed properties, shown as work in progress, includes the cost of land (including
development rights and land under agreements 10 purchase), internal development costs, external
development cOSts, construction costs, overheads, borrowing cOSS, construction materials
including material lying at respective sites, finance and administrative expenses which contribute
to bring the inventory to their present location and condition and is valued at lower of

estimated cost and net realizable value.

On completion of projects, unsold stocks are transferred to project finished stock under the head

“Inventory” and the same is carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.
Finished Goods — Flats: Valued at cost and net realizable value.

Land Inventory: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Provision for obsolescence in inventories is made, wherever required.

2.9 Retirement Benefits

No such benefits are payable to any employee.

2.10 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using 2 substantial degree of
estimation if the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and the amount of

obligation can be reliably estimated.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,

the increase in the provision due to the passage of time jsrecognised as a finance cost.

Possible future or present obligations that may but will probably not require outflow of resources
or where the same cannot be reliably estimated is disclosed as contingent Jiability in the financial

statement. ] =
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2.11 Taxes on Income

i,

il

iii.

Tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax is determined in respect of
taxable income for the year based on applicable tax rates and laws.

Deferred tax Asset/liability is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence.on timing
differences being the differences between taxable incomes and accounting income that
originates in one year and is capable of reversal in one or more subsequent year and measured
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet
date. Deferred tax assets are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reassess their reliability.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than
the book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular corporate tax
payable in subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Act. MAT paid in a year is
charged to the statement of profit and loss as current taX. The Company recognizes MAT
credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes
MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the
Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and
loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit
entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company
does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

2.12 Segment Reporting

The company has identified that its operating activity is a single primary business segment viz.
Real Estate Development and Services carried out in India. Accordingly, whole of India has
been considered as one geographical segment

2.13 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share aré calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects. 9f all dilutive potential equity shares.

,
'\,
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2.14 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash & cash on deposit with banks and corporations. The
Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of
purchase of three months or less,which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s
cash management and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash
equivalents.

2.15 Financial Instruments

>

»

Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the company’s statement of financial
position when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The company determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at inifial
recognition. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets —Subsequent measu rement ;
The Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification which is as

follows:

e Tinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for sale in
thenear term and those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or

loss.

o Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Trade receivables do not carry any

interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowance for

estimated irrecoverable amounts based on the ageing of the receivables balance and

historical experience. Additionally, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into

homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables

are written off when management deems them not to be collectible.

Debt instruments at amortisedcost:

A ‘debt instrument’ is measuredat the amortised cost if both thefollowing conditions are

met:

i The asset is held within abusiness model whose objectiveis to hold assets for
collectingcontractual cash flows, and

i, Contractual terms of the assetgive-rise on specified datesto cash flows that are
solelypayments of principal andinterest (SPPLyon the principalamount outstanding.
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This category is the most relevant tothe Group. After initial measurement,such
financial assets aresubsequently measured at amortisedcost using the effective interest
rate(EIR) method. Amortised cost iscalculated by taking into account anydiscount or
premium on acquisitionand fees or costs that are an integralpart of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in finance income in theprofit or loss. The losses arisingfrom
impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to
trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FV TOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

i. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and

{i. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPIL. Debt instruments included within
the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(OCI).

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified
as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at
fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL., However, such election is
allowed only if doing so reduces or climinates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch®). The Group has not designated
any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

o TFinancial assets at fair value through 0CI

All equity investments, except investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
falling within the scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI). The company makes an irrevocable election on an instrument
by instrument basis to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair
value. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the company
decides to designate an equity instrument at fair value through OCI, then all fair value changes
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.

Financial assets —Derecognition

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the assets expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset. Upon défeebgliifiﬁii-.of ity instruments designated at fair value
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through OCI, the associated fair value changes of that equity instrument is transferred from
OCI to Retained Earnings.

¢ Financial liabilities —
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate.
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts. ‘
Subsequent measurement
The Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification which isas
follows:

e Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading, if any.and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
throughprofit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are

incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

o Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Interest bearing loans and borrowings including debentures issued by the company are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR).
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fee or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortized is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

e Financial liabilities —Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or expires.

2.16 Fair Value measurement

The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair
value is the price that would be ceceived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the assets or liability or

o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The principal or the most advantageous-market must be accessible to the company. The
company Uuscs valuation technique that are -':sﬁapropriate in the circumstances and for which
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sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable, or

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value

measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

2.17 Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a
loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all
trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or
at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition.



